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I 48 Vision
HEREBNALITHRAFAMENE » EAMEHARA  REEER -

To ensure that Hong Kong is served by a fair and efficient public
administration which is committed to accountability, openness and
quality of service

{E Mission

FBRBY - FERLAENRALE - BERKFERAQEEBITIRE ML
B mAERE - ARREAHITHOEZMKT - WRETHAT -
Through independent, objective and impartial investigation, to redress
grievances and address issues arising from maladministration in the

public sector and bring about improvement in the quality and standard
of and promote fairness in public administration

{&4% Values

o NRAEEEBMREREETHE

o BRAESE AMRNEAZREEEREANBERIERN
0

s UMRMEBEEARE

o WRHEXKF YEREITAFZEBE

e Maintaining impartiality and objectivity in our investigations

e Making ourselves accessible and accountable to the public and
organisations under our jurisdiction

e According the public and organisations courtesy and respect

Upholding professionalism in the performance of our functions
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RFEREBH ABMERE  SY5TE
#IMSEIERALE

Complaints outside our statutory
purview closed within 15 working days
after initial assessment

ERNIBEARNTKAEREARGER

Complaints concluded by investigation
or inquiry within 3 months

ERERNEAATHAAECHEMERER
Complex cases concluded by
investigation or inquiry within 6 months
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Key Figures of the Year

W EABEEE R

Closed after assessment Resolved by mediation
& Fe A YRR E S
Complaints
completed -]

551,771 4,397
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Concluded by inquiry Concluded by full investigation

H @j
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Direct investigation Cases related to access

operations completed to information completed
8 RENER 5 9 ZINER
Recommendations given Enqumes recelved
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Oon the doorstep of the 35th
anniversary, |1 will lead the Office
to serve the public with vigour
and dedication. We shall set
targets and strive for results, and
perform our gatekeeping role
conscientiously for the continuous
betterment of the community.
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With the lifting of mask-wearing requirement in March 2023,
the year 2023/24 is the first full year where lives in the Special
Administrative Region have gone back to normality since the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Notable Figures in 2023/24

This year, we saw a decline in incoming complaints and logged
a total of 4,351 complaints, which is the lowest in the recent
five years. In particular, we see a big drop in pandemic-related
complaints: from 766 last year to 33 this year and the discontent
and grievances expressed in these complaints were drastically
less poignant. We completed 4,397 cases, and were able to
achieve all our performance pledges in handling enquiries, new
complaints, re-assessment and review of complaints.
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A total of 187 cases were concluded by mediation. As pandemic-
related cases were particularly suitable for mediation, hence we
saw an unprecedented number of such cases last year. We can
see that more public organisations are receptive to resolving
complaints swiftly and efficiently through mediation. Meanwhile,
we conducted full investigations into 95 cases, which required
in-depth probing or involved systemic issues. This year, we
also completed 10 direct investigation operations. In these full
investigations and direct investigation operations, we made a total
of 186 recommendations, more than 90% of which have already
been accepted by the relevant bureaux and departments, while
the rest are still under consideration.

Highlights of Our Work

We have been enhancing community awareness of the role and
services of The Ombudsman so that complainants would know
that they can seek redress from an independent, objective and
impartial channel. While promotion efforts were inevitably affected
by the pandemic, we maintained exposure by making better use
of our website and social media channels. We have redesigned
our website and the online complaint form to make them more
user-friendly. We launched a publicity campaign in September
2023 with the theme “Hong Kong needs a clear mirror”, making
use of outdoor advertisings, advertising spaces of public transport
and social media. The annual Ombudsman’s Awards Presentation
Ceremony was held in full scale and continued to generate
attention in the society. In addition to regular outreach talks to
schools, we held a Youth Contest in November 2023 to increase
awareness of our work among teenagers. Our involvement in the
leadership forum for newly appointed principals also raised their
awareness of our duties whilst contributing to their professional
development.
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We have been fostering improvement in the quality and
fairness in public administration by making pertinent and
feasible recommendations to tackle issues arising from
maladministration and monitoring their implementation, as well
as encouraging and motivating Government departments and
public organisations to proactively improve public administration
and complaint handling. In the last five years, we have made
a total of 907 recommendations. These recommendations
would entail introducing new regulatory measures, improving
existing regulatory and enforcement procedures and guidelines,
strengthening multi-departmental collaboration, and protecting
vulnerable groups. Our recommendations cover a wide range of
issues affecting people’s livelihood, such as 1823's handling of
complaints and enquiries, rodent and mosquito prevention and
control, street obstruction, abandoned vehicles on government
land, street cleansing service, kaito ferry services, reporting of
suspected child abuse cases, boarding sections of schools for
children with intellectual disabilities, and community care vouchers
for the elderly. More than 90% of our recommendations have been
accepted. Itis encouraging that bureaux and departments have all
responded positively and proactively, often taking improvement
actions even before we complete our investigations.

We have been enhancing transparency, efficiency and quality
of our work by announcing and publishing more investigation
reports of complaint cases and seeking the views of the public
when carrying out direct investigation operations. In the last
five years, we have published a total of 122 full investigation
reports on our website. We have also added a search function
to further facilitate public access to relevant reports. For direct
investigation operations, in addition to publishing the full reports
upon completion, we declared all direct investigation operations to
the public at the early stage and invited comments from members
of the public. We have started live-streaming press conferences
to announce findings of our direct investigation operations such
that members of the public can watch them too. Internally, we
have been regularly reviewing and enhancing various operational
procedures to make sure that our practices are up-to-date.
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We have been building our professional capacity through enhancing
technological infrastructure, staff development and knowledge
management. We have been analysing the training needs of our
staff and devising staff development plans accordingly for capacity
building. The pandemic has speeded up our use of information
technology and enabled us to maintain our service to the public
even at the peak of the fifth wave. We are now working on further
digitalisation of operations and building a more sophisticated
knowledge base to meet future needs.

We have reinforced our international footprints by joining
international conferences and meetings of ombudsman institutes.
Staff members of the Office shared Hong Kong's experience in
international conferences held in Melbourne, Kazan and Yogyakarta
last year. Also, our Office was re-elected as Secretary of the Asian
Ombudsman Association at its last General Assembly. We will
no doubt continue to stay connected closely with international
partners and cherish every opportunity for fruitful exchange, to tell
good Hong Kong stories and promote the Special Administrative
Region.

A Word of Appreciation

The Office has remained steadfast as an independent, objective
and impartial organisation committed to ensuring that the Special
Administrative Region is served by a fair and efficient public
administration. | would like to thank my staff and my Advisers for
their tremendous support rendered in the past. On the doorstep
of the 35th anniversary, | will lead the Office to serve the public
with vigour and dedication. We shall set targets and strive for
results, and perform our gatekeeping role conscientiously for the
continuous betterment of the community.

Jack Chan

The Ombudsman
19 June 2024
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Who we are

Established under The Ombudsman Ordinance (“the
Ordinance”), Cap. 397 of the Laws of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, we serve as the community’s
independent watchdog of public administration. We:

AEHRBITHR B IR
investigate complaints of maladministration’

WRATHEEH EN AR ZE
identify administrative deficiencies

BEMARASRERRE - BATMRE W - WekE QT
recommend remedial measures to redress grievances and
improve public administration

What we do

Investigate COMPLAINTS
from aggrieved persons about maladministration (including non-
compliance with the Code on Access to Information (“the Code”))

Carry out DIRECT INVESTIGATION OPERATIONS
where injustice may have been caused by maladministration

by Government departments and public organisations listed in
Part 1 and Part 2 of Schedule 1 to the Ordinance.

(See Appendix 1 for full list)

Note 1. Maladministration is defined in section 2 of the Ordinance. It
means inefficient, bad or improper administration including
unreasonable conduct; abuse of power or authority;
unreasonable, unjust, oppressive or improperly discriminatory
procedures and delay; discourtesy and lack of consideration for
a person.



TERERENEE

ABTER

BERFTSHIENE CIRGI) BR1251

BERPTS IR (ERPI) HR1582
FRERE (TR B

ELAT T A B AR ER

- R& - BRRERRAER

- TBRRERAELOHTH
- TTREBTEENOKEIFEL

A&

- BTREERE - RESE
- ERRFRRITERTE

- BHEBEERS

- ABSTHNEER

- AR E o A S R EVR E

- B (FBERRNE - At REHEEST
2) BENTTE

- BABDHERR  BRAEBRIARBA
E L0 1E B E R TR ERERENTTED

B S A E R IRER

(EES

BRFAHRFERD ERMEEB24E A

KRFRERERD
AR ABAKE BRI T & T
RHFLIFHRIZENATIEEREREL

AR AR R ERERTE W B MRER

WRAGREFBRIBEEEZEFIRE LRSS K
AR %

AR B BB MG TR - MERBRIAL
BITBURE 25

RFETHR T RENE

KB EBEBEY - EERRYIFEHIEL
REMEHMEERAES (flI R=REE

B FTAHBIEREITE  HRFARRR
ZER)

— 3 Chapter 1

BBE R FED
Functions and Powers

What we cannot investigate

complaints against organisations not listed in Schedule 1 to
the Ordinance

complaints against organisations listed in Part 2 of Schedule
1 to the Ordinance about matters unrelated to the Code

complaints relating to
—  security, defence or international relations
— actions by the Chief Executive personally

— exercise of power by the Chief Executive to pardon
criminals

— grant of honours, awards or privileges by Government
— legal proceedings or prosecution decisions

- contractual or other commercial transactions

- personnel matters

— imposition or variation of conditions of land grant

— actions in relation to the Hong Kong Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs

—  Crime prevention and investigation actions by the Hong
Kong Auxiliary Police Force, the Hong Kong Police Force
or the Independent Commission Against Corruption

We shall not undertake or continue
an investigation into a complaint if

the complainant has had actual knowledge of the subject
of complaint for more than 24 months

the complaint is made anonymously

the complainant cannot be identified or traced

the complaint is not made by the person aggrieved or
suitable representative

subject of complaint and complainant have no connection
with Hong Kong

statutory right of appeal or remedy by way of legal
proceedings is available to the complainant

investigation of similar complaints before revealed no
maladministration

subject matter of the complaint is trivial
the complaint is frivolous or vexatious or is not made in
good faith

investigation is for any other reason unnecessary (such as
lack of prima facie evidence, the organisation involved is
already taking action, or the complainant is just expressing
opinions)

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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The powers we have

determine whether a complaint is duly made

conduct preliminary inquiries for the purposes of determining
whether to undertake an investigation

undertake or continue investigation notwithstanding
withdrawal of complaint if it is in the public interest to do so

dealing with complaints by mediation if the subject matter
involves no or minor maladministration, subject to mutual
agreement by the parties concerned

obtain information, document or things from such persons
and make such enquiries as the Ombudsman thinks fit

summon any person to obtain evidence related to
investigation, and may administer an oath for this purpose

enter and inspect any premises occupied, managed or
controlled by any organisation

decide on complaints and make recommendations

report the results of investigations to the head of organisation
concerned, or if appropriate to the Chief Executive

How we maintain secrecy

The Ombudsman and all his staff and advisers are bound
by the Ordinance to maintain secrecy for all matters of any
complaint and investigation

The Ombudsman may in the public interest publish a
report on any of his investigations without disclosing the
names of the persons involved

offences

Any person who

without lawful excuse, obstructs, hinders or resists the
Ombudsman in the exercise of his powers under the
Ordinance;

without lawful excuse, fails to comply with any lawful
requirement of the Ombudsman under the Ordinance; or

makes a statement which he knows to be false or does
not believe to be true, or otherwise knowingly misleads
the Ombudsman in the exercise of his powers under the
Ordinance,

commits an offence and is liable to a fine and imprisonment
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Flow Chart on Handling of a Complaint
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The Ombudsman may, of his own volition, initiate direct
investigation (“DI") operations where injustice may have been
caused by maladministration. Our DI operations may be prompted
by topical issues of community concern or significant public
interest indicative of suspected systemic problems which need
to be rectified.

Launching Direct
Operations

Investigation

Before deciding whether or not to launch DI operations into an
issue, we usually conduct a preliminary inquiry. If the inquiry points
to the need for further study, we will commence DI operations.
Where the circumstances warrant, we may launch DI operations
without conducting a preliminary inquiry.

In general, we will publicly announce our commencement of DI
operations and invite members of the public to provide information
and views on the topics under investigation. Apart from seeking
information from the organisations concerned like we normally
do for complaint investigation, we may, depending on the nature
of the subject under study, invite views from relevant sectors
and experts.

We often seriously discuss our observations and views with senior
officers of the organisations under investigation, at the outset as
well as before conclusion. Such exchanges are useful in clarifying
points of doubt and furthering insight into the issues.

Publication of Reports

If the Ombudsman considers it to be in the public interest to
publish a DI report, he may announce the findings at media
conferences or through press releases, and upload the report
to our website.

Naturally, our DI operations may not all come to a conclusion that
there is serious maladministration on the part of the organisations
concerned, and some organisations may have taken remedial
or improvement measures in the course of our investigation.
Nevertheless, the public would still wish to know what we have
done and what we have found. Hence, all our DI reports are
published in one way or another.

During the year we completed ten DI operations, with eight reports
publicly announced at press conferences and the rest through
press releases. The reports of all DI operations were uploaded to
our website. A full list of DI operations completed during the year
is in the table below, and the case synopses are in Appendix 4.
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Direct Investigation Operations

NBERHET
We made

REPHAETH
DIRECT INVESTIGATION OPERATIONS

TR
RECOMMENDATIONS

DI/456  BEABEERATHERIBBEAEE Measures and Usage of On-street Parking Spaces Designated
FiERER for People with Disabilities
DI/457  REMEBRERE S AT S Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service Voucher for the Elderly
DI/458 HERYEEREEREEIMMES Education Bureau’s Monitoring of Boarding Sections of Schools
for Children with Intellectual Disabilities
DI/459  BNEHAHBRERIEFREZIIGR Government’s Enforcement against Defective Sewage Works of
MERI B E New Territories Exempted Houses
DI/461 182312 R E MK Effectiveness of 1823 in Handling Complaints and Enquiries
DI/462 HHEREZE [REEXE] &k [HE— Housing Department’s Arrangements for Housing for Senior
ANEBEAL] MR HE Citizens and Converted One-person Units
DI/463 B RABUNT T i EERIEFA IR Handling of Complaints Involving Trees on Government Land
DI/465  REERSLEEBE TR INELEFRE Repairs and Maintenance of Outdoor Recreational and Sports
BERPEA R B (S Facilities under Leisure and Cultural Services Department
DI/466  RYNBRREEZBHIFEIHHNEE Regulation of Licensed Swimming Pools by Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department
DI/467 RYREFEZSLHUEER L EAT Food and Environmental Hygiene Department’s Regulation

SRERMRIFFAEBERRORE

over Sale of Food in Hot/Cold Holding and Non-prepackaged
Beverages by Means of Vending Machine

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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complaints
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HERTOORBEHMEIIR ©

BRM EFEEARNRIHFESR - A

Overall Complaints and Enquiries
Eig - ~AHAR The year 2023/24 signified the first full year where public services
FE o NFE - HAIHUE returned to normalcy since the COVID-19 pandemic. This year,

B BB AR we received 4,351 cases of complaints, which is relatively low.

Pandemic-related complaints plummeted from 766 to 33 year

on year.
ERWIREF
Total Complaints Received 4,351
o —RIRHF . 4,205
Normal Complaints
o [RAMEFERS
& _IL&nﬁ _ 146
Topical Complaints
2 5% B R &
Total Complaints Completed 4,397
o —MRIRR . 4,246
Normal Complaints
o REEHERS
& .IL$XFF ‘ 151
Topical Complaints
EINESR
" 8,599

Total Enquiries Received

EBEARF Together with 628 cases brought forward from last year, we had

F‘/,\J‘éii £4,979F 4% - WM T EH /4,397  atotal of 4,979 complaint cases for processing this year and we

' 582REE

ETFETK

HEFEE 2023/24 £

completed 4,397 of them; 582 cases were carried forward for
completion next year.



B A EENR

BPEARFE T ERIEL, 07T RITHFEZE - HBF
12 4 BIEY88.3% ©

EETREENRFES - G2,053F 20 REL
REER - 2 MR ERKETERER -

BRETERNERNEE ST

&l
By Inquiry

2EHE

By Full Investigation

O@)O éé‘: %E
B By Mediation

HBpmEZR (2,344%) EFERER  ETEE
REFRZ DB (1,4707% - 3062.7%) - SHEH
NEBESLE DL GG (8747 - %37.1%) -
AAERE T E LM RS

EHBYIINRFERET - SRMERS -

B R W 45 R AR SR B 2R 48 5T
Complaints Pursued and Concluded in Total

5% =% Chapter 3

iy
complaints

Complaints Completed

We completed processing 4,397 cases, i.e., 88.3% of all for
processing this year.

Among the complaints processed, 2,053 were pursued and
concluded and 2,344 were closed after assessment.

The distribution of cases pursued and concluded by mode of
handling was as follows:

1,771
(86%)

95
(4.6%)

187
(9.1%)

2,053
(100%)

The rest of complaints handled (2,344) were closed after

assessment due to insufficient grounds to pursue the complaint
(1,470 or 62.7%) or outside our statutory purview (874 or 37.1%).

Detailed caseload statistics are given in Appendix 3.

A detailed breakdown of cases by organisations is in Appendix 5.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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Complaints
®FAN Mode of Lodging Complaints
~ - —
= a =
BF IR TR ey BBRAE E BE
Through Electronic By Post In Person By Phone By Fax
Means
77 .2% 10.6% 9.1% 1.9% 1.1%

FNR - 38.0%REFELEHABEHELIEL - BRE This year, 38.0% of complaints were lodged through our website.
B LA MA EIRFRERSE - BZRERTEMIEF With the enhancements to the online complaint form on our

FE LT - website, more complaints had been lodged through this channel.
REFNEERER Major Causes of Complaints
RIEIRFAMREOEBIESR  mTRELIESF Based on the allegations made by complainants, the top five
MARFRANAT causes of complaints were:
&) ~
=) & &
L5 - ERIOATE EERS IEFRSOZ B EREITH BB B ER R BEEE
5 iR Ineffective control Delay or inaction Lack of response Staff attitude
Error, wrong advice
or decision
43.0% 14.7% 12.7% 10.3% 4.7%
—RERFREEETERF Normal Complaints and Topical
Complaints
REZEERL,351RIEF2F Among the 4,351 complaints we received:
F AR EB EZR
— IR E R
Normal complaints 4,205 igfﬁrr;dary BEES O] 146

EREFEBANFTFERNEZIN —REFREZE Among the normal complaints received and with complaints
o RPITERKEIER — R EZEREA4,2465R - HA - carried over from last year, we had completed 4,246 normal
2,045 (1548.2%) BIREWLR - H542,201 cases. Of them, 2,045 (48.2%) were pursued and concluded and
=~ (1551.8%) AIRRIEFMRZFTDIEE - LB 2,201 (51.8%) were assessed and closed by reason of insufficient
HAEBREES (R0 - KAFRELER - grounds, or outside our statutory purview.

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R




AERAFRINFABIBRF - TEWOT :

s BRAEREERZVFARETR (88FR)

s REMNERZFERBEBHNRHER (28FR)
ENR2EAE
&

CIEBIY 3T87 - BEFEE MR AEE - 7] LET
[VIXE] @ WACESHRFRAZERASE -
ERINEF AN Z - BPIAEERREN T 5
BAAAEE-—REENIRFEZR - M T—E#
TERRENEZEAS - RMCEEEERF RS
Wwhe &) -

E17MREUBR A A EEZNEZRS - HME335
R (1518.9%) REBESHBETREZE ° 8

FANEMT AERNRFERNFADGET
N TR
E2HAE
R AR AEM S RRAINERRE - BETK

KE  BIRFERBR - TS| LR RS2
K - AREBRAB L EHEREERANE
HNAES  ZAMEgEME2EAS -

iy
complaints

Key groups of topical complaints received by the Office this year
include:

e Unfair treatment to a virtual asset trading platform (88 cases)

e Lack of reply to objection to a development project (28 cases)
Inquiry and Full Investigation
Inquiry

The Ordinance provides that for the purposes of determining
whether to undertake a full investigation, the Ombudsman may
conduct such “preliminary inquiries” as he considers appropriate.
In the interest of complainants, we often use this procedure to
resolve complaint cases of a general nature more quickly, without
unnecessarily resorting to the more time-consuming action of full
investigation. For simplicity, we call this "inquiry”.

Among the 1,771 inquiry cases concluded, inadequacies were
found in 335 (18.9%). Detailed statistics of complaints concluded
by inquiry are given in Appendix 6.

Full Investigation
For complex cases which appear to involve issues of principle,
serious maladministration, gross injustice, systemic flaws or

procedural deficiencies, or simply require deeper and fuller
probing, we will conduct full investigation.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24




®E

Complaints

EAREFE - RFEENEAFAE A AEEZNE In the year, we conducted 95 full investigations. Results are as
FEZRLESRE  £RWT - follows:

B2HEAEERNRFERSE
Results of Complaints Concluded by Full Investigation

u 43.2% B TRGL
uUnsubstantiated
Bk aL

27.4% [
Partially substantiated
14.7% [l EFTAKIL - BHE S AR
Unsubstantiated but other inadequacies found
126% [l P
Substantiated
21% [ EFERLESFAE
Withdrawn or discontinued

FEBRT LrERATERNERFERES 1§ As shown above, 54.7% of the complaints concluded by full
54 7% & [ ] ~ [#B9 A =k 3% investigation were substantiated, partially substantiated or
SRR - BESBRRK] o unsubstantiated but with other inadequacies found.

\@ FIREE 2023/24 3
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REAAERBENTHRXREER
Forms of Maladministration Substantiated by Full Investigation

o~
'l

NREETHREEAER - 2T HEEE - BE
2024F3A31H - Ae7EEH D EAMS HP R
EMTRABEE  HSI3ERMEZ RS -

REEATRERNERKRZESHNHES

BEHFEERRERER

EFEER REBEHNNIET257RER - Bi&5
EPI50RERENRAEH © tesh - HAERT
102R A% - LER 10T RERER RIRARE °

20.2% [l Hish - BRIRTHER
Error, wrong advice or decision

14.6% FERR SR RIITH
Delay or inaction
14.6% EETH
Ineffective control
10.4% Wl TEREFHE
Failure to follow procedures
8.3% W 4EEER
Lack of response
6.2% ] HEHZ  BRKERNBER
Negligence, omissions
6.2% | FER - BETAA
Disparity in treatment & unfairness
4.2% HAth
[ Others
42% W EFTX
Faulty procedures
21% [ BIERERXE
Poor staff attitude

We made 80 recomme

ndations upon completing the full

investigations with 67 accepted by the concerned departments
or organisations for implementation and 13 under consideration

as at 31 March 2024.

An index of cases concluded by full investigation is in Appendix 7.

Summaries of selected cases concluded by full investigation is

in Appendix 8.

Re-assessment and Review of Cases

During the year we re-assessed 257 cases, with 150 cases

subsequently re-opened
Conclusions were upheld

. Moreover, we reviewed 102 cases.
for all these cases except one.
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202324 EE1TIREEZNRTEHFE

EAFE  BfEREESH - &5 - BENTENE
WO ENMABRGEFHE T2ES -

Achievement of Performance Pledges 2023/24

All targets of our service standards in handling enquiries,
complaints, re-assessment and review of complaints were fully

e

Complaints

met.

PRAEIZZE
Service Standard

AEIEE
Target

Achievement

AU AR S5ETERA 99% 100% (BIZ)
Acknowledge receipt of a complaint Within 5 working days (exceed target)
B ABEESGE - LY PTERERNES 10{E Z{ERA 90% 99.7% (FBfZ)
(HES Within 10 working days (exceed target)
Close a complaint case which is outside our — 15fBIZ{EXRA 99% 100% (EB1Z)
statutory purview after initial assessment Within 15 working days (exceed target)
TERIR AR AR 3MEAR 80% 86.5% (HB1Z)
Cconclude a complaint case Within 3 months (exceed target)
6B AN 99% 99.1% (EF)
Within 6 months (meet target)

&H# BRI 1R % AHER EE=R
Enquiries Service Standard Target Achievement
REEEEH SETERA 95% 100% (%)
Reply to a written enquiry Within 5 working days (exceed target)
10 TVERA 99% 100% (EBIZ)

EXNFENERERSF

Re-assessment and review of complaints

Within 10 working days

i8R
Service Standard

AEIEE
Target

(exceed target)

EEE
Achievement

TR EMTEER 1MEAR A 95% 100% (EBIZ)
Complete re-assessment of a complaint case  Within 1 month (exceed target)
2@ A A 99% 100% (FB1%)
Within 2 months (exceed target)
TER BRI A A 2R 3EA A 70% 78.8% (HB1F)
Complete review of a complaint case Within 3 months (exceed target)
6@ AR 90% 97.1% (#BIZ)

wg %é y FREE 2023/24 3§
\‘\\

Within 6 months

(exceed target)
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Judicial Review and Litigation

A complainant not satisfied with this Office's conclusion may,
apart from requesting a review by this Office, seek a judicial review
by the court. During the year, three litigation cases against The
Ombudsman were heard by the court with judgments handed
down. All judicial review cases have been ruled in this Office’s
favour.

HR

Brief description of the litigation case

WRATREBEFEELL (EHD) FE8i KM FR2
RIKBNZEBELFARE - B e ABZT
af o

A complainant applied for leave to apply for
judicial review against The Ombudsman’s
decision on not taking up his complaint on
the basis of section 8 and Schedule 2 of the
Ordinance.

Judgement by the court

o  RINERER2022F 11 AEBE R

o HFBABZIBERERFLFFA J:pJ%/jzi}?BA2023¢11ﬂ
BEHEBF  WHSHFEEEBNE -

o HPFARLFEEAAERD LFFTA - REDEHET
i oo

e The application was refused by the Court of First
Instance in November 2022.

e In November 2023, the Court of Appeal dismissed the
Applicant’s application for leave to appeal against the
Court's decision with costs awarded to The Ombudsman.

e Applicant’'s application for leave to appeal against the
decision of the Court of Appeal is in progress.

5 A BL B AR 5 B R IR H AR G R ) 3E AR A Y
KMBEEH - REaDABZATH o

A complainant applied for leave to apply for
judicial review against The Ombudsman’s
handling of his complaint by making an
enquiry with an entity which was not subject
to his complaint.

o  RINEREMR2022F 12 AEBE RS ©

o HFABKIBARERFE LFETA o EaFEER20234F8 A
BEHES|FERENRD - WHESHEFEEESAE -

o HNHEEEMBABARBHEEZEFHER - WiK20245F2
REERERE ©

e The application was refused by the Court of First
Instance in December 2022.

e Applicant applied for leave to appeal against the Court’s
decision. His application to adduce new evidence was
dismissed by the Court of Appeal in August 2023 with
costs awarded to The Ombudsman.

e The Ombudsman accepted the Applicant’s request to
dismiss the proceedings and approval from the Court
was obtained in February 2024.

&uﬁ/\ﬁvﬁﬂé EEAREAKRFIRERER
A complainant made a civil claim against The
Ombudsman for not taking up his complaint.

o  M2023FN1MA - RINVAEERZEBERRREBEN -
BENEREEETAB  JIREAZR IﬁEAEﬁpﬁ—rA
FEEINE o

o RABABLZIBRTE RH LFATA - REGDEETE ©

e The claim was struck out by the Court of First Instance
in November 2023 on the grounds of being frivolous,
vexatious and abuse of process with costs awarded to
The Ombudsman.

e  Plaintiff's application for leave to appeal against the
Court’s decision is in progress.
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GE=Ei): What is Mediation?
AR B R BERR A 4 705 - PTDAREE R A Mediation is an efficient and amiable means of dispute
BRI ok R B R IT R & RIIR FF B2 o resolution which can resolve complaints involving minor or no
maladministration.
F R I

Advantages of Mediation

=) = AR =

RiE JEEI ST fRRFZ AR EHER
Efficient Non-adversarial Solution-focused Win-win

F R T
Procedures of Mediation

Bl 4% Fal o

Ve AT R S BSRAZ IR A MR AE# - ERERE L 51 am RN F KA 1T /Y
B ER HEER2ENEE FHETT 78 i S
Identify suitable cases > Seek prior consent from > Conduct mediation > Discuss problems
for mediation both the complainant in person, through and explore possible

and the organisation telephone or online options for resolution

under complaint for
voluntary participation

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, N
ERE BRI OB IBE OR FEETKY © BREREETENEZHIRFAD
Reach a mutually acceptable Assign another case officer to take over the
settlement agreement complaint and examine it afresh in case of

unsuccessful mediation

FREE 2023/24 3§
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Mediation

NEWNI/ERE our Performance

EARFE  NENFARLERIINGS ABENK This year marked another fruitful chapter in our mediation
& BRINFARR T 187 IR © endeavours, in which we resolved 187 complaints by mediation.

BZRNARERNWEREKE (2023/24FEF)
Top Five Organisations with Complaints Resolved by Mediation (2023/24)

37 (19.8%)

30 (16.0%)
0 (10.7%)
17 (9.1%)
I I 13 (7.0%)

RYERE FEE EE Bzi%ﬂ A&
BEE HD BD D FiNES
FEHD CsO

BPPY RIS S 2 T KT 8 -
Full names of departments and
organisations are in Appendix 1.

A Bh Al 2R 30 Bl Hh AR RIS EF o £2023/244F By conducting mediation, complaints could be resolved amicably
- NS ASRNRFERZFHESR13.5  within a short period of time. In 2023/24, the average time taken
X to resolve a complaint by way of mediation was 13.5 days.

BINABERNMEE (2023/24FEF)
Nature of Complaints Resolved by Mediation (2023/24)

“““ 33.9%
29.4%

15.8%

12.7%

2.3%

1.8%

1.4%

0.9%

0.9%

0.9%

JERR L

A RETE

Delay or inaction

i

BRICRTEHR

Error, wrong advice or decision

2A [

eI E

Lack of response to complaint

BB

7

Ineffective control

RET

37
k=g

Faulty procedures

WMELR

CBRKERNBR

Negligence, omissions

BRE

Poor staff attitude

FiE

- BEIA

Disparity in treatment, unfairness

T\_EE
Failure

Hith
Others

FrisE
to follow procedures
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AE&EMWIEEAEEE Positive Feedback from Users

FEERRINE - AEBGUMBRAE T NBBRFAR Upon successful conclusion of mediation, we invited the

SHEBES ZHABARRBENER - EAFE - complainants and participating organisations to share their

B2% X EIMBEMIZFARSHERBRNHEAE feedback with us through our questionnaire survey. Over 92% of

B SRR AR T S 94% R Tom B A E i iE B R - the respondent complainants and participating organisations were

EorrrameramT satisfied with our mediation service and over 94% were satisfied
with the performance of our mediators. Some of the comments
we received are as follows:

@@ [EREHSRBEAAS BNEHGUSHER  BHRN | LU REREERANE
B snmepapessT

@ “Your services will definitely alleviate grievances of complainants created by
@4 red tape and rigid routine deficiencies.”

@@ [TORHEFHEARAYERMASRNAELGR - STRFNSENLEEF -

@ “Extremely helpful & polite, and most of all professional, save a lot of efforts
@" for us.”

@@ [BEORARESARER  RATHABOE SR EEU ARSI NEN TS AR THAE
B = g eREa R R AT NS - |

@@ “It is my great pleasure to appreciate your staff's invaluable service. Her
efficient service in handling my case has made a successful settlement.”

[ CERRBIETNERMAMNE ZLR - A0 MA O EREUR % 77 RBR L&
@_,@ ERMEZRRBLZD  RTHRE-FPHER  ARETAENBASTR  SHEHNR
IR TR A AR o

& "We deeply appreciate the open lines of communication and regular updates
@,Q provided by your office. We are truly grateful for the effort taken by your team
to help us resolve the complaint.”

[AFBET A RER BT - RRERERHTABRERIEFR - TOXHRAAES

RBRBFATHENEE - ERAEFIRENFTRAMBANEE  PUMMALEN - B8

@@ MAAKTT ~ FRERNENARFRERENEEHFH EARARNERELEZRILEDN

FE  REHEERENERHE  KRERENBENFERTR - KERFZBHAMEK - £
ERGAREFR - FETERRAUENERYR

@@3 [EERAANCETERBSTOBRITRE  ZE2EBHEANSE  F55
TR B A EEITN AT RIBSHLE  BHRORAB Y HKE - |

[T RRET —BRE  KAMGEFEHFRONDR - +9 FRAABE T ARREK
@@ FANEE - AREEFBRBIETEERNRE  BHATRABENEX ML) - UL (E
ZA]JER RN © ]

' FREE 2023/24 3§
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A i 82 Award on Mediation

NEB2018FBIERFH B FZ A A EI T B RA To acknowledge the participating organisations’ commitment to
fREE - URBER N2 WA KRR EMAERE o and excellence in mediation, we have introduced an Award on
Mediation in The Ombudsman’s Award since 2018.

2018 - FEZ & Housing Department
@ TEIR O A B AT R R R AR o

For proactive attitude towards our invitation to mediation.

KRS EREE - BIRF AR BARENER R
For adopting a pragmatic approach in exploring win-win solutions by jointly resolving problems with the
complainants.

@ 2019 - BYIREEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

2020 - TR RER 24 EBS#5E Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency
MR ERFABEINEE - TMREBE R EERIEN T RABRIRIE o

For swiftly responding to the complainants’ concerns and providing pragmatic and constructive suggestions
for complaint resolution.

@

2021 - EF 2 Buildings Department

LUBMTZB M RARERIEFABEEIEBER - 2 LETHERFIMOMER - mEkmRe kFz il
FEIRTTVE ©

For explaining to complainants in clear and plain terms its enforcement policies, procedures and even
technicalities in respect of in-situ inspection techniques to eliminate misunderstandings and hence shift
from disputes to solutions.

@

2022 - B4 L= E Leisure and Cultural Services Department

REEIER - RO BRI AM AT AR EEMRE MR EANEH - WALBRIRFARZNAR °

For promptly and proactively responding to the complainants’ enquiries and queries relating to frontline
operations and services and for willingness to explore suggestions raised by the complainants.

@

2023 - BRI AR A E Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office

RO ERFATEEREARRBSHERNTEDFEINEEEN - WIREEFEZR S EMMER T RENS
P e

For swiftly informing the complainants of the progress of their applications for Government subsidies provided
during the pandemic and providing a dedicated hotline for checking the progress of the case at
any time.

@
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Access to Information

RENBEEERERR (2REM TR
(T <sFRD ] ) mRERRARAZ -

N FE R BUA

(PR RBFHRBO—ETEIES - RERER
YRS BB P 2 & RS R 18 W S R R B Sk R4
EREMER - BRIEE (TR HIIREREEE
a2 -

BRARERNRHR

BFH ST BFRR » IEENRMER B MR
EEREKF - EELE - BRFEMARIBRF
MERIRAEDH - ERFE - RBRIF AR
EHNBRFERRBTIIR - EEREENT2R Y
RARAERMONERT  RFHREFIAF23R
(32%) BTRZEE °

One of our functions is to investigate complaints on non-
compliance with the Code on Access to Information (“the Code”).

Transparent Government

The Code is a set of administrative guidelines adopted by the
Government. Government departments and public bodies to which
the Code applies are required to provide information they hold
routinely or on request, unless there are specific reasons under
the Code to withhold it.

complaints on Access to Information

Government statistics show that refused information requests
have been staying at relatively low levels. In fact, only a small
portion of refused requests have ended up as complaints to our
Office. During the year, we received only 79 complaints about
cases related to access to information (“ATI"). Among the 72
ATI complaints concluded, inadequacies were found in only 23
cases (32%).

BERFIRAFERNIRFEE
Number of ATI Complaints in the Past Five Years

I (<P BB
Organisations covered
by the Code

B (SRR SREEE AN
MR
Organisations not covered

108

by the Code 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

@ E3FEE 2023/24 F 1§
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Access to Information

BRAMERNIEHR (2023F4818E2024F3 831 A BREAMNE T &IE)
ATI Complaints (Statistics between 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024)

(=Bl RENHAE (<Al REEE L IMIHAE
Organisations covered by Organisations not covered

the Code by the Code

BRI RER

. : 64 15
Complaints received
AR ER 66 6
Complaints concluded*
* BERLFEEANER * Including those carried forward from last year

TRABERNKRFHERANTEZEEHE
Number of Inadequacies Found in ATI Complaints

8(28.6%) [ @B ZEERESLEDE
Failure to meet target response time or no response

8 (28.6%) RAREFE2HNIEBIE MRS BNEBERAR

' 42 t_l_ AR _
e Failure to provide Part 2 reason for refusal or lack of
Total elaboration on reason cited for refusal
4 (14.3%) [ 2BEBNIRFANERIISHTRE
Failure to inform complainant of channels for internal

review or complaint

2 (7.0%) 4 (SRR MIRGEERRR
Wrong interpretation of provision of the Code

1(3.6%) || RecLRES| AR MbEEH
Inappropriate Part 2 reason cited for refusal

13.6%) EIRPBIRHER
Unreasonable refusal

4(14.3%) W ?ﬁﬁrs

o —RERFEARAELSREBTNEZRE ° Note: A complaint case may involve more than one inadequacy.

BRAFERNERZRFAEREESZAINRABNE The reports of selected ATI cases are available on our website.
BIE o
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Improving Public Administration

REBEB MR T EOFEL L I ERFOREA
RIERRABRMA MR R ERBITHRREM

SIEAmAMEE - A RBER IR TFHAHRTT
B e
NRERHOZZIZDRATER

(1) BIEEBHIES - EEFEE S —BMERER
SXENES BEFI R0 p 38 B B Bk

S

(3) HMEREMREHIINFHIEE

(4) MERPIREER

(5) InE#RE REH &S IE

(6) FINFE)EMIAMAIEAER R IKE

(7) ATmRIEHEERMESHNER

(8) hns& B T3

9 Efth
BRERAZNEREERRBEBRE A HEITH -
NEETHSHME KBTS FIEED
BEABRASNERMERER -

SERMSHFIREEHRRIRE - UE
RRABNEBNEELE HERZEWMEER
ke MBERMFPREBNEZERZS - FREEA
R &G - MITBRREER®ME < W &
BMASEERENTER TR FEHELE - A
RAITBRERERXZ—MHEE  LEHE @A
FITHREEEENERERA - B REHXARE
RIEGEE -

FREE 2023/24 3§

Through impartial investigations, we aim to find out what have
triggered complaints, redress grievances and address issues
arising from maladministration on the part of Government
departments or public organisations and bring about better public
administrative practices.

Our recommendations are mainly categorised as follows:
(1) guidelines for clarity, consistency or efficiency in operation

incentives to foster inter-departmental co-ordination and
arrangements for enhancement

~
)

(3) measures for better public enquiry or complaint handling
(4) measures for better client services

(5) measures for more effective regulation or control

(6) clearer and more reasonable rules and charges

(7) clearer and more timely information to the public

(8) enhanced training for staff

(9) Others

To ensure practicability and effectiveness of our recommendations
in bringing about better public administration, we often discuss
our observations and views with senior officers of the departments
or organisations concerned in the course of investigation.

We will monitor the progress of implementation of our
recommendations by requesting periodical updates from
the departments or organisations concerned until our
recommendations are fully implemented. Where a department
or an organisation fails to take forward a recommendation,
the Ombudsman may submit a report to the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region pursuant to the
Ordinance. In addition, if the Ombudsman deems that a serious
irregularity or injustice has taken place, he may make a further
report to the Chief Executive. Within one month or such longer
period as the Chief Executive may determine, a copy of the report
has to be laid before the Legislative Council.



REEFEAETANAE RIRHHNEZNH A
W

EERRER
Under consideration

REMESA

Total number of
recommendations

186

TR THRHEASE :
Full investigations concluded: 9 5

RHERZ
Recommendations made: 8 O

—ILAE - RERHNEZRS RSP
BEW - DB EREARREAIZETRA R
FISBIR R AT e B BB BRORTTE - T8l
EITSIBIRFNTE - fINCE AR IE - &
AR ERMAZEZZNE

EAFEE CDREXREEINEZEHNHEN

% /NE Chapter 6

REAHITH
Improving Public Administration

The figures of our concluded investigations and recommendations
made for this financial year are set out below:

TEEZRNER
Not accepted

BEEMTIVEENEZ
Accepted for implementation

TR TOEHRETH -
Direct investigation operations concluded: 1 O

Recommendations made: 1 06

As always, most of our recommendations were accepted. A
small percentage of them were not accepted or implemented
because the departments or organisations concerned might
have subsequently come up with other alternatives or our
recommended measures were no longer needed as the action
having caused a complaint would not be repeated due to, for
instance, cease of their relevant work.

Major examples of the improvement measures implemented in
this financial year are listed in Appendix 9.
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Spreading Our Message

EAFEE  REEBETEEERE B8R [&
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BARRTHAFHEETERELMOTEAL
o AR TRIPAESTHINER - HATE
WERALBATHFHETY  UBFL2RERE
8.

This year, we rolled out an array of promotional activities,
including a publicity campaign under the theme of "Hong
Kong Needs a Clear Mirror”. Our contacts with stakeholders,
through meetings, visits, talks, etc., turned more active. We
staged a youth advertising contest for the first time to deepen
youngsters’ knowledge of our work. On the global level,
international ombudsman institutions resumed face-to-face
meetings and conferences while keeping the on-line format to
facilitate exchange of ideas and experience sharing.

Media Events and Press Releases

We organised four press conferences and issued two press
releases to announce the results of ten direct investigation
operations. We also declared the launch of five direct
investigation operations to invite public views on the topics
involved.

@ HEFEE 2023/24 £
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BEAENENR
Spreading Our Message

New Publicity Campaign

A new publicity campaign with the theme of “Hong Kong Needs
a Clear Mirror” was launched in October 2023, with outdoor
advertisings and social media initiatives. Throughout the years,
our Office has been acting like a clear mirror when handling
public complaints: we examine complaint cases in an impartial
manner, reveal the facts as they are, make objective and
unbiased comments, and then put forward recommendations
for improvement. The ultimate goal is to lift the standard of
public administration.

Q@eene . BY AFE BB 22

INDEPENDENT IMPARTIAL  OBJECTIVE

EREZHE
X B 5 [EUs R

Hong Kong Needs AlClear Mirror
Objectively Pointing OUBDEficiencies

oQv

21 likes

ombudsman_hk [B3551E 1S
B, REOHTEEBEFY]

YERAEHTE - e, REFRMENE
W, BOEERE, &5, REAFR
BRI TEF RS Q|

ERFREEORERFR, DRETEE
F=Q, SREELESEHHEE
FriE, RHIEOMIERRE, RUEBGT
EPFY. AEMEIEHNE, SENER
RS, EHEAGE, AERRFHTEUK
F amRRAE A B
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Spreading Our Message

AR THERFEERAREE

RMBN M EREEABNIIE  HEMREE
EHRF LRI ERHT -

Engagement with Local Working
Partners and Public Education

We are committed to reaching out to all sectors of the
community to nurture a positive complaint culture and share
our experience.

N2

1L

g

BT EBFT R R AR 3 T 13RO E

& A
E B fEA M TE - WO ZEHPIRILREFE

(BFERN
N
RES o

Z«(

Sharing Sessions

We delivered 13 experience-sharing sessions to different
government departments and public organisations to
promulgate our mission and scope of work and share our
experience in complaint handling.
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Spreadlng Our I\/Iessage

School Talks

We wish to nurture among the youngsters a positive culture on
expressing opinions and an understanding of the importance of
good public administration. To enhance their understanding of
our Office, we organised altogether 16 school talks attracting
2,500 students to attend.

BOFLE

NEAARFEENFRRETERA [ [R] —K
BEEFES] NESHLE HESTLFR
FAETHHEZMN - HMKSIRBE26HERE
BI00 ML BIEM °

Youth Contest

A Youth Contest named “YOUTH CREATE e A better Hong Kong”
calling for advertising initiatives was launched in the fourth
quarter to educate the younger generation on the importance
of good public administration in civic society. Over 300 entries
from 26 schools were received.
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BERBMNFTARRERERRE

B iE

2024F3 R - REBEHE BB BMRIBHEEA
NEHEHARENZRBEHITHERBEZ R E MY
BIKHERNEL -

Leadership Forum of the Professional
Development Programme for Newly-appointed
Principals by the Education Bureau

At a leadership forum organised by the Education Bureau
in March 2024, we shared views on the essentials of
administrative management and qualities of leaders with over
90 newly appointed principals.

AFEEMRFEE SFTHEBEMRER2023F11 A7

FERBNEEIRARERLRE © »I MIEERE
RBUERERREMEREERD - BRI AREA
ZRIERFFEE o ptoh - 62BN A BRREDE -
KEMPERBTRIENSHRE -
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The Ombudsman’s Awards

The Presentation Ceremony of The Ombudsman’s Awards this
year was held on 15 November 2023.

This year's Grand Award went to the Immigration Department,
whereas the Efficiency Office and the Hospital Authority were
the runners-up. The Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office
received the Award on Mediation. In addition, 62 public officers
were given the individual awards to recognise their exemplary
performance in public service.

BREERABABRE - AF
AT —MI5EE -

For the full list of awardees,
please scan the following QR
code.
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Spreading Our Message

Overseas and Mainland Liaison

We maintain close ties with our counterparts on the Mainland
and worldwide.

On 11 September 2023, our delegation attended the Board
of Directors’ meeting of the Asian Ombudsman Association
("AOA") and its General Assembly in Kazan, Tatarstan, Russia.
Our Office was re-elected as the Secretary of AOA.

We participated in the 35th Members’ Meeting and a
conference held by the Australasian Pacific Ombudsman Region
of the International Ombudsman Institute in Melbourne on 31
October and 1 November 2023.

Our Office was invited to attend the 2" South East Asia
Ombudsman Forum Plus Meeting held in Yogyakarta, Indonesia
on 8 November 2023 for experience-sharing.

We received the delegation from the National Supervisory
Commission led by Mr Cai Wei, Director General, Department of
International Cooperation, on 29 November 2023, during their
visit to Hong Kong. We exchanged updates on our achievements
of work in recent years and experiences of participating in
activities at regional and international levels.
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our Office

A E BRERK

RET R #EF2019BRBEZHEROLER - 5
FoRENEFEZEER

HMERBITHEENEY —XBROAT NE
B RES - BE2024F3A31H - RFAERHIA

BR123 -
L—

AT w5l

Staff complement

123

1% 5 K2 3% R

BB B S R b0 RIS E UL - L
RIS T BB REIRS

. FIRBEBABABRE

o ABIEEHE BHFABNBEEIRR
ERARA T {E

o BENMERFEBREIEY  ABRLRIFS
PA R R AR B 5 8 g 15 o) |

s MWEMEBMASLEMNIIEY

SO - B LB E 2 EAREEIE RB IR
WL ERRIE - DA MR T TIERRGEE -

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R

Embracing a Better Future

Our operation returned to normalcy this year after the challenge
of the COVID-19 pandemic over the previous few years.

We continued to nurture and develop a healthy contingent of
investigation officers and supporting staff. As at 31 March 2024,
we have a staff complement of 123.

33% [l EEMAE

Directorate

528% || #EAE
Investigation

43.9% THBEZEAB

Administrative & Support

Training and Development

We are committed to building our professional capacity and
fostering a learning culture by offering diversified learning and
training opportunities:

induction training for new investigators

e atutoring scheme for junior investigators to facilitate their
settlement in the job

e respective workshops on mediation and complaint handling,
an experience sharing session on mediation cases, and in-
depth and professional training in mediation

e a workshop on cyber security awareness against phishing
emails and messages

We also arranged staff to attend online or classroom management
and vocational training offered by other organisations to enhance
their work knowledge and job skills.
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Our Office

We invited the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data to conduct a workshop for our staff on the protection of
personal privacy in our work context.

We arranged our staff to join a “National Studies Course” at Peking
University for deepening their understanding of national policies
and development. Another group of our staff attended a “National
Education Programme” in Shenzhen. Our staff members attended
related seminars organised by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region from time to time. In-house briefings
were also held to deepen staff's understanding of the importance
of and responsibility for safeguarding national security.

To keep staff abreast of the best practices and latest trends in
complaint handling in different jurisdictions, we ran workshops on
the “Ombudsman Self-Assessment Tool”. In addition, we sent staff
to attend online or physical conferences organised by overseas
ombudsman institutions to broaden their horizons.

Employee Wellness

We care for the wellbeing of our staff and have implemented
an Employee Wellness Programme, which offered coaching
and counselling to our staff to help them achieve personal
and professional effectiveness. We organised staff wellness
workshops, aiming to empower them with positive energy for
positive living.

Feedback on Our Service

Members of the public not satisfied with our services should
write to our dedicated Chief Manager, who will oversee the
Administration and Development Division's independent inquiry
into such complaints. Complaints regarding our investigation
findings and conclusions will be taken up by the relevant
Investigation Divisions under our existing mechanism for review
of cases.
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(REREEEA) MRASIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

BRXFREF S
in alphabetical order

F1ED KB (F397F) MR1FE1IBETTIEATZBPT
Part 1: Government Departments Listed in Part 1 of Schedule 1, Cap. 397

BB Government Department &% Abbreviation
BEBARERE

AERERERE NAAREEEEE Al registries and administrative offices of courts and  JA

Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department  AFCD

BB o RITH S tribunals for which the Judiciary Administrator has
responsibility
REE Architectural Services Department ArchSD
Bt E Audit Commission Aud
BEaan (BATErT) Auxiliary Medical Service (Government department) ~ AMS
EFE Buildings Department BD
BT &R 5T B Census and Statistics Department C&SD
REBZ2REE (BATEBPT) Civil Aid Service (Government department) CAS
REME Civil Aviation Department CAD
TARIEBHRREE Civil Engineering and Development Department CEDD
NajEfE Companies Registry CR
BHE Correctional Services Department CcsD
EBEE Customs and Excise Department C&ED
BEE Department of Health DH
I A] Department of Justice Do)
RiEE Drainage Services Department DSD
WETIZE Electrical and Mechanical Services Department EMSD
RIBRES Environmental Protection Department EPD
M=l Fire Services Department FSD
RYDBRBEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department FEHD
THRRENRAERHE General Office of the Chief Executive’s Office CEO
TR 1T AR 755 B Government Flying Service GFS
B LB T Government Laboratory GovtlLab
B 7 PR 7% 2 Government Logistics Department GLD
HINEXE Government Property Agency GPA
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(EHEREERD) MRAIIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

BB Y Government Department &% Abbreviation
T 4 T Government Secretariat GS

- BRI RRPAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office CSO

- BB AR RAIABAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Private CSPO

Office

- REEEBR — Civil Service Bureau CSB

- AR REEERR — Commerce and Economic Development Bureau  CEDB

- B R A TS — Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau CMAB

- LB B KRB - Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau CSTB

- BRB - Development Bureau DEVB

-HER — Education Bureau EDB

-IRIEBREER — Environment and Ecology Bureau EEB

- BRARERHAE - Financial Secretary’s Office FSO

- WRARRALARAE - Financial Secretary's Private Office FSPO

- I EBREBED - Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau FSTB

-BRELER — Health Bureau HHB

-REBREEFEBR — Home and Youth Affairs Bureau HYAB

-BER - Housing Bureau HB

- BRI R TER — Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau’ ITIB

- BIRBEMNB — Labour and Welfare Bureau LWB

- ERAIRIRPAE - Secretary for Justice’s Office SJO

-RELB - Security Bureau SB

- B RYRE - Transport and Logistics Bureau TLB
BIE Highways Department HyD
RBEBBE Home Affairs Department HAD
BERBRXAE Hong Kong Observatory HKO
EEZE Housing Department HD
ANBEER Immigration Department ImmD
B EE Information Services Department ISD
B Inland Revenue Department IRD
MBERESE Intellectual Property Department IPD
REHES Invest Hong Kong InvestHK
NigRaENBEERRBEMHZFAZ  Joint Secretariat for the Advisory Bodies on Civil JSSCS
BEgMaMER Service and Judicial Salaries and Conditions of

Service
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Ft4%1 Appendix 1

CRFREBERD) MERAIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

BB Y Government Department &% Abbreviation
BTR Labour Department LD
THEEM R Land Registry LR
N BE Lands Department LandsD
EEERE Legal Aid Department LAD
RER L EEE Leisure and Cultural Services Department LCSD
HER Marine Department MD
BASEBEERNRAE Office of the Communications Authority OFCA
WEERE Official Receiver’s Office ORO
REIE Planning Department PlanD
HHE Post Office PO
BEBEA Radio Television Hong Kong RTHK
ZEGHES Rating and Valuation Department RVD

R ETEE Registration and Electoral Office REO
tEEANE Social Welfare Department SWD
TXZE5E Trade and Industry Department TID
EHE Transport Department ™
EE#%5E Treasury Try
REHEEDNZESWER University Grants Committee, Secretariat UGC
KIGE Water Supplies Department WSD
ERBRREMEBEENETRE Working Family and Student Financial Assistance WFSFAA

Agency

288 &P (B397F) MIR1B1EPATIREHE
Part 2: Public Organisations Listed in Part 1 of Schedule 1, Cap. 397

Public Organisation

f&5%8 Abbreviation

SRR EIERBD Accounting and Financial Reporting Council AFRC

IS EE R Airport Authority AA

BRI (FEBUFERFT) Auxiliary Medical Service (non-Government AMS
department)

RRZ2REH GEBUTEEFT) Civil Aid Service (non-Government department) CAS

GREBLZEY Competition Commission comC

HEELRE® Consumer Council cc
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(EHEREERD) MRAIIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

Public Organisation

5% Abbreviation

EEHEIB Employees Retraining Board ERB
TE#ELTES Equal Opportunities Commission EOC
HWEREEER Estate Agents Authority EAA
BREMERD Hong Kong Arts Development Council HKADC
BEEFEEZESR Hong Kong Housing Authority HKHA
BEAEERE Hong Kong Housing Society HKHS
EEeRERRB Hong Kong Monetary Authority HKMA
BREEERARA A Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited HKSIL
BRERER Hospital Authority HA
REBEEEER Insurance Authority 1A
NEEE AR Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation KCRC
SMEEWER Legislative Council Secretariat LCS
wElIE A AEEETEIBEER Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority MPFA
BAAERILEZZES Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data PCPD
YXBEEEER Property Management Services Authority PMSA
BALREEBEREZES Securities and Futures Commission SFC
BEBEARFTZB The Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment HKEAA
Authority
IREEELE B Travel Industry Authority TIA
MEEED Urban Renewal Authority URA
B AR B Vocational Training Council VTC
AAXERERD West Kowloon Cultural District Authority WKCDA

Bl (F397F) MIFR1F2EPPIFIEE

Organisations Listed in Part 2 of Schedule 1, Cap. 397

i Organisation &% Abbreviation
BB ERK Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force HKAPF

BBEBR Hong Kong Police Force HKPF

BRBAZE Independent Commission Against Corruption ICAC
AGERAZEGWER Secretariat of the Public Service Commission PSC

1. BIFTRIRE - BN EMBREENAERSERRERAERBRIFBRERIER -
Note 1. The Innovation and Technology Commission, the Office of the Government Chief Information Officer and the Efficiency Office
are under the Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau.
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YRR FIRER TRERENIER
Circumstances where Complaints are not
Followed up or Investigated

FEZHFEERENITE - BBEFIFEI7EHNFR2
Actions not Subject to Investigation — Schedule 2, Cap. 397

1. RE - BhET Sk BIRR B R 1. Security, defence or international relations
2. THREFHBIELNITE 2. Actions by the Chief Executive personally
3. TTHRBTEENREFEIL 3. Exercise of power by the Chief Executive to pardon
4. BUSHERENM - RE SIS criminals
5. EEERFHREERARIRE 4.  Grantof honours, awards or privileges by Government
6. BHIEHERS 5. Legal proceedings or prosecution decisions
7. ABEFEMNEH 6. Contractual or other commercial transactions
8. BN B T i as (R FR AR TE 7. Personnel matters
9. H (HFHARWE - A RRBRHEESTAD 8. Imposition or variation of conditions of land grant
BEMITE 9. Actionsin relation to Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
10. BEAHPERK  BEAEBRIERRAET and Mergers and Share Buy-backs
B 1k R & (] R 1T M BRI A 1T 8D 10. Crime prevention and investigation actions by the

Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force, the Hong Kong
Police Force or the Independent Commission Against
Corruption

FERFHIRS] — FEEHIZEI97ESE10(1)1%
Restrictions on Investigation of Complaints — Section 10(1), Cap. 397

1. BHFAHRFEED ABBB24EAH 1. Complainant having knowledge of subject of
2. KFBERERD complaint for more than 24 months
3. RIF AR TETH 2. Complaint made anonymously
4, RBFWIFHRIZEHATIGEE KR 3. Complainant not identifiable or traceable
5. ®aF AR EIEEEBW EEMBAR 4. Complaint not made by person aggrieved or suitable
6. WIFABREABBEEEZEZFRE EFFEK representative

A 5. Subject of complaint and complainant having no

connection with Hong Kong
6. Statutory right of appeal or remedy by way of legal
proceedings being available to complainant

RIFEEARAENEMABENER - BB EHIEI7EF10(2)1%F
Circumstances where The Ombudsman may Decide not to Investigate —
Section 10(2), Cap. 397

1. ATEAEEEAETAIRT - MAERERL 1. Investigation of similar complaints before revealed
BTN E 2R no maladministration

2. KRFBFHTRENS 2. Subject of complaint is trivial

3. KFEEHEEY EENFSIEERED 3. Complaint is frivolous or vexatious or is not made in

4, HEMBAMEEAE (A0 HREREE good faith
B FTAHREBIERIITE) - ST ARER 4. Investigation is, for any other reason, unnecessary
EZER) (such as lack of prima facie evidence, the organisation

involved is already taking action, or the complainant
iS just expressing opinions)
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EREHF
Caseload

BEFE
Reporting year"
21/22
& Enquiries 8,599 9,279 8,851 7,505 8,581
e Complaints
(a) EREMNRFER (a) For processing 4,979 5,951 5,626 30,713 20,737
- BRI R - Received 4,351[146] 5,357[233] 4,934[140]  29,814[25,155]  19,767[15,034]
-ALEFEEA ~ Brought forward 628 594 692 899 970
(b) BRI RARER (b) Completed 4,397[151] 5,323[254] 5,032[135] 30,021[25,155] 19,838[15,040]
BREVER Pursued and 2,053[8]  2,558[138]  2,739[102] 2,826[249] 2,807[326]
concluded
- RERBER - By inquiry? 1,771 2,112[119] 2,432(102] 2,480[246] 2,418[217]
- REERERER - By full investigation? 95[7] 141[16] 92 167[3] 240[109]
- R RER - By mediation* 1871] 305[3] 215 179 149
BABLER Assessed and closed  2,344[143]  2,765[116] 2,293[33] 27,195[24,906] 17,031[14,714]
- BEZRABERRES - Insufficient grounds to 1,470[110] 1,787(85] 1,171[6] 1,295[203] 8,676[7,496]
pursue’
- ZIEBIFRA G R E - Legally bounde 874(33] 978[31] 1,122(27)  25,900[24,703] 8,355[7,218]
(c) EXBMNBEHFRMERE AL (c) Percentage 88.3% 89.5% 89.4% 97.7% 95.7%
= (h)/(a) completed = (b)/(a)
() BETEE =(a)-(b) (d)Carried forward = 582 628 594 692 899
(a) - (b)
BERNEEAETHHE Direct investigation 10 9 8 9 10
operations completed
R
1. BEF4A1BE=ZF3A31H -
2. B (BRFREEEN) FNAKREN —MELENESE -
3. RE CRHFFEKAD) BR2GRENBRERNESR - R RBEENTERAE - THRER EARES -
4. RE CRFFEKRA) B1BERREMER - EP TP RITHAE - kR P REMITERELE ©
5. B CRFHFEKRD) F10Q&M T T RET ELARNER -
6. BRI (RFEERN) FEBEABHMERE - LZE10EMRTEHE -
[1 RTBREBEEZERFERNOEE -
Notes :
1. From 1 April to 31 March of the next year.
2. Pursued under section 11A of The Ombudsman Ordinance, for general cases.
3. Pursued under section 12 of The Ombudsman Ordinance, for complex cases possibly involving serious maladministration,

systemic flaws, etc.

Pursued under section 11B of The Ombudsman Ordinance, for cases involving no, or only minor, maladministration.
Not pursued and closed under section 10(2) of The Ombudsman Ordinance.

Outside the Office's jurisdiction under section 8 or restricted by section 10(1) of The Ombudsman Ordinance.
Number of topical complaints.

ook
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THRAETHHRERE

Case Synopses of Direct Investigation Operations

BipE

Transport Department

@’ {EIZ= 47 5%% Case No. : DI/456

FRREREATERRENNEREERE
wn

NERHEME
BEATEROKZAEM ( [BEFEAAML] )
AERH %*ﬁ‘ [BERALREFAZE] ( [FFA

El ) MBEEREEM - B2021F1H298H
o BHESERAUNERERERE [AHK

D

BEHTHIENRRADRERAE] ([EH
2J ) AN R EBMREREEN T RixE

TRNERKALHRTT - ZHERERK - BREA
m#mgxam SUBRE - TORALS G OE B R B %R
B - RERERYE - EREEHTEBEIED
BIZ - FHEAAI ORISR - BUBRAEN RS
PILEFITRERTTRITEE AR

NENEZR

HREERERTRN TRNEER  BRERED
AHEBEE ERRUM B K RHEIER © EHETE
FERBLERAERNAEL R ARE NG FEE
PHEHBREASHRFER  FHER - BEEA
EZRMERF R EFRAE WL - AL NRFE
RBIEEBTEEREBAENTS - REMS &
BEEE B RS B BIEUOAG PABZ I FF Al &
HERAETANELRIEF  FHEERRERRGIE
/»ﬁﬁ °
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AR RSB HED
in accordance with case numbers

1—I
---| SH B completed on : 25/4/2023

Measures and Usage of On-street Parking
Spaces Designated for People with Disabilities

Our findings

In the past, only drivers with disabilities holding the Disabled
Person’s Parking Permit ("DPPP") were entitled to use
the on-street parking spaces designated for people with
disabilities ("DPS”). With effect from 29 January 2021, the
Transport Department (“TD") introduced a new measure to
extend the eligibility for using DPS to holders of the Parking
Certificate for Drivers Who Carry People with Mobility
Disabilities (“Parking Certificate”) to facilitate the carrying
of specified persons with lower limb mobility disabilities.
The new measure has aggravated the shortfall in the supply
of DPS, and suspected cases of abuse is on the rise. Our
investigation found inadequacies in the Department’s
formulation of the new measure, assessment of the supply
and demand of DPS, processing of applications for Parking
Certificate, as well as prevention of abuse and handling of
complaints.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 11 recommendations to TD, including
that the Department should fully assess the supply and
demand of DPS; regularly survey the usage rates of DPS
and release the data to the public; comprehensively review
the eligibility and approval criteria for Parking Certificate
and the procedures for handling parking abuse; review
and strengthen measures against various forms of Parking
Certificate abuse. In the long run, TD should consider and
explore legislative amendments to address the discrepancies
between the DPPP and the Parking Certificate in terms of
approval procedures, eligibility criteria and conditions of use.
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Social Welfare Department
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FTEHRABTHHRERE
Case Synopses of Direct Investigation Operations

@ B =49 case No. : DI/457

a/

[REMERERTE
AERSHE
Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service
Voucher for the Elderly

REMHERERYSHBTE
NERHEME

REHERERES ( [HES] ) AR
[FIRAE] B XEBIREERLZ - B2
s - ARETENEELHA DR - OFES
BEE  BNAAREZR °

REFAEHER  HERMNE ( [LFE] ) DRRA
BIERREFAHRSHERE - ERHORE SRS
HRIBEREBETE  BoMENTLRRNREERE
AR - HERRAIRFEMETHEZRE
i ABARMEGR—UBHFA - ZBNEEF
RFAEABRRGEMOREANGFER - ARt
HANBEXRRNREEE -

NENEZR

RFEEMEFRENMENREER  BEEHARE
BEEMERHRFNALTRER - BB FIsRE
R BREZHBNHERERERREREZ S
DARRRBERE  SHEREFRAMBEENTZA
REFEXE  BERBEESRERRT MRS H
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Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service
Voucher for the Elderly

52X B# Completed on : 14/8/2023

Our findings

The Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service Voucher for
the Elderly supports frail elderly persons to age in place
under the “money-following-the-user” mode. Overall, the
Pilot Scheme had been enhanced in various ways with more
obvious progress in recent years. That said, there were still
areas for improvement.

Our investigation revealed that the Social Welfare
Department (“SWD") had taken effective steps to enhance
the utilisation rate of vouchers. While the supply and
demand of home-based services in different districts could
generally maintain a balance, there was a deficit of centre-
based services in some districts. SWD randomly interviewed
only one voucher holder in most of the service monitoring
visits at recognised service providers. The Department had
not maintained statistical information on voucher holders’
reasons for switching service providers. The Pilot Scheme
was rarely publicised through channels with a wide coverage.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 11 recommendations to SWD,
including approaching those voucher holders not using
the vouchers received and helping them choose suitable
service; inviting more organisations to offer more centre-
based service places in districts with keen demand;
providing more support to voucher holders without children
or carers; instructing its staff to conduct random interviews
with at least two users or their carers during each service
monitoring visit; understanding voucher holders’ reasons for
switching service providers; and considering arranging more
newspaper or television interviews with real cases cited to
promote voucher services.
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Education Bureau’s Monitoring of Boarding
Sections of Schools for Children with Intellectual
Disabilities

52 A B Completed on : 25/4/2023

Our findings

Some schools for children with intellectual disabilities
("ID") receiving aids from the Education Bureau (“EDB")
have boarding sections that provide boarding service to
children with moderate and severe ID. We found that, save
for stipulations on staffing establishment and provision of
funds, EDB had not laid down any details about operational
requirements, restrictions, or inspection in relation to these
boarding sections. EDB’s external school review (“ESR")
would not directly assess the operation of the boarding
sections either. Nevertheless, given the limited ability of
children with ID to communicate effectively, we consider
that EDB should ensure its effectiveness in monitoring
boarding sections and enhance the services of them, so as
to safeguard boarders’ welfare.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 12 recommendations to EDB,
including stipulating in the Practice Guide for Special
Schools on Planning and Managing Boarding Service the
basic requirements for certain aspects of boarding sections’
daily operation; requiring boarding sections to install CCTV
surveillance systems with recording function and conducting
random checks from time to time of those recorded
footages; including the use of physical restraint or seclusion
on boarders as an item for review during inspections, and
formulating detailed and rigorous guidelines for adopting
such interventions in boarding sections; providing guidelines
on the design and facilities of seclusion space in the boarding
section; including in ESR the observation of boarding
sections’ environment and boarders’ daily lives; arranging
surprise inspections at the boarding section and drawing
up key performance indicators; reviewing and broadening
the content of inspections; devising clear arrangements and
inspection indicators; exploring the feasibility of arranging
professionals and parents to participate in inspections;
and strictly requiring boarding sections to adhere to the
requirements for reporting serious or life-threatening
accidents.
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Government's Enforcement against Defective
Sewage Works of New Territories Exempted
Houses

Our findings

The enforcement responsibilities in respect of sewage works
of New Territories Exempted Houses (“NTEHS") scatter
among the Environmental Protection Department (“EPD"),
the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department and the
Lands Department (“LandsD”). Our investigation revealed
inadequate collaboration in complaint handling and no
established mechanism for information exchange among
the three departments. LandsD has not fully discharged
its enforcement role or conducted any data analysis of
complaint cases, rendering it difficult to monitor complaint
handling effectively. Besides, under the prevailing regulatory
regime, no substantial measures are in place to ensure NTEH
owners’ fulfilment of their maintenance responsibility.

our recommendations

The Ombudsman made ten recommendations, including that
the three departments should set up an inter-departmental
working group, draw up operational guidelines for frontline
staff to rationalise the responsibilities and procedures for
inter-departmental cases and devise a proper mechanism
for information exchange; LandsD should formulate a
monitoring mechanism for complaint cases, conduct data
analysis and take lease enforcement action decisively,
while exploring concrete measures to ensure NTEH owners
know how to effectively fulfil their responsibility for proper
sewage treatment and maintenance of sewage works; and
EPD should enhance publicity of the correct use and proper
maintenance of septic tanks and consider more extensive
use of new technology in an appropriate time to trace the
seepage source.
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Effectiveness of 1823 in Handling Complaints
and Enquiries

52 A B Completed on : 5/3/2024

Our findings

1823 under the Efficiency Office (“EQ”) provides a one-
stop service round the clock to answer public enquiries
about the services of 23 participating departments, and
receive complaints about Government services. Our
investigation found that 1823 cannot effectively resolve
cross-departmental complaints and complaints involving
unclear delineation of responsibilities. We consider that
1823 should escalate cases about recurring district problems
involving unclear delineation of responsibilities in a timely
manner to the high-level structure of the Government for
effective resolution. Our investigation also identified room
for improvement in 1823's handling of calls, co-operation
arrangements with participating departments, daily
operations and use of data.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 13 recommendations to EO, including
that it should stringently enforce the requirement that
departments reply within a specified time limit with reasons
if they consider a case outside their purview or should be
handled by another department; establish a mechanism
and draw up guidelines to standardise and regularise the
procedures for escalating cases about recurring district
problems with unclear delineation of responsibilities to the
respective District Officers of the Home Affairs Department
or the Task Force on District Governance (“TFDG") in a
systematic, proper and timely manner; request participating
departments to submit forecast plans of new services or
arrangements on a regular basis for preparation accordingly;
proactively monitor and conduct timely review of the newly
upgraded telephone system with a view to further enhancing
1823's call answering rate; expand the application of artificial
intelligence on enquiry handling; and conduct systematic
analyses of cross-departmental cases and consolidate
relevant data, submit reports to the TFDG from time to
time to facilitate the Government'’s resolution of cross-
departmental district issues.
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Housing Department’s Arrangements for
Housing for Senior Citizens and Converted One-
person Units

52 R B 8 completed on : 11/7/2023

Our findings

In the 1980s, the Housing Department (“HD") introduced
the Housing for Senior Citizens ("HSC") scheme to provide
hostel-type public rental housing (“PRH") for elderly tenants
aged 60 or above. HSC has three types according to the
design of units, namely Type 1 (“HS1"), Type 2 (“HS2") and
Type 3 (“HS3"). Converted one-person (“C1P") units of a
similar design as HS1 were also provided in response to
the society’s demand for one-person PRH units at that
time. Tenants have to share the kitchen, living room and/or
bathroom facilities.

Our investigation found that, with the change of times, units
with shared kitchen and bathroom facilities have become
outdated and unpopular. Despite that the Hong Kong Housing
Authority has taken multiple measures to reduce the vacancy
rate of those units over the years, after a lapse of nearly two
decades, HD has yet to recover all HS1 and C1P units which
are no longer available for allocation, and the vacancy rate
of the partitioned rooms in these units were persistently
high with long duration of vacancy. On the other hand, the
vacancy rate and refusal rate of offer of HS2 and HS3, which
are still available for allocation, were also high. We consider
that HD should ensure more effective deployment of relevant
PRH resources to meet the strong demand for public
housing.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made eight recommendations to HD,
including that HD should review whether HS2/HS3 units
should still be classified as ordinary PRH flats, and consider
ceasing to allocate these units to general PRH applicants
and tailoring a specific allocation scheme for HS2/HSS3;
consider in the long run the needs for changing the use of
HSC. Moreover, HD should promote and introduce more
transfer incentives, approach and collaborate with the Social
Welfare Department or welfare agencies to proactively lobby
and encourage the elderly tenants of HS1 and C1P units to
transfer, thereby speeding up recovering these units.
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Handling of Complaints Involving Trees on
Government Land

52RX B & completed on : 10/7/2023

Our findings

The Tree Management Office (“TMQ”) under the Development
Bureau co-ordinates and supervises departments’ handling
of tree complaints. While TMO has established a mechanism
under which it adjudicates on cases involving disputes over
responsibilities, our investigation revealed that when TMO
intervened in the disputes according to the mechanism, the
cases might have been seriously delayed. Besides, from
time to time, tree management departments had divergent
interpretations of the division of responsibilities and even
repeated disputes over similar issues. No departments had
drawn up any internal time frame for carrying out ordinary
tree work. Meanwhile, while the backlog of complaints with
overdue replies by the Lands Department (“LandsD”) had
significantly shrunk, there was no information on whether all
the trees involved had been properly handled.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made eight recommendations, including
that for complaints involving disputes over responsibilities,
TMO should consider using the overall handling time of a
case as a criterion for intervention; conduct systemic analysis
on such cases for collating information about departments’
common differences in opinions and misunderstanding,
and review and update the relevant Technical Circular as
appropriate in a timely manner; require departments to
formulate a time frame for carrying out ordinary tree work
based on the actual need; strengthen data collection and
analysis; and continue to monitor LandsD’s performance in
handling tree complaints.
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Repairs and Maintenance of Outdoor
Recreational and Sports Facilities under Leisure
and Cultural Services Department

Our findings

The quality, suitability and safety level of outdoor
recreational and sports facilities have substantial impact
on raising the living quality of the general public. As the
management authority for a huge number of outdoor
recreational and sports facilities, the Leisure and Cultural
Services Department (“LCSD") has a duty to ensure that the
facilities are in good condition and to arrange for their timely
repairs and maintenance. Our investigation revealed that
some LCSD frontline staff had failed to report in a timely
manner damage in outdoor recreational and sports facilities.
Furthermore, there is room for improvement in LCSD’s
monitoring of overall facility repairs procedures, arrangement
of contracts with contractors and monitoring of contractors’
performance.

our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 11 recommendations to LCSD,
including that it should formulate practice guides for frontline
staff on facility inspection and improve the current routine
inspection form; strengthen facility inspection training for
frontline staff; follow up closely on the development of the
computer system designed for facility inspection and repair
records so that in the future, staff can inspect in real time
the relevant records and follow up on the repairs for facilities
in a timely manner; review the current term contract
arrangement and in the long run explore options that allow
more flexible arrangements for facility repairs by contractors;
and consider making use of smart technology to facilitate
public report of damaged facilities.
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Regulation of Licensed Swimming Pools by Food
and Environmental Hygiene Department

Our findings

The Food and Environmental Hygiene Department (“FEHD")
regulates licensed private swimming pools in accordance
with the Swimming Pools Regulation and licensing conditions
to ensure public safety and hygiene. Our investigation
revealed inadequacies in FEHD’s inspection of licensed
swimming pools in terms of frequency, quality, method
and record. Besides, licensees are not required to maintain
duty logs of life-saving attendants or to provide basic life-
saving and first-aid equipment under the existing licensing
conditions. FEHD's guidelines on the monitoring of pool
water quality were insufficient and no accident notification
mechanism was in place.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 12 recommendations to FEHD,
including specifying in operational guidelines the follow-
up arrangements in the event of closure of pools during
surprise inspections; strengthening staff training and
guidelines on the inspection of pools; applying technology in
recording inspection results; reviewing the existing licensing
conditions (including exploring stipulating the requirement
for maintaining duty logs of life-saving attendants and
addition of basic life-saving and first-aid equipment);
establishing an accident notification mechanism; issuing to
licensees guidelines on the handling of pollution sources in
pool water; stepping up enforcement against non-compliant
pools; exploring ways to engage pool users in monitoring;
and setting up a standing communication mechanism with
the Leisure and Cultural Services Department, the operator
of public pools, on the regulation and management of
swimming pools.
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Food and Environmental Hygiene Department’s
Regulation over Sale of Food in Hot/Cold Holding
and Non-prepackaged Beverages by Means of
Vending Machine

Our findings

In recent years, more and wider variety of food in hot or cold
holding and non-prepackaged beverages are available by
vending machines emerging in the market. As required by
law, any person who intends to engage in this mode of food
business must first apply to the Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department (“FEHD") for a permit to sell food by
means of vending machine (“VM Permit”). Our investigation
revealed that some permit holders have not complied
stringently with the licensing requirements and conditions
imposed by FEHD, and there is room for improvement on the
part of FEHD in its processing and approving of applications
for VM permits and monitoring of licensed vending machines.

our recommendations

The Ombudsman made ten recommendations to FEHD,
including requiring permit applicants to submit information
about the devices and operation of vending machines and
keep it in the case files; updating existing guidelines with
instructions to staff on how to compile specific records of
pre-approval inspection; beefing up the licensing conditions
with clear and specific details on temperature control,
machine cleansing and sterilisation, and record keeping,
while exploring stepping up random checks on such records;
exploring the feasibility of more proactive bacteriological
testing of food and beverages sold by means of vending
machines; requiring permit holders to display the Permit
on the outside of machines, and disseminating information
about licensing requirements/conditions imposed on vending
machines to facilitate public monitoring; requiring all vending
machines of food under temperature control to be fitted
with an externally readable thermometer or to provide
relevant information; and providing organisations which
dispenses free food by self-service machines with important
information for safeguarding public hygiene and health.
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B IR
BINRR RERIRR
BRHE BR#E"

No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and

G Y Department or organisation received concluded®
FE15 5 © BUTEBM Part 1: Government Departments

BEBAREEE Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation 48 15

Department

REEE Architectural Services Department 8 3
BEitE Audit Commission 1 1
s Auxiliary Medical Service 1 0
EFE Buildings Department 164 103
RRZ 2 REET Civil Aid Service 2 0
RAE Civil Aviation Department 5 0
TARIRARERE Civil Engineering and Development Department 14 2
YNGRz R 7 Companies Registry 15 6
BHYE Correctional Services Department 33 20
BB EH Customs and Excise Department 64 12
BEE Department of Health 83 34
I A] Department of Justice 32 4
RIEE Drainage Services Department 13 6
BEBERNE Efficiency Office 38 31
HWETIEE Electrical and Mechanical Services Department 17 7
RIBRESE Environmental Protection Department 79 31
=10l Fire Services Department 39 18
RYPIRIBFEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department 386 207
THRRENAELHE General Office of the Chief Executive’s Office 9 4
B AT AR 75 B Government Flying Service 2 1
BB A Government Laboratory 1 1
B RS E Government Logistics Department 2 1
BN EXE Government Property Agency 8 1
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IR
IR BRINRHR
BR&E BR#E"

No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and

EPIR AR Department or organisation received  concluded"
T 485 Government Secretariat
- BB R ARRAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office 29 59
- REEEBR — Civil Service Bureau 17 2
- A REEERRB — Commerce and Economic Development Bureau 1 0
- B R AR — Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau 1 1
- XL BB Rk - Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau 3 1
-EER - Development Bureau 1 11
-HER - Education Bureau 68 41
-IREBEREER — Environment and Ecology Bureau 4 1
- WRAIRRPAE — Financial Secretary’s Office 2 2
- I EBREED - Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau 40 16
- BBREER — Health Bureau 16 i2
-RBEEEEHRH — Home and Youth Affairs Bureau 6 2
-BER - Housing Bureau 20 12
- BRI R TER — Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau 3 1
- BIRBENE — Labour and Welfare Bureau 5 2
-RELB - Security Bureau 26 2
- BRI — Transport and Logistics Bureau 6 4
BRIE Highways Department 59 43
RB=HEE Home Affairs Department 88 46
BBRXA Hong Kong Observatory 4 1
BERESR Hong Kong Police Force 57/ 10
EEZ Housing Department 463 303
ANBERE Immigration Department 155 73
BT E = Information Services Department 1 1
iR Inland Revenue Department 81 24
BlFT Rl E Innovation and Technology Commission 5 3
AMHRERESE Intellectual Property Department 2 2
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EEREIN
EEWRKR HERHNRF
BR&AE BR&AE"
No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and
B P R 48 Department or organisation received concluded’
ANERE RS K Judiciary Administrator 14 6
BTR Labour Department 54 24
T Land Registry 9 2
4R ZE Lands Department 221 119
ERERE Legal Aid Department 60 19
2R EBE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 199 100
BER Marine Department 14 5
BAEBEERRAE Office of the Communications Authority 19 8
BT E AR RN E Office of the Government Chief Information Officer 2 0
WEEEE Official Receiver’s Office 10 5
HEE Planning Department 12 4
HE Post Office 38 21
BERBER Radio Television Hong Kong 4 2
EMEGLEE Rating and Valuation Department 11 3
BREBE Registration and Electoral Office 10 3
HeREnE Social Welfare Department 126 64
IX85F Trade and Industry Department 6 3
BEHE Transport Department 380 253
E#E Treasury 1 0
IKIEE Water Supplies Department 98 50
ERRENSBLEEERE  Working Family and Student Financial Assistance 26 16
Agency

F28 oy RERE Part 2: Public Organisations
FET R BERD Accounting and Financial Reporting Council 1 0
HWIZEE D Airport Authority 12 2
HEREBEESY Competition Commission 4 1
HEELRES Consumer Council 24 7
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EEREIN
EEWRKR HERHNRF
BR&AE BR&AE"
No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and
B P R 48 Department or organisation received concluded’
EEBEIB Employees Retraining Board 6 2
TERSRES Equal Opportunities Commission 24 6
HMEREEER Estate Agents Authority 8 2
EEEELZES® Hong Kong Housing Authority 8 6
EREEERE Hong Kong Housing Society 27 12
BERCREER Hong Kong Monetary Authority 19 8
EREEERARA Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited 4 2
BRERER Hospital Authority 188 45
BRBAZE Independent Commission Against Corruption 2 0
REBEEER Insurance Authority 14 4
FUEHERE A A Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation 1 0
SOEEMER Legislative Council Secretariat 2 0
BHEEAEESEIEER Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority 7 5
BAERLEZE Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data 13 5
VHEEREEER Property Management Services Authority 29 30
BHERBEEBEREZEE  Securities and Futures Commission 106 5
BBERRZE The Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment 13 5
Authority
IRIFREEE D Travel Industry Authority 7 2
MEEZER Urban Renewal Authority 20 6
B AR = Vocational Training Council 20 5
ANAIEEERR West Kowloon Cultural District Authority 1 2
H fth g2 Other Organisations? 240 1
&5t Total 4,351 2,053
1. BREEE—EFEED  BEAFES THBRETERNRFESE -
2. [HAb#HE ] BETE (RFHFEKED) MR1AEHE -

Notes :
Including the complaints received in the previous year but pursued and concluded in the prevailing year.
"Other Organisations” are organisations falling outside Schedule 1 to The Ombudsman Ordinance.

1.
2.
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DEMANERRFERES
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

B s

Department or organisation

UERSR
GELEE
GETY

No. of
complaints
concluded
by inquiry

BRXFRERF
in alphabetical order

BRRERMK
FAEZE
NEES

Cases with

inadequacies

or
deficiencies
found

FE18 5 © BUTEBM Part 1: Government Departments
REBAREREE Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation 13 3
Department

REEE Architectural Services Department 1 0
BEitE Audit Commission 1 0
EFE Buildings Department 78 24
TARTREARESE Civil Engineering and Development Department 2 0
A RFHTE Companies Registry 5 1
BHE Correctional Services Department 20 1
BEEHE Customs and Excise Department 12 0
BEE Department of Health 30 6
A Department of Justice 4 0
REE Drainage Services Department 5 1
BEREPRNT Efficiency Office 29 5
HWETIEE Electrical and Mechanical Services Department 5 1
RIBRES Environmental Protection Department 27 1
SEBIE Fire Services Department 17 2
RYNIRIBEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department 160 47
THRREHRAELKE General Office of the Chief Executive’s Office 4 2
BT FRAT AR 75 5 Government Flying Service 1 0
NEginE| o3 Government Laboratory 1 0
HINEHE Government Property Agency 1 0
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UEMARNERZNIRFERER
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

HERAR BRERK
BRI FAEZE

BR&E RS

Cases with

No. of inadequacies

complaints or

concluded deficiencies

BP9 AE Department or organisation by inquiry found
BT 42 Government Secretariat

- BB R ARRAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office 45 9

- REEEBR — Civil Service Bureau 2 0

- B R A ER — Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau 1 0

- XL BB Rk #E — Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau 1 0

-#RE — Development Bureau 11 1

-HER - Education Bureau 38 3

-IREBEREER — Environment and Ecology Bureau 1 1

- WRARERPHAE — Financial Secretary’s Office 2 1

- M EB REBED - Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau 7 0

- BBREER - Health Bureau 11 4

-RBREEFEBR - Home and Youth Affairs Bureau 1 0

-BER - Housing Bureau 12 0

- BRI R ITER — Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau 1 0

- BIREMNB — Labour and Welfare Bureau 2 0

- REZB - Security Bureau 1 1

- BW YRR — Transport and Logistics Bureau 4 1

BIE Highways Department 35 4

RBEBRE Home Affairs Department 39 10

BEBRXAE Hong Kong Observatory 1 0

BBEBR Hong Kong Police Force 10 5

EEE Housing Department 270 28

ANREBRE Immigration Department 66 6

B EE Information Services Department 1 0

ko) Inland Revenue Department 18 7

BIETRHRZ Innovation and Technology Commission 2 0

MBEEE Intellectual Property Department 1 0
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UEMARNERZNRFERER
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

w1

Department or organisation

DEMRA R
HERNRF
(EES:¢E]

No. of
complaints
concluded
by inquiry

BRERK
FAEZE
NEES

Cases with
inadequacies
or
deficiencies
found

ANERB RS K Judiciary Administrator 6 0
BTER Labour Department 22 1
T Land Registry 2 0
4R Z Lands Department 109 23
EERERE Legal Aid Department 19 0
R2ERELE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 87 11
BER Marine Department 5 1
BAEEEERRAE Office of the Communications Authority 8 1
WEERZE Official Receiver’s Office 4 1
HEE Planning Department 3 0
BHE Post Office 19 8
BEBER Radio Television Hong Kong 1 1
EMYEGLEE Rating and Valuation Department 3 1
ERERE Registration and Electoral Office 3 2
EREANE Social Welfare Department 57 7
THZESZE Trade and Industry Department 2 0
FEigE Transport Department 213 60
KIGE Water Supplies Department 44 10
EBRENSAEERE  Working Family and Student Financial Assistance 12 0

FREE 2023/24 3§
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DEMASNER

OERERIEES RS

Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

UERAR BEBRE
HRHOERF RFREZE
BR&AE REES
Cases with
No. of inadequacies
complaints or
concluded deficiencies
BP9 AE Department or organisation by inquiry found
H2TH T REHE Part 2: Public Organisations
WIS EIR B Airport Authority 2 1
GEEBLZER Competition Commission 1 0
HEELZE® Consumer Council 4 3
BEBEIB Employees Retraining Board 2 0
FERSRES Equal Opportunities Commission 6 0
HMERIEEER Estate Agents Authority 2 1
BEEFEEZES Hong Kong Housing Authority 6 3
EREERE Hong Kong Housing Society 11 2
BELEeREER Hong Kong Monetary Authority 8 1
EREEERARA A Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited 2 0
BREER Hospital Authority 43 13
REEEER Insurance Authority 3 0
BEIEATESFEEER Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority 5 0
BABERTLEZEES Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data 5 1
MEBBREEER Property Management Services Authority 30 6
BHERHEEEEREZEE  Securities and Futures Commission 5 0
EBEALTZB The Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment 5 1
Authority
REEEER Travel Industry Authority 2 0
MEERER Urban Renewal Authority 4 0
eSS Vocational Training Council 4 0
BAAXEERER West Kowloon Cultural District Authority 2 1
H fto A Other Organisations’ 1 0
a% Total 1,771 335
=30 [E AR RIENE (RFZERM) MR1AHEE -
Note 1. “Other Organisations” are organisations falling outside Schedule 1 to The Ombudsman Ordinance.
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KErHAEREZNERZES
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BRXFREF S
in alphabetical order

F180 © BUFEBPT
Part 1 . Government Departments

BEER ZRHE
{El R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
REBAEESE
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department
2023/1308 RECREEM RIS S| RIERABRBEME EEEE % TRGSL 0
B ILAE
Failing to provide clear guidelines and instructions on Unsubstantiated
how to identify maintained trails on countryside maps
EEE
Architectural Services Department
2023/05228B JE SR S T KA R ROK R IE R 5t N ava 0
Delay in repairing the hot water supply system for Unsubstantiated
shower cubicles of a swimming pool
BEFE
Buildings Department
2022/1619E REEEREXNERNERIEEME b2y ava 2
Failing to properly follow up on the unauthorised Partially
building works of a village house substantiated
2022/3740 REGEFRFARRNZIHENZETERLEIEME i Ava 2
k)
Failing to handle the complainant’s report of Partially
numerous unauthorised building works and reply to substantiated
his queries
2022/4011 ERIBESERYBELERT [pAva 1
Delay in following up on a removal order issued Substantiated
against unauthorised buildings works
2023/0088B TR IR IB R EF AR KA R [ZAva 0
Delay in handling the complainant’s seepage case Substantiated
2023/0153(1) REZERBRMERNENE L ER WEF KL+ (B 0

Failing to properly handle a request for historical
documents of a building

R IRE S 2023/24 1R

AEBRE

Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found
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KEERAERERNERZRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

1l R 4R 557
Case No.
A "R
Companies Registry

RIREE
Complaint

BRESw

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

Overall
conclusion

2023/1018 REZERIERFABBERFIRAE TRt Npavi 0
KR
Failing to properly handle the complainant’s Unsubstantiated
complaint about a company mistakenly using his
residential address as its registered address
BESE
Department of Health
2022/0792 (1) BEREEMIZEF AL L ER EROREECE (K [Dava 3
M) K
2) EERFANERMEAERE - EEZEHREEEX
- MR ES &R FREERR (AX3Z)
(1) Delay in issuing a correct isolation document to Substantiated
the complainant (substantiated); and
(2) Extremely unorganised handling of the
complainant’s case in that the Department
had repeatedly issued isolation documents
each bearing a different isolation period
(substantiated)
2022/29698B BB AR REAM BT FIERES 20198 A% S AR 2 AV 0

BALERERAED RORE L

Failing to explain to the public and other Government
departments the quarantine arrangements for
recovered COVID-19 patients in case of any new
confirmed cases in the same household

Unsubstantiated

BIFARBREGHAZREN TR E CREBRNES
= BEERNBETEETNER  MKREITE
WREE RAENRE (TRZ) AR
2) EREHBERZS NG (THKIL)

(1) The transparency of the follow-up actions taken
after the occurrence of adverse events following
COVID-19 immunisation of the complainant’s
late father was extremely low, and that there
was no channel for family members to learn
the follow-up actions taken by the authorities
(unsubstantiated); and

(2) Refusal to provide the causality assessment by
the Expert Committee (unsubstantiated)

2022/3659A (1)

oA 0

Unsubstantiated
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RrEAERERNERZREL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BRESw BEREE

1B R 4w 5% KRREE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations

2023/0201 BE—RIBRERIERFETEBCEI2019EM
AERATIRARE - WEZEER WD &N - B%F
h AR M A1t 3 Lh AR < R B AR Y BRAE (S 1

Mistakenly issuing the COVID-19 Compulsory Testing
Order and relevant follow-up letters to a foreign
domestic helper despite her clarification and DH's
confirmation of her compliance with the testing
requirement

RHE

Drainage Services Department

2023/0990A B A E B AR EN B (T - IR AR IE R BUR A7k

R

Delay in handling the flooding problem on a piece of
Government land due to the shifting of responsibility
between the Department and the Lands Department

MERERDNE
Efficiency Office
2023/0135C RAREBEERRE RBIEBER R ENRFEN T

E:i

Failing to refer a complaint about flying faded and
damaged national flags and regional flags to the
relevant department(s)

Substantiated

oAV

Unsubstantiated

REF TR - BHE
AEBRK
Unsubstantiated but

other inadequacies
found

WETRE

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

2022/3578 BEEREFARRERUFRAERFTELE2HIE iz PN AvA
Repeatedly requiring the complainant to submit Partially
information to prove that the products concerned met substantiated
the safety requirements

2023/0522C FE SR M S MOt R BV B (B R A v

Delay in repairing the hot water supply system for
shower cubicles of a swimming pool

' HIFEE 2023/24 F1H

Unsubstantiated
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EREE
1l R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
BRIERES
Environmental Protection Department
2022/1619F B RIEBUSKNEMBEAR  RBE—FTHE Npavi 2
Failing to take further enforcement action after Unsubstantiated
giving advice to the person in charge of a premises
suspected of discharging effluent
2022/3620 REFEGEEITE) - LARAEIM M 8 E R L )RR 2 AV 0
TR
Failing to take proper actions to close down two Unsubstantiated
concrete batching plants continuously operating
without a valid licence
2023/1195D REFALGERBRABEHEREER - #ER  MES v 0
) am B9 il 72
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of Unsubstantiated
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade
SHBE R
Fire Services Department
2023/0403B REIFAZSGREBIRITERIEEERE [pAva 1
Lack of positive response to the complainant’s Substantiated
request for return of Bank Guarantees
RYBRELES
Food and Environmental Hygiene Department
2022/1619A 22 HE 5 TR I AR B SR AL T SR B AV BB B B S IR R AR L g N AVARK(EE 3 3
RYIENER - B2 BLHRANEREIERFAL B SHEEHK
IR RE R R
Arranging inspections on an allegedly unlicensed Unsubstantiated but
food premises by uniformed staff and staff arriving in other inadequacies
government vehicles, but failing to arrange night time found

inspections and reply to the complainant about the
issue of piling of refuse
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HEHEAER

HROERRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EREE
EEF T RIFEE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
2022/2602 (1) RBHEZEBREATEM (PAKL) BDPIL  WHRB 5
(2) RBREREERFANEF (BAKL) UK TE
(3) AEHERHEETHETHRKLBEERAPNME
2 RNERERERETARBR (TKL)
(1) Improper management of a public market Partially
(unsubstantiated); substantiated and
(2) Failing to follow up on and respond to other inadequacies
the complainant’s complaints (partially found
substantiated); and
(3) Failing to regulate the irregularities and terminate
the tenancies of the stall tenants who breached
the tenancy agreements and then put up those
stalls for public auction (unsubstantiated)
2022/2840 REZEEBEARESM AR+ BHEHE 5
SEHEK
Improper management of a public market Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found
2022/3803 (1) EEREBH —REKRFINEPEMREEERE N rAva 0
B BIRERERE - UREIEFAE (FRKAL)
(2) EREIEBERF (TKL) UKk
Q) BRELEEFEMBSAE (RBE®
(1) Unreasonably refusing to conduct surprise Unsubstantiated
moisture content checks at the subject premises
of a water seepage complaint, change the
case officer and terminate the investigation
(unsubstantiated);
(2) Delay in replying to a staff complaint
(unsubstantiated); and
(3) Failing to reply to telephone calls and voice
messages (inconclusive)
2023/0088A ERREIBIREF ARNZKER N ava 0
Delay in handling the complainant’s seepage case Unsubstantiated
2023/0208A HEM BT S INEYRER R EIET A 2N Ava 0
Ineffective enforcement against street obstruction by Unsubstantiated
miscellaneous articles outside a wholesale market
2023/0503A R ETISINE YR e R REBET T Z Avi 0

Ineffective enforcement against street obstruction by
miscellaneous articles outside a wholesale market

MRS E 2023/24 F 3R

Unsubstantiated
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

ERLswH EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

1B R 4w 5% KRREE Overall

Case No. Complaint Conclusion

2023/0824

MRATHEIRABREXBESIRAH —FHETN

Ineffective enforcement against street obstruction
caused by unauthorised extension of business area of
a cooked food stall

PRSL

Unsubstantiated

2023/1195C

REFALGERBRABHGEREER « R WES
1) am 9 i 78
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of

depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade

oA

Unsubstantiated

2023/2751

BRI R E

BE=EESRESWMEFAZL [EEIFRA
E] - BERFANLE
Completing a fixed penalty notice for issuance to

the complainant in the presence of a third party,
prejudicing the privacy of the complainant

Government Logistics Department

2023/0403A

AEBIRFABRSCREIRTTHEARIFLER D E

Lack of positive response to the complainant’s
request for return of Bank Guarantees

BFEE - BERRARBAE
Government Secretariat — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office

2023/0135B

BAEE (ARERREREE BRREE - EEOH
TE) BOEA B R e K B IE R B I8 N R PE AV IR A

Failing to follow up on a complaint about flying

faded and damaged national and regional flags in
accordance with the Stipulations for the Display and
Use of the National Flag and National Emblem and the
Regional Flag and Regional Emblem

BRAE - BER
Government Secretariat - Education Bureau

2022/2969A

AERSEREHEMW RS - MAH2019E8RHBEHHEE
BENRRER  WBRFAZFERERARAED
MR ERIERER

Failing to provide clear guidelines for schools on the
quarantine requirements for students recovering from
COVID-19, resulting in the complainant’s son being
refused by his school to resume classes due to a new
confirmed case in the family

DA

Substantiated

R - BHFE
BAEEK
Unsubstantiated but

other inadequacies
found

iy

Partially
substantiated

Partially
substantiated
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RrEAERERNERZREL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

BRESw

Overall
conclusion

RIREE
Complaint

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

2023/1747 IR G4 F /NEATE D023/ 24 2 F BRI N — N ava 0
Unreasonably refusing to allow a primary school Unsubstantiated
to continue operating Primary One classes in the
2023/24 school year

2023/1894 1B R/ NEATE D023/ 24 2 F U BRI N — N ava 0

Unreasonably refusing to allow a primary school Unsubstantiated
to continue operating Primary One classes in the

2023/24 school year

BUF#EE - BREER

Government Secretariat - Health Bureau

RFRARBEFRAEET SRR ZEANIBHNES BB AL 1
=4 EEERMBETERTER  MREBINE

RAEERMENEE (BK) UK

2022/3659C (1

)
(M

)

ERERERZE MBI E (THKIL)

The transparency of the follow-up actions taken
after the occurrence of adverse events following
COVID-19 immunisation of the complainant’s
late father was extremely low, and that there
was no channel for family members to learn

the follow-up actions taken by the authorities
(substantiated); and

Refusal to provide the causality assessment by
the Expert Committee (unsubstantiated)

BFAIS - RERETFEFEKR
Government Secretariat - Home and Youth Affairs Bureau

2022/3610

ERAETHRANBRT TEMETEARIEEHES

ST E

Improper and unilateral termination of the Mutual Aid
Committee Scheme without prior consultation

BRERM - RER

Government Secretariat - Security Bureau

2023/1893(1)

EEEBABRIMRRERERES B AEEENEKX

Partially
substantiated

pavi

Unsubstantiated

REFTIRKSL @ BE
AERE

Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found

Unreasonably refusing a request for information
relating to daily occupancy of community isolation
facilities

HFEE 2023/24 F3]
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KEERAERERNERZRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BRESw BEREE

1l R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
HEE
Highways Department
2023/1195B REFALGERBRABHGEREER « #E  WES Npavi 0
1) am 9 i 78
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of Unsubstantiated
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade
RBEHHEE
Home Affairs Department
2022/1972A REBEZERBREENRRABEEINGIBEER [Dava 3
Improper handling of five graves built outside a Substantiated
permitted burial ground
2022/36928B ERAMBREREEE —FERE LB ERENS WEF AL+ BiE 1
BEENER SHEEK
Delay in providing information to the Lands Unsubstantiated but
Department regarding an urn suspected to be illegal other inadequacies
hillside burial found
2023/0135A VR 7B 1T H [ 2 T SR A BB EMR 6 R B8 A B HE % [ hE WEF AL+ BiHE 1
B SHEEK
Failing to take follow-up action at the district level Unsubstantiated but
regarding a complaint about flying faded and other inadequacies
damaged national flags and regional flags found
2023/0208B R B TER T E0 P B IR R B TS AN 2 AR e R TRGSL 0
Failing to take positive steps to coordinate Unsubstantiated
departments’ handling of the irregularities outside a
wholesale market
2023/0503B R B TER T E0 P B IR AL B TS AN i AR RE TRGIL 0
Failing to take positive steps to coordinate Unsubstantiated
departments’ handling of the irregularities outside a
wholesale market
2023/1195E AREMRLGERBROABBEEEL  #5 WES v 0

YL EN

Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade

Unsubstantiated
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RrEAERERNERZREL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

RIREE
Complaint

ERLswH
Overall
conclusion

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

2023/2289A RBHERIBIMMN AN EIEEML A BT L &2 35 [ N ava 0
7 BHHEE R
Failing to properly handle illegal occupation of Unsubstantiated
Government land by village houses in a village, which
amounted to shirking of responsibility
EEE
Housing Department
2022/2920 (1) BREBHEERERFANRSIRF (HBHKL) DAV 5
(2) RBEEEBEXRBBIRFAZ XA [RFEALE
TR | EHAERER (KAL) AR
(3) BREZEZRERFANEARERR (FHHKL)
(1) Failing to properly follow up on the noise Partially
complaints lodged by the complainant (partially substantiated
substantiated),
(2) Lack of a written reply to or acknowledgement
of receipt of reports made by the complainant
using the Tenancy Abuse Report Aerogramme
(substantiated); and
(3) Failing to properly follow up on the complainant’s
reports of tenancy abuse (partially substantiated)
2022/3706 (1) SERUEUERFARERAEEMEHEAORIEE iGN Ava 2
B RFIKL - ERESERK) AR
(2) BEZRLEENDEMZENEARERIRGE B
BZRARATFRA (KAL)
(1) Mistakenly disqualified the complainant from Partially
bidding for the rental of a shop in a housing substantiated
estate (unsubstantiated but other inadequacies
found); and
(2) Failing to make available to bidders the criteria

FREE 2023/24 3§

for approving tenders and factors in determining
priority, which was in contrary to the principles
of transparency and fairness (substantiated)
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BRESw BEREE

1B R 4w 5% KRREE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations

2023/0079A (1) RANRRBIFABEMRELZZNERE - BEX A 0
RARBSRIRFARRERANAN - ARBMEBRELR
PR (TRZ) - AR
(2) EEEBEMARFARINERAXM  TREER
FAMBELEPRENBRFE (TRKIL)

(1) Having misled the complainant for a long time Unsubstantiated
that deletion of her daughter’s residence was
unnecessary, the Department suddenly required
the complainant to submit supporting document
for applying for deletion of her daughter from the
tenancy (unsubstantiated); and

(2) Unreasonably refusing to accept the
complainant’s supporting document and delaying
the handling of the complainant’s application
for deletion of her daughter’s residence
(unsubstantiated)

ARERE
Immigration Department
2023/2469 (1) BFALERZESEHRTHREERE  SBRALR =Py AV 2

RLEHER - BRATARE  SPIaNEERMKR
A (PRKIL)

2) BMERFALHHRA TEHE - BPIDARTFFR
FATBHREGER (KIL) A&k

) RAUBBMAEMKFA > MREREEMMBIIE L&
MR TERE (THKIL)

(1) Failing to inform the complainants that the Partially
photographs they uploaded for applying for substantiated
HKSAR passports did not meet the specifications
despite that such photographs were successfully
submitted through the internet (unsubstantiated);

(2) Allowing the complainants to make appointment
bookings for collection of their HKSAR passports
despite that their uploaded photographs did not
meet the specifications (substantiated); and

(3) Informing the complainants that their uploaded
photographs did not meet the specifications
by email only, without calling them as well
(unsubstantiated)
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RrEAERERNERZREL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EREE
1l R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
ih B 4B
Lands Department
2022/16198B R B EEENE IEEAG B BUR 1t BN ERER + 30 & HIl7T RS - B 2
g - VR B NERBIEMSERYE—FRER SHEHREK
FA
Failing to take prompt land enforcement action Unsubstantiated but
against illegal occupation of Government land by a other inadequacies
village house and reply to the complainant about found
the operation of food business at the village house
without payment of regrant premium
2022/1972B RAZERE D RN R A BERINEE oava 0
Improper handling of five graves built outside a Unsubstantiated
permitted burial ground
2022/3692A RAEBRREZEOEBRFAR —ESEERZERE LS [pava 1
IEEB R E IR W
Failing to reply to the complainant’s enquiry or report Substantiated
about an urn suspected to be illegal hillside burial in a
timely and appropriate manner
2023/09908B BRI E G ARHRF - EREEERBEN T HAKR N rava 0
e 8
Delay in handling the flooding problem on a piece of Unsubstantiated
Government land due to the shifting of responsibility
between the Department and the Drainage Services
Department
2023/1195A AERRLGERBRBIGEEER - #eE  WES 2 AV 0
) o Y el 78
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of Unsubstantiated
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade
2023/22898B REEZERBEEBNONEIEEG BN T A E R i 52N ava 1
B BHHEEZR
Failing to properly handle illegal occupation of Partially
Government land by village houses in a village, which substantiated

amounted to shirking of responsibility

R IRE S 2023/24 1R
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

EEdwm EEEE
EEF T RIFEE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
BRI BHESE
Leisure and Cultural Services Department
2022/3487 (1) REEB PG FERAKAM - ABURF AR XEA AV 3

—IERIKERINE K - R IR B K H fh yk Z i B Ba T
(TBRESL) - AR

2) RERBFRBEBLIKEBREEETELARKIKEA
T - BAREBEERKHERE SR (L)

(1) Ineffective patrol at a swimming pool, causing Partially
the complainant to be hit at the head by other substantiated
swimmers under coaching while swimming in
one of the coaching lanes (unsubstantiated); and

(2) Failing to follow the procedures for confining
coaching activities to the designated public
coaching area to separate different types of pool
users (substantiated)

2022/3895(1) ERREAHLESZE RN HEENER AR AL - (B 0
SHEMREK
Refusing to provide information of books removed or Unsubstantiated but
withdrawn from public library shelves other inadequacies
found
2023/0522A JE SR M S AR R BV EK S B R4 WEF AL - B 1
SaEHK
Delay in repairing the hot water supply system for Unsubstantiated but
shower cubicles of a swimming pool other inadequacies
found
2023/2178(1) ERIEEEBARBEEREANPNELELE Eypav 0
Refusing to provide the list of Chinese books Unsubstantiated
purchased by the Hong Kong Public Libraries
2023/2775A BT EENABESEANNZEIEHER - BHNIKHR ZN A 0
AR TEENHEAERREMZSOME - alfEIEM
BRAEEILRET A
Unreasonably regarding the complainant’s taking Unsubstantiated

photograph of a book cover for the sake of borrowing
the book later on an infringement of copyright while
allowing readers to photocopy books using the
photocopiers provided by libraries
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Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

EEdwm EEEE
EEF T RIFEE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
REIB
Planning Department
2022/4287 (1) HBERFANEZSALBEANRER (TKL) N AV 1

2) REERFHESRETA HRNERER L8
B URORAEYEERFANBREEHR (KZ)

3) FHMEFFAHFNHARFIL  BILERT
RBALTRREERBRARERR (TARKIL)

4) REEERERANEZERARALHRESHE
AR EBREMER (TK)

5) READERESHREFAHRGFELRRE  EE2X
REBEWTHREZIESEM (TRL) UKk

6) BRERFERAWXIFRAERALTIRE
RRTEP XN - hEARIZMHE (KAL)

(1) Inaccurate contents in a written reply to the Partially
complainant (unsubstantiated); substantiated

(2) Failing to upload the supplementary information
of an application for planning permission to
the website in accordance with the procedures
and properly reply to the complainant’s related
enquiries (substantiated);

(3) Unfair procedures for consultation on the
application for planning permission, including
that the public were not given sufficient
opportunity and time to give comments
(unsubstantiated);

(4) Failing to properly handle and publish the views
from the District Council and members of the
public on the application for planning permission
(unsubstantiated);

(5) Submitting or referring the application for
planning permission to the Town Planning Board
for approval without giving due consideration
to whether the application was appropriate
(unsubstantiated); and

(6) Providing only an English version or a Chinese
summary but not a full Chinese version of
the application form and discussion paper,
posing an obstacle to public understanding
(unsubstantiated)

' HIFEE 2023/24 F1H
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EREE
1l R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
EBER
Radio Television Hong Kong
2023/2890(1) EIRERRIMAERE B AEARNERK Npavi 0
Unreasonably refusing a request for a copy of its Unsubstantiated
television programme
HEEFE
Social Welfare Department
2022/2969C BB RRARTE RGX E BBt A EiEsl - XA i ava 0
BIE R AR FE2019B MRS REEREARAEL MK
FHIBIE BIR MR E R
Failing to provide specific guidelines for subvented Partially
organisations offering after-school care service, substantiated
resulting in the complainant’s son being refused such
service by an organisation after his recovery from
COVID-19 due to a new confirmed case in the family
2023/00798B RBHEERBIEHF ARI R EK 2N AV 0
Failing to properly handle the complainant’s request Unsubstantiated
for document
2023/0291 (1) EREEHRFA (FHHKIZ) 0 ARk il AV 5
(2) BRBHERBHEEERSHRF (FHKL)
(1) Delay in giving a reply to the complainant Partially
(partially substantiated); and substantiated
(2) Failing to properly handle the complainant’s
complaint against a care home for the elderly
(partially substantiated)
IXEFF
Trade and Industry Department
2023/1155 M ABEFZTIGAME AT INEY - 2REHEAMED K pavi 0
PIZR A I O 75 0] 35 AR
Demanding provision of an export licence issued by Unsubstantiated

the Mainland authority for the import of goods not
requiring such a licence
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EEdwm EEEE
EEF T RIFEE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
EHE
Transport Department
2022/2992 (1) TEHEBRFAREETRESMBLNERZ DAV 2
ALEHRFE (RFIK - BEESEHRE) U
&
) HwEFANBEGER (FHKIL)
(1) Improper handling of the complainant’s Partially
application for postponement of driving substantiated
test for compliance with a quarantine order
(unsubstantiated but other inadequacies found);
and
(2) Its reply to the complainant had error and
omission (partially substantiated)
2022/3119 TE oAb A SR HHIREF AR T B0 BB B A B B 5 5 AR A RN - (B 5
FAE SEREK
Improper disclosure of the Certificate of Particulars Unsubstantiated but
of Vehicle of a vehicle registered in the complainant’s other inadequacies
name found
2022/3139 (1) ERBITEFIERELRBAE CFKL) Npava 0

2) BHMBEBAZNABEFABABARE (TKRIL)

3) BUEMRESTABHMHBZALMAE (THKIL)
AR

4) ERBFHEBETS Z KR ARBERROEM
B EEHENGAERE (TKIL)

(1) Delay in holding an auction of Personalised Unsubstantiated
Vehicle Registration Marks (unsubstantiated);

(2) Giving a very short notice to applicants for
notifying them to participate in the auction
(unsubstantiated);

(3) Using Registered Mail as the only means to
notify applicants to participate in the auction
(unsubstantiated); and

(4) Shifting to the Post Office the responsibility
of postmen not requiring recipients to sign to
acknowledge receipt of mail items during the
pandemic (unsubstantiated)

MRS E 2023/24 F 3R
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ERLswH EZEE
1B R 4w 5% KRREE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
2022/3263 (1) TEHEEBRFAFREETREHESMEHNERE 7B AL 2

AIEH R (EFTKY - BEREBESEREK) MU
&

2) RENMERNEREAETRESMBRESHNE L
B RBEEHIEHRE (L)

(1) Improper handling of the complainant’s Partially
application for postponement of driving substantiated
test for compliance with an isolation order
(unsubstantiated but other inadequacies found);
and

(2) Inconsistent handling of applications for
postponement of driving test submitted by
candidates under isolation and quarantine orders
(substantiated)

2022/3299 NEHEBRFARBETRES MEHMEREHIT EKAL 0
HAFR G
Improper handling of the complainant’s application Unsubstantiated

for postponement of driving test for compliance with
an isolation order

2022/3507 EHERIEHFARBETREESMELNERZHTE N ava 0
/quEEu
Improper handling of the complainant’s application Unsubstantiated

for postponement of driving test for compliance with
an isolation order

2022/3547 NEMEERFARBEFRES MBS MR AR b2 ava 2
SrEALEHRE
Improper handling of the complainant’s application Partially
for postponement of driving test for compliance with substantiated
quarantine and isolation orders

2022/3855 REZEREB AR MARZEHES [ KNEL B8 AL 0
BREEE] Tl BRI EE
Failing to properly deal with the problem of someone Partially

making profit by applying for other people for permits substantiated
under the “Driving on Lantau Island Scheme”

2022/4357 RE IR RAZE R 18 R & 92022/23F [ B LB 25T &) TRGIL 0
Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated

Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district
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BEER EREE

1l R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
2023/0044 RALETAZERRIE X @ #92022/23F [E B iR &5 2 N ava 0

Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated

Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district
2023/0064 REEFTAZERE IR R /2022/23F £ B LB AR 5T 2 TRGSL 0

Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated

Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district
2023/0070 REZERBEB NPRATEZ T EBRLERS [ KU i 52 ava 0

B RREErEl ] A BB REEEAE LA R

Failing to properly deal with the problem of someone Partially

allegedly using illegitimate means to grab the quotas substantiated

for permits to be issued under the “Driving on Lantau
Island Scheme” to make profit

2023/0251 FREFAN [ S5B17] EWMEL - UREBERIEFA [Dava 0
FHE [ 5817 REPOMEEREL
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated

course of mail delivery and unreasonably requesting
the complainant to visit an HKeToll customer service
centre for a replacement

2023/0302 RALETAZERRIE X R 892022/23F [E B K& 2 2N AV 0
Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated
Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district

2023/0410 FREFAN [ @17 WAL - LR [ H@TT] B3 [pava 0
| AR & BB
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated

course of mail delivery and failing to answer the
complainant’s call to the HKeToll hotline and reply to
the complaint

2023/0419 FRIGF AR [ Si@TT] BEHHaL [pava 0
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated
course of mail delivery

2023/0441 FREFAN [ Z@17] WAL - LR [ S@7T] B8 [pava 0
|
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated

course of mail delivery and failing to answer the
complainant’s call to the HKeToll hotline

R IRE S 2023/24 1R
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Case No.

2023/0560

Kt4%7 Appendix 7

KEERAERERNERZRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

RIREE
Complaint
BEREERFAN [ 5B17] BEHELAE

Omitting to handle the complainant’s application for
an HKeToll Vehicle Tag

ERLswH EZEE
Overall No. of Recom-
conclusion mendations

BB BXAL 0

Partially
substantiated

2023/0696

(1) BRFEABRBAREEMEFINEELRKERLTER
20234 R BIH - M ACRRRFR20235F5 8 4 /]
£/ BEHEBREW T EZMN2023F2AER
MFTECER RS - M A HZFNE A T AR T
—HWEE (BHKIL)

2) REAERERBAKBAEDER=F  MERRESE
KoBM (RBAZ) - AR

(3) RAERBEMEA ERAF ARHAREERER A
1EBR - MBEBRRETEERNPEA - BEST
BER (TAKIL)

(1) Unreasonably refusing to accept the
complainant’s new application, which was made
in February 2023, for Hong Kong and Macao
cross-boundary private cars quota despite
that his existing quota would expire in April
2023 while the new quotas could only be used
starting from May 2023 the earliest, and giving
inconsistent replies to the complainant’s queries
(partially substantiated);

(2) Beingrigid and inflexible in processing quota
applications by not allowing automatic renewal
of quotas, in view of the pandemic, for 3 years
(unsubstantiated); and

(3) Failing to require applicants to provide relevant
information for screening purpose before
drawing ballots, resulting in the appearance
of many successful but ineligible applicants
and reduced administrative efficiency
(unsubstantiated)

iRy 1

Partially
substantiated

2023/1631

IR AR AR - EREHBFEHE I

Sending letters to the complainant’s previous address
despite that he had already updated his address

FARIAKAL - 1B MR 2
BAERRK
Unsubstantiated but

other inadequacies
found
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18 5 4 5%
Case No.

2023/1790 (1

RFEE
Complaint

[ZB1T] FREEEALHEER [MEAKE ]
WA - BERFINHER [ZR1T] ZEMWE
B (TRIL) ARk
REZZRIERF AL ERE A ETOERIER
RBRAER - UEERE [MHEAKE ] MERSE
MEH (L)

Extending the implementation of HKeToll to other
tunnels even though HKeToll system often failed
to read the Driver Card of the two-piece device
(unsubstantiated); and

Failing to properly handle the complainant’s
feedback on reading of the Driver Card and
Vehicle Tag and enquiry about the coverage of
the two-piece device (substantiated)

ERLswH
Overall
conclusion

iy

Partially
substantiated

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

2023/2765 (1)

[ZBIT] ARKFEEARERARS  SRBEE
ARBEIMPAME (TKIZ) ARk

[5@1T] BRRBERELELRIRFAFR LM
RRENER (KI)

Tunnel fee had to be deducted from the vehicle
owner’s account because HKeToll system often
failed to read the Driver Card (unsubstantiated);
and

Failure by HKeToll Hotline staff to properly
answer the complainant’s enquiry about the
above-mentioned problem (substantiated)

Partially
substantiated

2023/2873(1) (1

R IRE S 2023/24 1R

EREEARERBRIIKITRTE N ERHE
BER (PRZ) - AR
RAE R R BRI AM (K)

Refusing to provide information about driving
instructors in breach of traffic regulations or
involving misconduct (unsubstantiated); and
Failing to update the name list of driving
instructors in a timely manner (substantiated)

Partially
substantiated
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Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

F2HD - RNEHE
Part 2 : Public Organisations

B
Overall
conclusion

EEEA
No. of Recom-
mendations

18 5 4w 5%
Case No.

RFEE
Complaint

BREER
Hospital Authority

2022/36598B (1

)
(1

BFARXBEGHAEBIERE ZRHBNE
BEM FRERNBREILERTER MRS
BB E RAENRE (TR AR

ERERERZ MBI E (THKIL)

The transparency of the follow-up actions taken

Unsubstantiated

after the occurrence of adverse events following

COVID-19 immunisation of the complainant’s
late father was extremely low, and that there
was no channel for family members to learn
the follow-up actions taken by the authorities
(unsubstantiated); and

Refusal to provide the causality assessment by
the Expert Committee (unsubstantiated)

TEERR
Urban Renewal Authority

(1) EEEBEE [EFRALHEEBEME R
2] TREKEIRNERERSBNTES

A (TFEAL) AR

LIRS TIRE MRS RBIE (RFTK
Y BERERERK)

Unreasonably refusing to disclose the actual
amount and the computation of a grant for a
maintenance works project under the Building
Maintenance Grant Scheme for Needy Owners
(unsubstantiated); and

Offering a grant amount too small for a
maintenance works project (unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies found)

2023/1886A

2

B R B
Vocational Training Council

RAERBEIRBH CRRAERTAD) REABRER
FRORMEHER

Failing to handle a request for information regarding
a film footage in accordance with the Code on
Access to Information adopted by the Vocational
Training Council

2023/2455(R)

BEFTARAL - BHE 1
ABEBRK

Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found

BB BXAL 1

Partially
substantiated
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KerHAEREERNERETEER
Ssummaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full

Investigation

BLEE  HBERRUSENE

BERNXTHIEFHES
in alphabetical order

Department of Health, Education Bureau and Social Welfare Department

5>  #4«EDH

= #BERK&#E EDB and SWD

R BRESREEATEXARRBDHORE
RERZHRREM

BRFEAMBRFERL2019ERNEEREERR
FERABRKHED @ HERIE B R R R RER
e ([RFE] ) PLEBRERERS - BFA
RFFEZREARR R EMEFIFEREEA L
EERORRLS  HERRMERMNE ( [+
F| ) TWRAR LRER D BIR SR RFEF O IE
HEERES -

RENAERE  FLEEAEBTRREENEH
RIFkEREEN (BEREEALAERAER
By MEFHRERE)  BHER HE T2
RERFEFROLARETEERE LRZH - RFR
B BEBERAENABRBALRREEHRE
Al °

HEREAMBERER (BRERES) - AIKRE

BRI REH EAEREARENRESEBL SR
AIESIA - ZHRINER  HETRRREHRMBER
REFLBET2ERFLENERONHRIES - AF
R L MBI AR [ B R AR T DR A
B REs REHERES -

FREE 2023/24 3§

ST
H#090 FX A

TR Unsubstantiated

Partially substantiated

Unclear quarantine and class resumption
arrangements for COVID-19 recovered persons
when their family members were subsequently
tested positive

The complainant’s two sons, recovered from COVID-19,
had been denied by the school to resume class and a After
School Care Programme Centre (“ASCP Centre”) to receive
ASCP service due to their family member tested positive
subsequently. The complainant complained against the
Department of Health (“DH") for failing to explain to the
public and other government departments the quarantine
arrangement for recovered persons in the above situation;
the Education Bureau (“EDB") and the Social Welfare
Department (“SWD") had also failed to provide clear
guidelines for the above situations to schools and ASCP
Centres respectively.

Our investigation revealed that DH did disseminate
information about the COVID-19 epidemic and isolation/
quarantine arrangements through different channels,
including that a recovered person is not required to undergo
guarantine even if their family members have tested positive
subsequently. Yet, EDB, SWD, the School and the ASCP
Centre had failed to fully grasp the above arrangements.
We considered that DH should examine how to disseminate
anti-epidemic information to the public effectively.

Although EDB had issued the “Health Protection Measures
for Schools” (“the Measures”) to schools, it failed to
foresee parents may have queries on the above situation
and incorporate the relevant arrangements into the above
Measures timely, which we considered unsatisfactory.
SWD had also only asked ASCP Centres to heed and refer
to the relevant guidelines provided by the Centre for
Health Protection generally. We considered that EDB and
SWD should promptly provide schools and ASCP Centres
with clear guidelines and update relevant guidelines and
documents.
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HEEHATREZNERRRER

Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

"FEE

Department of Health

L

[——1

HH ER 3 [6) — %5 5 7B HMNRE SREE 1R T 3% Hh 38 AR
STRIBERSH

#4£2 DH B3z Substantiated

BN Tm - BEIIBRERT ( [IME] ) #
20225 AIE R BEBR EE X 2019 R m S HmEY
ERRAR - R AFE TR RAE fliER A
= ([l ) ERTERR - D3
o bRl < M B ARR IR EE 1 -

REORASERBMFE AR OFRIENH —
BERARBKRFAERS - TBELZEEENRAIP
DEAT HRAOIMEEIRR - BBEUREHRRIUL
BERETE - HRRIENNER T EHARFARE
RIMBEBIRARE - BREENEZRERER
ExcellBRZAZRMMN - METHEROBRIRE
REXCEERBRITM B RITHIME R - T
Y8 1B R R R A] BE SRR 4G B B Y 45 5| B Mk
MEEREHI R © I - REHERIIERTERIBRER
EERHIRAS - RIREZIDE AW BIET SRR E
Moasli Rl mm R TAENERZ RELE -

COVID-19 - =
swab sample +[] =

Mistakenly issuing Compulsory Testing Order
and follow-up letters to a foreign domestic
helper arriving in Hong Kong

The complainants were dissatisfied that despite the foreign
domestic helper having taken the specified COVID-19 test as
confirmed by the case officer of the Compulsory Testing
Prosecution Office (“CTPQ") under the Department of Health
("DH"), CTPO still issued a Compulsory Testing Order (“CTQ")
and two follow-up letters to the helper arriving in Hong Kong
from her country of origin in May 2022.

Our investigation found that the whole incident was caused
by a series of human errors in a test centre and CTPO.
The test centre, which was not under DH’s management,
input a wrong passport number of the foreign domestic
helper into the test record system, resulting in follow-up
actions by CTPO. Subsequently, despite that the CTPO case
officer confirmed with the complainants that the helper
had complied with the testing requirements, the officer
had repeatedly failed to update the case status in the Excel
file, which was a crucial step for case curtailment as the
Excel file was the master record for CTPO's future actions.
The officer’s failure to update the Excel file might be due
to unclear guideline to staff or insufficient staff training on
updating case status. We also found that CTPO had delayed
taking follow-up action on the CTO, suggesting that there was
no mechanism in CTPO to monitor the progress of follow-up
on outstanding cases of suspected non-compliance.

A | BEEsEmnES

@ o  EIMEBRHKERRERE

o  BMFBBEE M E R R & E
AR AIIE S| - WANSRAERI A B B

=l

s MEEKMEABERARRABYE
T VR3EZ HOHE )

Recommendations to DH
e  Provide a written confirmation for the conclusion of the
helper’s case

e Review the guideline and strengthen staff training on
properly updating test records and case status

e Review and enhance the mechanism of monitoring
progress of similar enforcement action in future

L —RIMERER TR EET

Note 1.

A foreign domestic helper and her employer
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Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

HEIREE

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

L

[——]

ERERRERERERNZEHREESR

MEBEMSD 0

BRFATHKRETRE ( [REE] ) BE2FRM
PEHENEREREREN  RRZENBIIE
RETERBERNEATRE

RFAM (e EBEZZRABEFRIMRE
BERRNZE2RRER - 2R BEZERKRFA
BERREN RTBEFERK  MARAFHA
REMR - ZFRBRFAREIEINERREE
REREAHBEHNCERNALERBERE -
BBBEZLTMEMERBIEN -EAFRAEH
B ZBRBFANBBREAETR - MEZNHE -
EETEZLRIZEHE  TERSRENEREF
AMEREE - REALTRBE LS ©

HAENELR  ER—HAF  BEAZRRFAR
ROREERIR (B3 LmR) SiRlER - 8
BERAREREMNRFEN  SRFARSE
BEREERIMEH -

AEREMEEHERRIDARE
GELBEEERRRARODE -

B - A

EexO
BRED

(2z22)33li5m

FREE 2023/24 3§

Partially substantiated

Repeated requests for information on electrical
products regarding safety requirements

The complainant was dissatisfied with the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department’s ("EMSD”) repeated
requests for information concerning the electrical
products he sold. He considered the handover of work
and communication between EMSD staff ineffective and
inefficient.

Allegedly, upon EMSD’s request, the complainant provided
Staff A with information concerning the safety requirements
of two models of smart toilet seats. However, one month
later, Staff B contacted the complainant for the information
again due to Staff A's inadequate handover of work before
his retirement. EMSD claimed that Staff B's request was
justified because the complainant’s initial submission could
not prove that the products had been issued with safety
compliance certificates prior to the relevant date. However,
our investigation revealed deficiency in the communication
between EMSD and the complainant. EMSD’s explanation
that its staff should refrain from disclosing fine details of
irregularities to suspects when collecting evidence for
prosecution was unconvincing.

Our investigation also found that on a separate occasion,
Staff C of EMSD requested the complainant to provide safety
certificates of four models of smart toilet seats (including
the two mentioned above) without specifying his need for
the latest product information. Therefore, the complainant
mistook it as a duplicated request.

We recommended that EMSD state clearly and explicitly
the information required when reaching out to industry
practitioners.
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REREE

Environmental Protection Department

L

[——1

S 00 ) 4 1SR AR 8 OO B - RRER NV SR AT

BR{%E EPD 2 AV

RFATEMEDRR LR (N8 TARR] A [BREJ )
RERFEREE ( [RRE] ) BUERRREAES
B ERZEBRETRLBEELIR -

RIE CERISREERD) - RELBAERERA
BRRIERTFER - REFAEHIR - IAREEM
RABRIDANEE  RRBCBESEZRERE &
BETHATHNER BHERISRHEBEAN « B4
ZRMERIE - BREEHSF - ERTAPIALER
BZEEREREENRELIR - BRNZLLERIE
PLEERE NP FIIREBEBET L - RIEMA
BRI MIRE LR EEEEA X -

NREFHERAF/BRRECREBEREMRTHRE
HHIRID RMEE T8 - ARRIEAREEEE—
2 RBRBRIZEBESHT MEARATHRE
B2 °

Unsubstantiated

Enforcement actions against two concrete
batching plants operating without a valid licence

The complainant alleged that two concrete batching plants
(referred to as “Plant A" and “Plant B") were still in operation
despite the Environmental Protection Department’s
(“EPD") revocation of their licences. He queried EPD for not
intervening and shutting down these plants.

According to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, the
operation of concrete batching plants requires a valid
Specified Process Licence (“SPL"). Our investigation revealed
that EPD had taken various follow-up actions against Plant
A’s operation without a valid SPL, including conducting
frequent inspections, issuing an Air Pollution Abatement
Notice, initiating multiple prosecutions, obtaining an
injunction order, etc. However, the current legislation did
not empower EPD to shut down an unlicensed concrete
batching plant. Regarding Plant B, the operator was
appealing against EPD’s decision of not renewing its SPL.
Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the SPL remained valid
during the appeal process.

After investigation, we considered EPD to have taken
necessary and appropriate actions to tackle Plant A's
unlicensed operation according to its jurisdiction and
the existing regulatory regime. There was no evidence
suggesting inaction or maladministration on the part of EPD
in the incident.
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RYUBRRALEERRBEBAE

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department and Home Affairs Department

L

[

HEMBHEHNRYWHEERESBENRE

MERFATHRYREFEE ( [RRE] ) &
RBEKEE ( [REBREE] ) REFEARKRELE
AR RUBEBTMISHIOTABMERAAELRE R
MYEKBE  URAEHUWEREEMEKBA
BEZME -

NEFEER  RRFAMRMEVAETNE  BFEE
FEREBREDRHNBESTE XE TSN L1165
0N RAEMBE TS —FRERFRT  BE—REE
FL7E300 ABRZ B AIR REER [RR]
BB SREL REARE [RR]  ZBERERH
CKEAERREETIAEBTLE  RBAEZEREEE
e ktEEEZEREFENEIWILBENZNE
o AMERETEEHE ©

NERR MEARLERZ O BESRERER
B RFAERETSRG EEFELREIIERE
REEHBBTE  MEREETVEERIRE

BHRE - REMT  REREGEERELED
5 DRUERORRE

BREREBR#ZE FEHD and HAD T5¢/ Unsubstantiated

Follow-up on obstruction and noise problems
caused by a wholesale market

Two complainants were discontented with the failure of
the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department (“FEHD")
and the Home Affairs Department (“"HAD") in resolving the
problems of street obstruction caused by large quantities
of waste and miscellaneous articles deposited on the
pavements and carriageways in the vicinity of a wholesale
market and the excessive noise generated by electric pallet
trucks used for moving the goods around from night to early
morning.

Our investigation revealed that: FEHD had taken enforcement
actions against the street obstruction, including conducting
joint operations with the Hong Kong Police Force; FEHD
would not provide cleansing services in the wholesale
market area after 11:30 pm but would normally clear the
rubbish and remove the unattended pallets in the area by
7:30 am; FEHD had initiated a disciplinary inquiry into a
suspected disciplinary case involving some workers who
collected pallets for others and reminded them to behave
properly; HAD had discussed the situation of the wholesale
market with stakeholders through the District Council and
the District Management Committee and communicated
with the traders for publicity and education purposes.

We considered FEHD and HAD to have by and large
followed up on the problems according to their purview;
the Government had to strike a balance between the night-
time operation of the wholesale market and its impacts on
the nearby residents; FEHD and HAD should keep a close
watch and follow up on the problems, while the Government
should closely monitor the problems and proactively
consider relocating the wholesale market as a long-term
solution.

\
\
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BREELER FLEERBREER

Health Bureau, Department of Health and Hospital Authority

L

)

E®&F HHB
BHEEREER DH and HA

REENERERHRARERRNBRERES
i 2 S

BRIFARFBFE BEEXREBHERE LR
EEREMRZBRETHRTER KT RARM
REZZXETHRERNRETESI - TEBRHER
REZEGHREETE

RENRASHERBAT  BREER ( [BER] )
AFEEEMIFARRNESR - FEBRERE
ERGBNEERABRARBEFGERR  BHE
BHEEDEA Bl GERBAENZZENT
RRERBORERF  HEBERERLEHKIH
A tHh REERBBELER ( [BFR] ) &
ReEEEAIRR - FERIARIES - —12F
FERFAMNFLEZHEUENERZESRERR
RHFERE - RERR - EREBFFARNFMG
BENZRNERELEREE  TREREZEREZE
SYEAARIRE - BMEFAEL T APTIEBIRHAE
MERNER - BRBMAEERC BRIGHER
SHIEFFINAKHIA o

B0 0 BX AL

Partially substantiated

TEsZ  Unsubstantiated

Reporting of unexpected serious adverse events
following immunisation with COVID-19 vaccines

The complainant complained that the transparency of the
follow-up actions of authorities after the report of serious
adverse events following immunisation with COVID-19
vaccines of her late father was extremely low. There was no
channel for family members to learn the follow-up actions
taken by the authorities, and the authorities had refused to
provide the causality assessment by the Expert Committee.

The findings of our investigation revealed that after the
Hospital Authority (“HA") had reported the case of the
complainant’s father to the Department of Health (“DH"), and
after DH had notified HA of the relevant causality assessment
results in accordance with the prevailing handling
mechanism, as the then mechanism did not include the
procedure of notifying individual affected persons and their
families of the results, HA did not contact the complainant
thereafter. In addition, the Health Bureau (“HHB") and DH
started to put in place a mechanism more than a year after
the commencement of the Vaccination Programme to
standardise the procedures for applicants to pay a fee to
DH for obtaining the required assessment reports prepared
by the Expert Committee. Our Office is of the view that the
authorities were slow in handling the applicants’ request for
the assessment reports and did not explain that the Expert
Committee does not have the relevant reports, thus giving
the applicants the impression that the Department had
refused to provide the relevant information. HA and DH have
now incorporated the procedures for requesting assessment
reports into the mechanism.

A | aEsREmnESE

@ e ZBERNEBEEENPBEEEHE
BHEEEETEHERBETG
ERMER  WEIERIES 8
TRENEEZEAEMEAANBRERE
RIRITH B R BB E

Recommendation to HHB

e To provide information on the handling of enquiries
about adverse events following vaccination on the
thematic webpage and to strengthen the relevant
guidelines to instruct staff and healthcare professionals
to clearly explain to enquirers the operational flow of
the existing mechanism

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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ARBERR

Former Home Affairs Bureau

L
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BFRILEREESE ([EEE] ) sHEIHR
E

B RS Former HAB ZNpava

BRSFATNRARBESR ( [RER] ) REEE
ERIORAETHABRELLERGTE -

NRERELRR RITHRREAXNRERERER, B
FIR B ETTR AT AIMEREORTE © BT S E K
RIMELBRRER  @ZRBENRREERFTR
FREAMAEREHEENETARER - HRKRLE
AEHEZRENERKRNEREEARE  #0
HZERERHIRERMERER  JEAE - R
AMRBEAERLAIFEEEBHBEREZ (WEX
SHAENMBE BB  BFEREERNBBER
B) c BERREACRBATABERNERE
B MENMRERTEFSEEZERXRERER
RIE - EAREENE MO ALTRBUFEFEHEABREK
RERBAFNENRE -

BEMES > AIRBRBEREBUEER S8R
ETRRFER - WRAERBT AL E BRME
FFeo ZRREEERZHENEREA REBHF
U FEREEEZBEELBRRE - XD
ERFEREMBAZEZREMFNERD BB -
ZEIEM -

£l
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(=l
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FREE 2023/24 3§

Unsubstantiated

Government'’s decision to terminate the Mutual
Aid Committee (“MAC"”) Scheme

The complainant was dissatisfied with the decision of the
former Home Affairs Bureau (“HAB") to terminate the MAC
Scheme without proper consideration and consultation.

Our investigation revealed that public consultation is not
mandatory in the decision-making process under the
Government'’s prevailing policy. The Government would
decide whether prior public consultation is necessary
after considering the background and needs of individual
policies. Since the termination of the MAC Scheme would
have profound impacts on MACs and the residents they
represented, it was reasonable for the stakeholders to
expect the Government’s prior consultation with them
before making a decision. While the Bureau had considered
relevant factors (e.g. the roles, functions and number of
MACs, communication channels between the Government
and residents) before deciding to terminate the MAC
Scheme, it did not conduct any open consultation to collect
stakeholders’ views. Instead, the Bureau provided all MACs
with a post factum explanation for its decision. This might
have fallen short of the expectation of some stakeholders
who expected the Government's consultation prior to
making important decisions.

In sum, we do not consider the former HAB's decision to
terminate the MAC Scheme without prior consultation
as violating the Government'’s established policies and
procedures. The Bureau had considered comprehensive
information before making the decision. No information
revealed that the MAC Scheme was terminated without
proper consideration. However, it would have been more
desirable if the Government had communicated with various
MACs and stakeholders thoroughly before making the
decision.
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FEE

Housing Department

L

[——]

HETEBHERVNERRH

BFAREEZBRIBRAEEEZMKESEHL
MIRE  ZENGCEZXBREERER SHER
B o RFAEZMUN [RIESHER] X8
AEEREELERRRBHORIEENFREATENE
X PR EERERBSEREERREEREM
BUOBEIRIZER - b A TR REEBRNELER
AR E AR R EIREEE

EEZ HD

2B A

REFHEER - BAEFEZBESWHEBESIFIH -
R ILEE  ER-EBAEE _RRM#Hge
R—TXHNER  EEAETMEEHEETEEZR
AEEHRRAEBNEFS  BIRAEMREENS
BEHeHK RAEPREEERR - LERHE
£ BEFYEIBRHFANKREERS  BZER
MEFRAELBRERGIEERER [TZZE] M
REZED  ARESRFARGERFEERBE
He RENER  FEEERERAEBEARE
EFRILEEORIMEE - ERIIBFAENR
&% o LN MEARE IR E A F 4 R EIREUE
EHWEFR - RERR - REBERENTEEEZ
WRERR BEAERATERANKE -

” [

Partially substantiated

Tendering arrangement for the lease of a shop
in a housing estate

The complainant submitted a rental tender for a shop
designated as “plumbing and electrical repair” in a housing
estate, but the tender was rejected by the Housing
Department (“HD") because he was already running a
shop providing the same services in that housing estate.
He alleged that the Special Conditions of Tender of the
shop did not specify that tenders from tenderers operating
the same trade in the housing estate concerned might
be rejected. He was dissatisfied that HD had mistakenly
considered his tender being in violation of the conditions
and disqualified him from bidding for the lease of the
shop, and tenderers had no way or access to ascertain
HD’s criteria for approving tenders and the factors to be
considered in determining priority.

Our investigation revealed that, on prevention of monopoly,
the relevant guidelines of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
stipulate that where this is a second shop available for
operating an existing trade in a housing estate, it should
not be leased to the operator running the same trade in
the estate if possible. Nevertheless, the existing tenant
might be granted the tenancy if no other tenderers offer a
reasonable tendered rent for the shop. In this case, HD had
not disqualified the complainant from bidding. However,
when HD informed him that the failure of his tender
was due to “inappropriacy”, it might have caused him to
misunderstand that he had been disqualified from bidding.
Our investigation also revealed that HD had failed to explain
clearly to tenderers the principle and practice of prevention
of monopoly in the tender process, which led to disputes
and complaints. Moreover, the tendering documents of the
shop did not mention to tenderers the criteria adopted in
scrutinising tenders and factors in determining priority. In
our view, not making available to tenderers the principles
for approving tenders is against HD's intention to enable
reasonable, fair and transparent tender exercises.

BFEEERHNER
o RIVANMKRBEBRRERORLT
I @RS ERAR

s ETRBBABEREBEARFERBZ
U7 7 A B S By L BRI O 3 B
REZEEHNEMEEREER

Recommendations to HD

e Review the description of tender results in the
notification letter to tenderers to avoid misunderstanding

e Consider explaining to tenderers through proper
channels the general principle of prevention of
monopoly and considerations pertinent to the vetting
of tenders for leasing shops

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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BEmE

Transport Department
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EBE TD
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1

BFAMEZETF DR RBBUERRES RIRE LM A
EBHEAFLTEHM2MEREZH - KIFATHZEE
BE RS - A REMKRAEEAERNER T
AR ER AR LG - 5~ H  ZEFLHME
FHZE - WAFATMEZEBEBA TR ERIEEEILER
BES BB SHELMRL -

REHEHRR  ERFVNHEEZERBENRERE
THRBMESHMIBHATEHRFR - BMEGRIE
[FEEPTREIEGINIE R | ARTRE2MERD
Hif R B ASERMAREERAREZRNEZH
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HIEFE - FOHEHRREEARBERTEHEK
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2019BREEHE - AU ERZERBMNER [BINI
(BEEMAERAF] -
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1 BB AR AR

2. EESRMmEDALOBDEESE
t

ARATLF

FREE 2023/24 3§

Partially substantiated

Handling of the application for postponing a
driving test by a candidate under isolation order

The complainant and his wife had to postpone their driving
tests since they had to comply with an isolation order' (“10")
and a quarantine order? (“QQ") respectively. The complainant
was dissatisfied that the Transport Department (“TD")
rejected his application and considered his application to
have been made on medical grounds despite that he had
clearly pointed out that he was asymptomatic. Meanwhile,
TD rescheduled his wife's test. The complainant was
dissatisfied that TD handled applications by candidates
having to comply with 10 and QO in different ways.

Our investigation revealed that TD initially handled the
applications for postponement by candidates having to
comply with 10 or QO by regarding both as applications
made due to circumstances beyond the candidates’ control
leading to their being unable to attend for the tests. It only
accepted those applications made by candidates who were
holding Test Forms which were still valid on the end-of-list
appointment dates and allocated end-of-list appointments
to the candidates as the new test appointments. Upon
review, TD made special arrangements for candidates who
had to comply with QO: it allocated to them earlier test
appointments with waiting time about half of that of end-
of-list appointments and allowed them to purchase new
Test Forms if their Test Forms would have expired by the
new test appointments. Meanwhile, TD considered that
the complainant’s application for postponement was made
on medical grounds since he was confirmed to have been
infected with COVID-19.

Notes:

1.
2.

Issued to infected persons during the pandemic
Issued to close contacts of infected persons, inbound persons, etc.
during the pandemic



Ff$%8 Appendix 8

RErERFAERERNERREZER
Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

NERE BHEAKRFANEARSKE EH]  We consider it not unreasonable of TD to have rejected
BARABMMIBRLMNETE  WELE - A » AFR  the complainant’s application since his Test Form would
B ZEBREEW RS ARNRTERIEMBAHBGER  have expired by the new test appointment. Nevertheless,
BHE - B4 REREZEREENEEIERIZEE it could not explain clearly why it handled the two types of
BEes|ReskSEs  MAEMBANT - BRIEA applications in different ways. Moreover, we consider TD's
AR SEBER [FEEFTREEH MIE R ABTEE  saying that candidates had made applications on medical
FigamEs|  ZEBEFTREELRLUERE  grounds had caused misunderstanding or disputes. The key
BHREHAR ° point for handling applications for postponement under the
relevant legislation is whether the candidates are through
circumstances beyond their control unable to attend for
tests. TD actually did not need to delineate whether the
candidates had made applications on medical grounds.

A | nERBRENESR Recommendations to TD

@ o MIEHWHLER - HIRATFEIEMA e To review the approval criteria to ensure that
EAER [FEEMEEESMBER] 12 applications for postponement made due to
R IE AR FR A circumstances beyond the candidate’s control are

handled in a fair manner
o  R4HE [FFEFTEEIEHIAIENR ]
RHEHBEENEAENEMmMOEZE - o To review the content of its written reply to

HESIEREWETIEREEL R candidates making applications for postponement
= due to circumstances beyond their control to avoid

misunderstanding and to note that proper explanation
should be given

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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BEmE

Transport Department

ﬁ E®WE TD AL

[——]

HERLAXEREPFOEL

REFAR - R A MERFEMRFINLKEER
R2023FA A B - MARBEZERRFSAA AL
B EBEHEEEM MEXMREF2ARINHN
FCBEER R o WM - iR B R B AR B AR
BEEM=F  WEREE  UWRREEREME
RIEKEBEFARKBBZERENAERR - ABH
BRETBEBROTEA - BREITHHE -

BRERR - MEAFEAREGEBENSE B
FEBAR A C ER  BABRBFNLE ° %
ESERFARECRARBHAANERALY © #
BILHREPARBAHERERAY - RFR
R RERVHREETAIBE - BEMEBLEFDIE
TR AR TE M bl B8 o

SLEMIET - BHERE  XBRTHEERA XY
ERREBREIPBENRERR TEESZARE
MIRITEZ BB NIEF A R AR I AR BE &
HE - BPEEAT REERIZENRE -

Partially substantiated

Handling of an application for cross-boundary
private cars quota

The complainant alleged that the Transport Department
("TD") unreasonably refused to accept his new application
made in February 2023 for a Hong Kong and Macao cross-
boundary private cars quota, despite that the quota he
held would expire in April 2023 while the new quotas could
only be used starting from May 2023 the earliest. He also
alleged that TD was rigid in processing quota applications,
by not allowing automatic renewal of quotas, in view of the
pandemic, for 3 years, and failed to require applicants to
provide relevant information for screening purposes before
drawing ballots for successful applicants, resulting in many
ineligible applicants getting selected and the lowering of
administrative efficiency.

TD agreed that if an applicant’s original quota would have
expired before the expected effective date of the new
guota, the holder should be eligible for applying for a new
quota. In this light, TD would change to use the expected
effective date of the new quotas instead of using the closing
date of application to determine whether an applicant is a
current quota holder. We consider TD's previous decision
unreasonable, but are glad to learn that TD had reviewed it
and decided to make the said change.

Regarding other allegations, TD explained that re-allocation
of quotas upon expiry through open application aims
at benefiting more people, and the current application
vetting procedures can obviate the need for processing a
huge number of unsuccessful applications and thus save
manpower. We accept TD's explanation.

Ay | DEBBRENES

@ e EBREFEEWRERRE EHBAED
RERBERAANERAN A&
LR AR AR AR EERA
H

Recommendation to TD

e To implement as soon as possible the improvement
measure of using the expected effective date of the new
guotas to determine whether an applicant was a quota
holder, rather than using the closing date of application

@/ FRIFEE 2023124 F3
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BEmE

Transport Department
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EX3Z  Substantiated

Loss of vehicle tags in the post and arrangement
for implementation of HKeToll

The complainant, when applying for renewal of vehicle
licence, applied for a HKeToll vehicle tag (“the vehicle
tag”) concurrently. He complained against the Transport
Department (“TD") for losing his vehicle tag in the post, and
that the Toll Service Provider (“TSP") staff had unreasonably
suggested him to visit a service outlet for re-issuance of
vehicle tag, wasting his time.

TD explained that due to an error in the computer programme
instructions, some applicants’ mailing addresses could
not be completely transferred from the Department’s
computer system to the HKeToll system, resulting in the
loss of the vehicle tags in the post. TD admitted that there
are inadequacies on the part of TSP for suggesting the
complainant to re-apply for the vehicle tag in person. TD had
subsequently taken improvement measures with TSP and
apologised to the complainant in this regard.

Besides, TD started accepting registered vehicle owners’
("RVOs") application for vehicle tags back in November
2021, but only issued the vehicle tags in January 2023 when
announcing that HKeToll would be implemented in February
in the same year. Such arrangement had caused a sudden
surge in applications for vehicle tags and enquiries from RVOs
within a short time, which exceeded the TSP’s capacity. The
arrangement was not satisfactory. The incident reflected
that there was no buffer reserved for handling unforeseeable
events in TD's plan. We urge TD to learn from this case. It
should set a reasonable schedule for implementing new
transport schemes/measures in future, and announce the
details as soon as possible.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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BRXFRERF
in alphabetical order

FNEHD  PEPI BT RAZETEIDASTHRDRRANEERED
Part 1. Examples of Improvement Measures Introduced by Departments and Organisations Following Our Direct
Investigation Operations

g (EXRER) } bl
Organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BRENERE s RUBFVR EEBEZHAETFRIMNEMRRGF I (4)
Agriculture, Fisheries and NEFAREERARGALNEMRE B

Conservation Department Established an electronic platform for submitting

(DI/445) applications for dog licence by veterinary clinics on behalf

of their clients and notifying dog keepers directly of
licence issuance by electronic means

o HEMEMRIHN  AFREATVABIAEEEARENM (4)
EEAEER

To remind dog keepers to renew dog licences through
Short Message Service before expiry of the licences

EFERMBEE EFZ BD

Buildings Department ("BD") & . EHARRAEREEAERESHEAROEE  ABREE )
Lands Department (“LandsD") i
<
LrEs2) To regularly provide LandsD with a list of cases with
information outstanding for monitoring information
exchange

o HEHMARERESEF ( [FANE] ) BEUHOBERE ()
52
Simplified the enforcement procedures for dealing with
unauthorised building works (“UBWs") in New Territories
Exempted Houses (“NTEHS")

o BEUMETIAE  BEMRARRXALERS - AR ()
EEREE AR IIERE
Established a new e-platform for submission of all work
reports by consultants and for facilitating the monitoring of
their performance

o  BREBERNBHRERLMAMES LA TIEET RRER (5)
TE - WER S N ER SR ML
Specified a time frame for registration of outstanding
removal orders with the Land Registry and established a
mechanism for internal monitoring

o EEBREFEREGENBEHRHNESR P RIUESNIA LR ()
ANEER - KEEEINERDESR
Priority of prosecution accorded to cases of persistent
non-compliance with removal orders, cases involving
NTEHSs of four or more storeys, or UBWS under
construction

' HIFEE 2023/24 F1H
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HiE (ERER) =L

organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

o  TREMRFEEEMPEERENERER (7)
To publicise convicted cases with heavy penalties through
social media from time to time

= Both Departments

o RUBIMFIEKNE  REFEFTANEBREYNER )
Set up an inter-departmental liaison group to follow up on
matters relating to UBWS in NTEHS

Rz o HARMEEAEMRMBEBIFTHIEES - WIHBE MER(E (1
Civil Aviation Department BEL==iii
(DI1/449) Drew up collaborative guidelines with major local

paragliding associations and help them revise their
operational manuals at appropriate time

s HEENABEERRBARIDIRBHRFERTELR & )
REMEZ2AEBRERSTIRENBERZ2E
To collate and analyse information from the perspective
of civil aviation safety for the Police’s reference before
referring complaint cases on allegedly illegal paragliding
activities or services to the latter for follow-up

o HIEEIIABEEFEIERENREEAEZEEER )
Formulated a guideline to facilitate the Police’s handling of
paragliding-related reports and incidents

o  EBITTHIRHEAMEMEELBIEHETEARZHERLE (5)
Aol =
Implemented real-name registration scheme for
paragliding activities in collaboration with local paragliding
associations

e AEERTZMEMRRITERICTME RERRE - A (5)
B IR E PR R ERE ER | R TR
Assigned registration numbers to registered paraglider
pilots and made labels for them to affix to their paraglider
equipment to display their numbers

o REARBEFRIEATHREHAN  UETMZRBIEESIEK ()
ETEIRENAS e HERASEREHEHEEDLR
ics
Prepared investigation report templates for paragliding
associations for their investigation of paragliding accidents
and incidents in accordance with the requirements of
collaborative guidelines, and will take further follow-up
action together with law enforcement agencies based on
the investigation results

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 w
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HiE (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference)

Szl
Improvement measures Category

o TEHIES R A IREE MR ZERE MR FIEKE - R ()
RABRART Al 55 15 B ARME A z= AR TS ) B R (E
To carry out regular on-site inspections of the operations
of paragliding air services provided by relevant permit
holders at the hotspots of such services

o HESERA  LINERAREEAREHLE RFAEHE (7)
B 3R 5k
Produced a promotional video to enhance public
awareness about the safety of paragliding activities and
the relevant permit system

RYIRIREEE

Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department
(DI1/403)

TR A M EARBAAMAGE - FTRRFESEMRE - B2 ()
RMETEMER - URHEABEANEE

Introduced an additional clause to newly signed tenancy

agreements for market stalls, stipulating the Government’s

power and responsibility for carrying out maintenance, repair

and improvement works in public markets, as well as the

obligations of tenants

RYPIRIBREEE

Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department
(D1/7416)

NHEmEERENRE - BRER  EVEETABRE X (5)
KERIEP

Enhanced the follow-up actions to tackle the management
problems, including rodent infestation, obstruction of
passageways by goods and non-compliant stall tenants, in
public markets

RYIRIREEE

Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department
(D1/447)

HFEE 2023/24 F3]

o BREEREUBF A ARETHSIET 5] (5)
Guidelines on the review mechanism of mosquito
surveillance methodologies drawn up

o THRFEHEMNRSGMARESITINGE - LEBBEBARA (5)
F - REFAWNBIIE
Added to the Complaint Management Information System
a new function for analysing hotspots for more effective
deployment of manpower in anti-mosquito work

s EARMERARAERMEMBLEMEEE  HEDER @)
BT

Online information and statistics under the Dengue Vector
Surveillance Programme consolidated for easier viewing by
members of the public
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organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

s FRIMERKIFINMEBRREFHREEREIEE®RSLN @)
WA - G INARE SRR EE
Explicated the response mechanism under the Dengue
Vector Surveillance Programme through press releases
and departmental website to raise public awareness and
participation

RYPBRIEFEEE o FRFRTEIRRENS - INAEEEEESHHEANRFHE ()
Food and Environmental Il
Hygiene Department Monitoring of the cleanliness of shops adjoining rear
(DI/446) lanes stepped up through special operations and surprise
inspections
o INJEFER R AMBIMEERBBMEE  RRABHRR (5)
ETIERENAR

Communication and collaboration with the trade and local
academic institutions strengthened to explore ways to
enhance the effectiveness of anti-rodent work

o TMTRFEBENESRMARIAITINGE  LEBBBARA (5)
FREEEME
Complaint Management Information System enhanced
with the function of hotspots analysis for more effective
deployment of manpower in rodent prevention and
disinfestation

o INJBHEFTEMEE A B IEFER AR E TEMEERE - () & (8)
PES T 0]
Training for frontline and supervisory staff on the correct
use of tools and equipment for rodent disinfestation
strengthened, and monitoring of contractors stepped up

B N At =S B MREND MR IT S BUR B~ 3PP R M PIE R AR B R — 1 A @)
Government Secretariat — EINEEEZERE Y HHEEEZENGSR  BESE - RIEE
Constitutional and B AIEEMREE  FRARBEESREELNREETENE L

Mainland Affairs Bureau HEER

(D1/443) Compiled and provided to all Government bureaux and

departments as well as related organisations under their
purview a list of non-government foreign-language interpreters
(with the interpreters’ names, contact methods and service
hours, languages they can interpret, validity of their Service
Engagement Letters issued by the Judiciary Administration,
etc.)

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 w
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HiE (ERER) =L
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BRB o FIEEBFIEE — MBI TIERRIR (1
Government Secretariat — Drew up time frames for carrying out ordinary tree work by
Development Bureau departments

(Dl/aé3) o S REBFIEEFBOMARFER  BRAHEBETH )

FMARER —EARAKERREEN ANLEL

To include the overall handling time of a tree complaint
case involving disputes over responsibilities among
departments, as a criterion for the Tree Management
Office’s intervention

o SNIMPRIHFIEREFZNEAREFRESE RS MR 2)
ﬁ@ ’ E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?f?ﬁmu%ﬂﬁ?
To analyse tree complaints involving disputes over
responsibilities among departments, to collate information
about departments’ common differences in opinions and
misunderstanding, and to conduct exchanges and sharing
with the departments regularly

o B8R EWMEMBBEER - MAEZFAER - AN (5)
EE SR fR B M R IR ER RO R 3R
Categories of data in 1823's monthly reports enhanced
to include more statistics for more rigorous monitoring of
departments’ performance in handling tree complaints

o ESREBPITEE AR ik P IE 3R AT 1823 I MU AR IR B Y (B 22 (5)
HFERERETZE  UEEERIBFIRERFNBER
Required departments to report at regular meetings data
and follow-up actions relating to tree complaints not
received via 1823 for comprehensive monitoring of the
status of departments’ complaint handling

e FRTHERNEMRERE  HEETUWBRBRE/HARSR (5)
MR - BREEENEAEL SRR
Continue to monitor the Lands Department’s performance
in handling tree complaints through regular meetings and
other channels to ensure proper handling of problematic

trees
BER HET R A A B SR E M & A E 2 AR R E (5)
Government Secretariat — Established and announced a more comprehensive application
Education Bureau and approval mechanism regarding the collection of other
(DI7421) charges by private schools
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REREER ([RER] ) R
REFEBR BEREE  RUR
BEEE ([REE] ) - BEE-
RBEBRE ( [ RBEE] ) &
I EE

Government Secretariat —
Environment and Ecology

Bureau (“EEB"), Home and Youth
Affairs Bureau, Environmental
Protection Department, Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department
("FEHD"), Highways Department
("HyD"), Home Affairs Department
("HAD") & Lands Department
(“LandsD")
(D1/455)
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Improvement measures Category

RBBEZBEMIMNERRBREHBENHAAC - WES 2)
FHiRBATERIEIFEAB (M AR ERE

HAD encouraged other departments to make good use of

the coordinating role of District Offices and to continue to

tackle illegal occupation or obstruction of streets through

joint operations

BSAAL TR EER | - REZHATRERY [REFER (2)
MALENE] - ERREEINRRIRFESBEHNBE IR

ET1

The Government set up the Task Force on District

Governance and, under it, the Working Group on

Environmental Hygiene and Cityscape to enhance inter-

departmental coordination of environmental hygiene

matters at central level

IR E B A BT A B IR BEEM B ERE (2)
FEEPPIME] - URFRIBREE LHWFH

HyD and LandsD implemented an inter-departmental

mechanism for early resolution of disputes on

responsibilities involving illegal deposition of construction

materials on public roads

RERMRIRERSMEEFETHIIA (5)
EEB and FEHD increased the penalties for offences relating
to street obstruction

REREEBHE ( [REXE] )
Leisure and Cultural Services
Department (“LCSD")

(DI1/424)

1BETIEE| RREX @ FIAXEK [FRAZFTE] ( [H98 (5)
FTEl] ) B BEHKEPTER RSB AR IEE RN R R 54
2R DEEGRESESLRBEERGENK  WEHRS
ERERSHRAXENTE R RE

Revised the guideline and application form specifying

that activities organised by swimming clubs using

the swimming lanes allocated under the Central Lane
Allocation Scheme (“CLAS") should be non-profit-making
and for training purposes only, and issued letters to
remind the National Sports Associations (“NSAs”) of the
relevant terms, and will regularly review the records and
inspection reports on the hiring of swimming lanes by
NSAS

FARSEEASREEBSIVEERXGNLE: - 285 ()
REZRIEN - MRBIEEREROEF

To provide NSAs with a monthly record of the cancellation

of hire of swimming lanes by their affiliated clubs, so that

the NSAs can keep track of the situation and expedite the

process of reviewing non-compliant cases
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organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

o  ERIITERFERICHRENESRESTH  BRKER ()
FRATERHERER - ZBFERE RN ERBR -
WIRR S BB B IR D EREER
To strictly enforce the admission and signing-in
arrangements for using swimming pool facilities by
organisations to ensure no unauthorised transfer of
swimming lanes, and to deploy staff regularly to inspect
the use of swimming pools and to review the inspection
records of NSAs for continuous monitoring

s BNRTEENZTETHEETMKENERRE @ EEZIK (6)
AR AT E fth B BE S N R E R
Revised the number of lane hours for the main pools
allocated under CLAS to make more swimming lanes
available for use by other organisations or members of the
public

s REFEXEAESEMEMKGRELR ZFEZEEHEA (6)
Bk ENERERS M ETERZLIKR
Set an upper limit on the number of main pool swimming
lanes to be located to each swimming club so that
more interested clubs or organisations can have more
opportunities to hire those lanes

s RRNXEFHRBEAGREARKMAKSN [PRITERTITE 9
NE ] BRLD ARETEI T BVKAR D e & B 18 BE 25T /eI - I
BEZENRTIDBLERANSB YL EHE@u
The Review Committee formed by the representatives
from LCSD, NSAs and the trade had worked out the
mechanism for allocation of swimming lanes under CLAS
and for future monitoring, and had notified the NSAs of the
assessment criteria and marking scheme and uploaded
them onto websites

RERLEBHE o ZEXMBEAZNNBEIERANETEL (EREESR] & (5)
Leisure and Cultural #t
Services Department Required all e-books shortlisted for acquisition
(DI/460) or replacement to be submitted to the Collection
Development Meeting for approval
o  EFFHMAMBFENENBN - WLHHIBETEIMERAIE (4)

RNEBEEF K - WHEREE A I xR

Proactively analysed the booking situation of popular
e-books and acquired extra copies for meeting patrons’
demand and shortened their waiting time

FiFEES 2023/24 £3])
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BERR o ERBRFALAMERARFHREET] - B2021FBRER (4)
Marine Department ABARERENRIERE  WEFF AR REGREAL

(DI/418) A ARIENFLABAREVE

Completed reviewing the mechanism for waiting for
private mooring (“PM") permission, including freezing
the waiting lists of all PM areas since 2021 and inviting
all applicants on the frozen waiting lists to apply for
unallocated PM spaces every six months

o EBEEFMAMERBREATHNEREE - BIEFIHARUN ()
WEBRERE M & Al R SIEAE - LAINRFL A BRI
ERE o B2022F BRILEEAABBRBENL S HEHRRE
FIBEB#ZEELNEBmAT
Revised the conditions for permission to lay PMs, including
specifying their validity periods and renewal and extension
of validity periods upon expiry are not allowable, to
expedite the turnover of PM spaces. Since 2022, the point
system was extended to all PM permissions issued by the
department

o MMM AMEEALH - HEHARBIRAERFFRN (5)
RE 2RERCEERTERGHEHMEBREZR
Reviewed the arrangements for private vessel moorings.
Will keep open-minded on the proposal of regular open
tender and will keep in view whether there is a practical
need and suitable location for further consideration

o EAIARIRE AN IEEF BRI E S ARIE A M R AR ()
IR BB NI TR I A BRI NE TIE
Finished examining the proposal of detaining the vessels
berthed at illegal mooring buoys or prosecuting the vessel
owners, and take enforcement actions against illegal
mooring buoys in the meantime

s FYERBEEANBERICALRM - B RBHREER - (5)
W EREETHEITE  REEREEEMOME
Closely monitor the situation at typhoon shelters, including
solicitation for rewards for berthing, intimidation and
blackmail, and conducted joint operations with the Police
to initiate prosecutions against the vessels that violate the
law

o EABABBALABRARBGOHWERS - RARITHEEITTS (6)
T B sk B K T B N B ) — AR R Bl
Reviewed the charging mechanism for laying PMs and
considered the existing mechanism was in line with the
Government’s general principle of requiring fee levels to
be cost-linked
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BERREHZS B EFE MD

I DEEE T 1) o EEHTANGA BT SR EEAREE RO TS ()
Transport Department (“TD") 2|

(D1/453)

Implemented the guidelines for taking enforcement
actions against illegal carriage of passengers on vessels by
frontline staff

o MREEEMEEBLETERBHERENERERER )
B iR AE
Expedited the referral of cases concerning vessels
suspectedly engaging in unlicensed kaito service to TD and
the Hong Kong Police Force for follow-up

o TRV NN AL AL BB VERR AR LT IR RR IR - E K (4)
HEEMERIRAEKEE R — #1585 H
Attached conditions to the operating licences for pleasure
vessels permitted to be let for hire or reward, requiring
those vessels to display lifejacket stickers and QR code
posters

o HEINHEMEERATHKER K] 178 ()
Conducted more patrols and decoy operations targeting
illegal carriage of passengers

o FER/NMETF - BRRESRFAARGAFRLE ZEEME @)
BB - DA RIRGLER /AR AR IS A AR B S A
£ FRRAERENEA
Explained to the public through brochures, posters and
promotional videos the points to note when travelling by
chartered pleasure vessels, and provided information on
licensed kaito services and the life-saving appliances on
board

' HIFEE 2023/24 F1H
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ERE TD

o EIBANTEAETREASURSEEERFHRR - WL (2) & (5)
HEEREN THABFIRE  BRHERNREKEET
Pl 75 58 2 1Y [ P
To conduct regular surveys via contractors for assessing
the performance of kaito operators and refer relevant
information to law enforcement agencies for follow-up;
and to conduct by the Department itself blitz inspections
for monitoring the contractors

o EEEENEHAREEMERTIEEIELLER - AEM (4)
R RIER &R EE RS
Required kaito operators to display specific labels and
flags on designated vessels to facilitate identification of
approved kaito services by members of the public

s REEMKREEHETRERAS  ERRFEFTREM & (4)
FEEE S PR IE MR
Conducted surveys at berthing points of licensed kaito
routes; to invite kaito operators to launch new routes
when increase of passenger demand is noticed

o  REFIRUIRMABEREHERRBAEEE FREBRENE (7)
&l
Provided on its website information about applying for
kaito licence for operating maritime transport services
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tEEiE o HIFTEMR L EAEDANE R ER &k & E b i8R =75 55 iR (1) & (5)
Social Welfare Department KERBRFREIE

(DI1/398) Devised a time frame for the non-compliant residential

care homes for the elderly to rectify their irregularities and
a timetable for the Licensing Office of Residential Care
Homes for the Elderly to conduct follow-up inspections

o {BFT (ZERIEAFD) - NIRALZERMNE & (5)
Amended the Residential Care Homes (Elderly Persons)
Ordinance to enhance the quality of residential care
homes for the elderly

BB FAEHEHER e FIAEZTEMN BKEFEERS] LHERTREENR ()
The Joint Office for Investigation of - WIE AR BRI EUE - DAMED T R F] [EZR B IR SR B

Water Seepage Complaints To record reasons of prolonged completion time of cases

(D1/428) in the enhanced Water Seepage Complaint Management

System and compile statistics periodically for making
analyses and devising case management strategies

s MUERKEHEBREAMESFMRERER (BIEOREIIEXR 7)
N EEIER BRI A S L)
To promulgate annual performance (i.e. percentage of
cases completed within 90 working days) on the thematic
webpage for water seepage

BHE WRAELRRBEKEE EBETD

v% 3y AN =4 8
N . oy e © EWERERABESEOARII  RUSHOTERT @
port bep P T ERARGNEEEHOEE AR
Department (“LandsD"”) & Home . . : :
) . . TD proactively collaborated with LandsD in evidence
Affairs Department (“HAD") ; L : :
DI/451 collection by providing information of the registered
( ) owners of the abandoned vehicles (“AVs”) confiscated on
Government land

MRS E 2023/24 F 3R
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Improvement measures Category
B ABE LandsD

WRAEERUREFTWMEROREMRIETE AR (5)
EIRERBEEWHNEET

LandsD relaunched its work on evidence collection and
prosecution for AV cases, and successfully prosecuted the
owner of an illegal AV

BpE M B4EE TD and LandsD

ERBBENRET @ ERE R IAZHF S BT 2)
(BERBENRBEBERRE) £2023F3A %M (R HBEK
RALBEBREEERESITENIES) - BMET S HFIRE
AHEE T RBEEHNIEF
Under HAD's coordination, LandsD, TD and other
departments (including the Highways Department and the
Hong Kong Police Force) promulgated in March 2023 “The
Operational Procedures for Handling Abandoned Vehicles
in Public Roads and Public Rear Lanes” which clearly
laid down the procedures of respective departments for
handling motorcycles abandoned in public rear lanes

RBAEZERYIRRANEEEWHEE - BERIGFIFIET (2) & (7)
Ba BIRITE - WEMTAIRF AR AR KA RIREITE

HAD to closely monitor the situation of AVs in the

district, coordinate joint clearance operations with the

departments concerned in a timely manner, and clearly

explain the follow-up actions to complainants and the

public
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F2E5 : TS HPFIREBE AT ETEHAERIIRMANEHEEE D
Part 2: Examples of Improvement Measures Introduced by Departments and Organisations Following Our Full Investigations

#iE (ER&ER) ; 5l

Organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

EFE  BREREE( [RRE] ) REE RRERMBAEE EPD, FEHD and LandsD

REBREFEEZE( [RERE] ) Rt
T E

Buildings Department (“BD"),
Environmental Protection
Department (“EPD"), Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department
(“FEHD") & Lands Department
(“LandsD") EF% BD

(2022/1619) o BEANBEFRAFRH  BRHERMELBRS MM @3)
HARBSIS A BT
Be mindful of its internal procedures and staff deployment
to ensure that the enhanced enforcement strategy on the
issuance of Demolition Orders is properly carried out
o IRIERESMEREIEIZHF ANANRDLER (3
Reminded staff to ensure the accuracy of replies to
complainants

HE4ZE LandsD

=EFIMEEE - LEBRENESHRTIEER(EBT A 2
MEEHENR

Enhanced collaboration between the three Departments

with a view to following up effectively on improper

connection of septic tanks of New Territories Exempted

Houses to public drains

s REBSSFERERFA (3
Reminded staff to reply to complainants in a clear manner
EFE o B RIMABEEBRAEFLMAEFMEEFREBRETE - (5)
Buildings Department (“BD") ARABT —BEEEHRMR TS
(2022/3740) For following up on the three removal orders to be

complied with, instigated prosecution actions against two
owners and served a superseding order for the remaining
one

s TERHEZEMAEE D ZM LR RATRIMLE - Wi (8)
% B AR IR EB T 0 AR 5 758 I $8 5| IR AN BB 3 B B S F k%
Bl
The case and the lesson learned have been shared and
discussed at BD's internal meetings, and staff have been
reminded to provide timely and specific responses to
enquiries or complaints according to BD's performance
pledge and departmental guidelines

HFEE 2023/24 F3]




Ff4%9 Appendix 9

HEERE D
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) =L
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
EFE MAREIEHRHETRERERZIRERE AR EE ML ()
Buildings Department AEEBIFEREEY
(2022/4011) Instigated prosecution against the owners who have not

complied with removal orders and engaged consultants to plan

and arrange to have the unauthorised building works removed

by contractors
BEE RERERERS ™ RE@EEREHELDE LR - e [ B (4)

Department of Health (“DH")
(2020/1710)

B ORBEARENRINAZEL - ERGEAEEZDZENE
Launched an online appointment booking function for the Child
Health Service under the Family Health Service. A portal was
also created on the eHealth Mobile App for service users to
access DH's booking system

BEE
Department of Health (“DH")
(2022/0225)

s RFEZBEREBMMAE ( [BHH] ) MERLZE2RBH K 2)
BERINREEEBAZINEBRER - FAZABAIRR
RS - BRREEZEWSERARNEARME SIS
FAMEZR - AR AZIFERE R A RER
DH's Contact Tracing Office (“CTQ") provided direct email
and telephone contacts to Civil Aid Service and Medical
Post for frontline staff to follow up on cases concerning
wrong information in statutory orders in accordance
with relevant guidelines in a timely manner, to record
such cases properly, and to report for cases with wrong
information

s ABIRLEFEREESHRESIRENETF  HHRMEREE (3
AEMRRES SIRE L T B BB RS 28 M B IR
# K B 78
Hotline centre updated the procedures of handling
enquiries and referrals for referring cases concerning
amendments of information of isolation orders or
guarantine orders to CTO direct for follow-up and reply

o W [FAEMEPL2019TMESHAEAN LBRRKIS] K (4)
[2019E R EREN ARG EERATRRRS] - X
fERED & RIS R ¥R R B B e
Launched "“Online self-reporting for COVID-19 patient” and
"Declaration System for Individuals Tested Positive for
COVID-19 Using Rapid Antigen Test” for confirmed patients
to declare “close contacts” simultaneously

o  PDREIMEBERA AT E#ITH (7)
Separated the announcement and effective dates when
updating quarantine measures
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BEE o REBSANOEEBERFESR  WAEESRMIES - HER (3
Department of Health EREMEEORE v EHRGEREER

(2022/0578) Reminded staff to handle complaints carefully and

provided them with relevant guidelines, procedures and
line-to-take and review case progress regularly

s MEREBRRBUERSNGNBOELME BEIRMHEFEREE - (4)
LABB T R ABZRFRELERS - ZIEEEFROTER
B BB E R H e s IR AR TS A A T2 P TE /9 & bk
The online reporting form or the system would
automatically provide standardised options in some of the
information fields to assist the public in filling information
and to minimise the chance of making mistakes. Outbreak
Intelligence Centre would also verify cases with uncertain
addresses in accordance with the geocoding provided by
the Lands Department

e BHEBARS MRLHELARKEERFRAREZER ()
B AN EEEXRIEARTEeMEFTEAFHA - I
EREZEREE RS
Improved its information system so that when people
declared COVID-19 positive cases via its online reporting
form or declaration system, the relevant information
would be transmitted to its case platform without the need
for manual input and a case number would be assigned

accordingly
BEE o BINABRE  BHBHREHES  BRESKERCEMNT (1)
Department of Health B WERETZ M R B ARIER N R4
(2022/0792) To review the internal workflow and streamline the

procedure of issuing Isolation Orders, Quarantine Orders
and Isolation Records as well as devise more scalable and
versatile systems

o ZEBHA [RELHEENES] WER  ZERDABHER (5)
To cross-check the data input to the Isolation Record
Robot to minimise human error

e RERMMNETIFIIRIRLHNFELEE  BIBREZE (8)
BHRES RES KBRS URESEAREN
To provide sufficient staff training and readily available
FAQs to facilitate the issuance of Isolation Orders,
Quarantine Orders and Isolation Records and for
answering public enquiries
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BEE s KARAFKINREXMEREEREXIEFEHEP L (4)
Department of Health A — (B S # bk

(2022/0943) Designated email account of the Centre for Health

Protection as a central hub to receive requests for
isolation documents from different COVID-19 hotlines

o TEME2019E MM SR R & IR oE HE B R IRE - I ()
DGR R BR A E A - S| A E B T A RRER
R R BRI AR EDE - BT R RET
Pop-up messages and buttons added in the two COVID-19
reporting platforms with illustrations and links to redirect
people to report their cases on the correct platform;
wrongly reported cases picked out every day to contact
and help the infected persons complete the declaration
process as appropriate

s BEHREXSKBRTANEABENEGFEEPRERNERA (5)
REBREENENERHEL ¥
A system developed to enable comparison of personal
particulars in the reporting platforms with those in the
centralised Case Portal and the Immigration Department'’s

database
o THIRMERBSXEME ABERMEZ I  WIESRIEREE A (5)
ESAR

To regularly remind staff of the importance of accurate
input of data and double check information before issuing
isolation documents

o EBBIFH [AES] FacebookEE + WhatsAppZhig & A 7)
BHEEFTNERMNEFZRS - NESEESAEN TR
Enhanced the publicity of the different functions of the
various hotlines through the Government Facebook page,
WhatsApp Helpline and an interactive voice response
system
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BEE s MIRFAREBEBARE cE&MNSEER (HFILZAT2E T Z (4)
Department of Health 23K)
(2023/0201) Provided written confirmation for the conclusion of the

complainant’s case which was previously overlooked by

the department

s THEAMERFIBASERBBERINIETEZEE  BIER ()

Hnog 85 B A il

Reviewed and enhanced the mechanism for monitoring

the progress of enforcement action related to Compulsory

Testing Order compliance in future

U % 5 Bk B 1F 1 58 #7201 958 AR 7 35 81 il 5 8% R (B 2Rk St /9 35 (8)

E{ NG|l o) A=b =

Reviewed the guideline for proper updating of COVID-19

test records and case status, and strengthened staff

training
HWETIEE T IR 08 B B A S TS R T E R E TIE (5)
Electrical and Mechanical Services  Closely followed up on the legislative work on compulsory
Department registration of vehicle maintenance workshops and mechanics
(2015/2167)
=1z A ARIETENRRESHFIES] - UHERE TETHRE (1)
Fire Services Department New guidelines for handling advance payment bonds
(2023/0403B) promulgated for staff's compliance
RYIRREEE BET LIEIRSINN T ERE [HESHRA] EREEENRNIERT (1)
Food and Environmental Hygiene Revised guidelines to improve the procedure for following up
Department on the compliance with “Nuisance Notice”
(2021/2581A)
RYPIRIBREE o HBEVRSHANREFERERBRIERMIGEN - NEH 2)
Food and Environmental Hygiene 3 M EREEEEEK
Department Enhanced collaboration with the Independent Checking
(2021/3102) Unit and the Buildings Department in following up on

FREE 2023/24 3§

requests for information so that they can respond to such
requests in a timely manner

o REKRFABHHMBLWER  ERFARBEELR & 3)
FERE R pz 12

Followed up on the complainant’s request for information
in his email and expedite the handling of the request if the
complainant still pursues it
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s HIEHTHRFIHSHNERR ZRHEEZZEFASHANURG ()
BEATRZEEER - IR E kAL
To consider obtaining building plans via the Housing
Electronic Building Records Online System when carrying
out the procedures for applying for a Closure Order, so as
to enhance effectiveness and efficiency

o THIRFERARRZHEEREE ( [REH] ) IADBE ()
Wkl mRECENEREMERE XS ED BN
R SEREPEABRRNNERBEIRR - RIESIKEE#H
i
To review regularly the internal communication
mechanism between the Licensing Section and District
Environmental Hygiene Offices (“DEHQ") to ensure that
the enhanced licence information management system
can achieve the desired results and DEHO can follow the
guidelines to conduct inspections and take enforcement
actions according to the latest status of the licence
applications

o RIEBBRERPIRILS  BERLEMRNE - W (8)
BEYH (RARERSAD) (T <FRD 1) #9RB R -
aeiE (PRI REBERET RS A RERERDZER
Reminded staff to learn from the complaint and respond
to public enquiries in a timely manner and strengthened
staff's understanding of the Code on Access to Information
(“the Code”) with training so that they will be able to
respond to enquiries and requests for information made
by members of the public in accordance with the Code

and its spirit
o RINBBTEERHEMIAFIREERE  EREEREE A )
E B[R AP ERE

Reminded staff to take initiative to contact the
departments concerned if the departments did not
respond promptly to their requests for information

e MAEAMEE HRABKERBEEERENBERTE 9
EoIBITHE - WEEHEFLHR
Strengthened internal supervision to ensure that staff
responsible for conducting inspections and instigating
prosecutions against unlicensed restaurants will perform
their duties in accordance with guidelines and keep proper
work records
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o SERHEVBEMARAL  WHERFPIRIEER - 1T 9)
EREAFEE  #RAUZERNEREFUELRENE
MEEA

Completed the investigation into the staff concerned

and took reference from the case to improve the internal
supervision administratively to avoid recurrence of missing
to make inspection records as seen in the case

RYIRIBREE o IRIEWBARIESIRIERFER - BRA TIRFAVHEE - Q)
Food and Environmental Hygiene AR RIEFAZRKRIEEE - WiETTKEEEZREAEEER
Department FFA

(2022/2602) Reminded staff to handle complaint cases in accordance
(2022/2840) with guidelines and provide complainants with interim replies

and case progress in a timely manner, and issue substantive
replies to complainants upon concluding complaint cases

s NMEEREFPKLHNEN EARHEBRERNEEGERE (5)
BISKBAIEENR - EAREBNE A
To step up the monitoring of stall operations and take
enforcement actions decisively if there is sufficient evidence
of breaching of the law or the leases

o INSREEE B KA AR - B RMFIEAE R R AR K (®)
(RREMRG) EEEE - WHEBRSRAR - ER R LR
FRBH

Strengthened training for staff and contractors and required
them to manage the stalls strictly in accordance with the
terms of the leases and the Public Markets Regulations and
seek help from their superiors when encountering difficulties

o ERRANETREMHEERN  BERETENTE  BE 9
AREGMEENLEER - UREATERLT - AR TR
FRBEEMHBEEEE  IHZETORKRER - RFH
EiRENAREMHRE - LERER
To review in a timely manner the operation of Kwu Tung
Market, and consider adjusting the business types of market
stalls in light of the community’s current needs, and where
feasible, rent out vacant stalls in a flexible manner, and for
the future development of the market, complete the planning
for the public markets in Kwu Tung at an early date to make
optimal use of resources

HFEE 2023/24 F3]




Ff4%9 Appendix 9

HEERE D
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) L]
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
RYRREEE ( [REE] ) FEAT18234 L - RIREMuL K [P H & FEAM] IME-FREEE (4)
Food and Environmental Hygiene &#&l 5 KXA [BEERFEH] REBEEAMII—EEEHEE
Department (“FEHD") Reviewed all relevant materials on the websites of 1823 and FEHD,
(2022/2902) and the Guide to After-Death Arrangements clearly stating that

“continuous residing period” means the period that the deceased
had continuously resided in the place concerned before his or

her death
NEQSRN: MmFES| - FIAREREBRERERERBE KRN G OFH (1
Government Logistics Department  RITERIBUXHNEZ SR - UERSEEE B REBFIETHE
(2023/0403A) Promulgated new guidelines setting out the key steps for handling

contract deposits, bank guarantees or similar documents received
under contracts for procuring goods and services to ensure
compliance by bureaux and departments

HER e HEMEMAFBAKRFUMPSRERBEXRTNREERT 8 3)
Government Secretariat — FErg A ARRAEERNRE

Education Bureau To provide on its website information about the complaint
(2021/3695) handling procedures regarding suspected breaches of

professional conduct by teachers, and the reasons for not
disclosing the results of the investigations of such complaints

e BEHERNITRERFNEMNBEES  BRREEEBEA (3)
B R#EERREIERFA
Internal complaint management system enhanced to give
timely reminders to the responsible officers to process
complaint cases and reply to complainants

s REARBATIZFHOEBIREMEE - LRSMMEEZRFAS (8)
BHFTS
Trainings for enhancing communication skills with
complainants provided to staff responsible for handling
complaints from the public
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HEREED
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) =L
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
HER o  FETAIIES|  REBEXZESRHFASHEMMIEEDE (1
Government Secretariat — Education Updated the internal guidelines reminding staff to make
Bureau (“EDB") proper record of all relevant conversations that were made
(2022/1959) in the complaint handling process

o  EXAEIESI RBERNIESIFNIRFOME  KEERFE Q)

ABHE P E2ATEMATEMENREFAERE - OIEE
BRERERNENRFSHAEREENAALE

Revised the classifications of complaints in internal guidelines
and guidelines to schools: complaints involving students
having been assessed by doctors or professionals as being
affected by incidents and resulting in severe emotional
problems, psychological trauma, or suicidal tendencies, will
be directly handled by EDB

J E%ﬁﬁﬂ%#‘é%l&ﬁlfﬁ*im%%l IRRE (1

- RBIRIFFTB IR [ ZRABRA R RO - BAENAIER -
,\/1%32§Elnaﬁﬁ AR - UARERS - 55 - RiE
SfEREABRR - 8T (EAZER (FLEB) &6 &
RE - A&

- BEGATERLMETR

Internal guidelines and guidelines to schools are updated,

reminding:

— schools to preserve all records related to complaint
cases, including text files, images or audio recordings,
as evidence and to comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance when collecting, holding, processing
or using personal data; and

- staff to advise schools of the above

BBREER HienmFErT [BEEk] 78 SREREBERRETEIES (1)
Government Secretariat — To enhance the operation guidelines if “restriction-testing

Health Bureau declaration” operations have to be taken in the future

(2022/0234C)

BBRER RAERAEEHRERSAEEN TR 2R EHRAET EER (7)
Government Secretariat — WEH - WEIEMAIES BB ERBEAESNEAANSERE

Health Bureau IR TSI R EEIE

(2022/3659C) To provide information on the handling of enquiries about adverse

events following vaccination on the thematic webpage and to
strengthen the relevant guidelines to instruct staff and healthcare
professionals to clearly explain to enquirers the operational flow
of the existing mechanism

FiFEES 2023/24 £3])
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HEERE D
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) =L

organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

RBEBRE RTBERENFZHIT [EHER] 178 - ARRERES LA 9)

Home Affairs Department = HE

(2022/0234A) Reminded staff to ensure that residents are notified of the relevant
arrangement of “restriction-testing declaration” operation

EEZE REBETAZERALARIRFREAEN S ERIPIE 9)

Housing Department R

(2022/0234B) Reminded staff to refer public complaints or enquiries to suitable
departments or organisations for follow-up action where necessary

EEZE o BBRBERAIITBIEFMIIERS - BEARERESIHALER (1)

Housing Department BEREEFHENESNFEEE

(2022/2046) Examined its current procedures and working guidelines, and

confirmed that guidelines are in place for frontline staff for
handling dual tenancy matters
s RERSZMEBEEER UWNAGEREELAREREZR 9
Reminded staff to adopt a proper and flexible approach in
handling cases in accordance with policies and procedures

FEZ EERERFRARER [BERFE] HALEWMAESKEE (5)
Housing Department —THETE  BREBEEEEE  BATERANENER
(2022/2185) Where necessary, to take prompt enforcement action

against public housing estate tenants for non-compliance of
enforcement notices, including issuing written warnings to
explain the consequences of non-compliance

NG =500 o HBERAZRGHEBHEIME  WERFEERBEMALE 4)
Immigration Department FRT - RERGABNZEBHE ERXFEZRFLIRE
(2023/2469) BISHE

To continue the enhancement of the automatic photo
screening function of the online application system, and to
add a note on the application page and website to remind
applicants that successful submission of application does
not mean its approval

e FBREKBEFEERPFNBABRBRNERSNE—FH (4)
i
To complete the connection of the system of online
application for HKSAR passport and the online
appointment booking system as soon as possible

T MBEREEZHE (RHAERTA) A (8)
Information Services Department  Stepped up staff training on the Code on Access to Information
(2022/2434(1))
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REERED

Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference)

Improvement measures

Szl

Category

RERXLEBHE PR R R R B E B FI AR A R B 200 - 320 ()
Leisure and Cultural Services A [FEEE] Brmencst
Department To arrange balloting for selecting participants of a popular
(2018/4697) recreation and sports programme and give priority in balloting
to “new applicants” of the programme
RERLERE DR E R AN A B VK E R GRS TIREENEE - EH (5)
Leisure and Cultural Services 1TAERETE 5]
Department Enhanced the supervision of the progress of the maintenance
(2023/0522A) works for the hot water supply system of the shower booths
in a swimming pool, and implemented the relevant guidelines
accordingly
HEIE RIBEAROBARESHE  NAATERIRFR - WLh () & (8)
Planning Department TAREBEIIREEERE 2 M
(2022/4287) Reminded staff to provide comprehensive and detailed replies
to public enquiries and arranged relevant staff training
HEE 1BE] TEFRS| - BILEIERIE R B AR (3)
Post Office Guidelines revised to enhance the procedures for handling
(2022/3124(1)) information requests
HgE o FENBHMARMRT  BILESZ R AR EBURIERIE (4)
Post Office HIPR BARTRE B3
(2022/3379) Computer system updated to prohibit delivery postmen

' HIFEE 2023/24 F1H

from delivering parcels prior to the deadlines for changing
of delivery options by recipients

e ABERESRMAMKEEXEZHBAREERNRTIRER
EREHENEE - NEMARERESEZBNKEETRNE
2 1% BRI 5 2= BR A R IR 1B R BLR AR R TR AT RO 2R
Added to its computer system the functions of sending
alert reports and anomalies reports to delivery supervisors
regarding parcels delivery, so that delivery supervisors
can remind delivery postmen of new parcel delivery
instructions and follow up with them on cases whose
delivery situations do not match delivery instructions
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HEERE D
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) =L
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
tEEiE o TEHEFTEVE RIS R E R E TS R R R (1
Social Welfare Department Devised guidelines on the time limits for retaining
(2023/0291) information obtained by investigations

o REERBSEREIEBIRFREREHRFALER (3)

Reminded staff to handle complaints in a timely manner
and inform complainants of progress regularly
o RIREIERFIET B WHUEHFARENRL « 8Z 58k ()

By A K
HEEE

Reviewed complaint handling procedures and will
receive photos, audio and video recordings submitted by
complainants as far as practicable

o  RERFARHMNES (©)
To listen to the audio recordings furnished by the
complainant

s RTBBEAEWE
ERORBRE
Reminded staff to provide necessary details (including the
identity of interviewee) in investigation reports to avoid

0N

DIFFE (BREGENGN) - A% 8

confusion
EE BLRRAR D BRI BRI R B E RE TR R R 2R ()
Transport Department To review the criteria for assessing new residents’ service
(2022/1460 and others) applications and residents’ service renewal applications with
stakeholders
B E o HEBEFHOHERIEHLRENERELTRGEABNAEL ()
Transport Department To conduct a review with stakeholders regarding the
(2022/1603(1)-(4)) approving principle for application of new residents’
service route and renewal of existing route
o INREREIFT - IREEH B FAERRE - RHPAREE (8)

To enhance staff training, to remind the relevant staff to
closely examine complaint materials and provide specific

response
s HMEEEEISERNAKEGRGLEESRK  EFRIE ©)
feiEiE

To continue monitoring the public transport service near
the residential estate where the complainants lived and
optimise the provision of public transport in a timely
manner
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HEREED
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) L]
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
EE LAMRR 77 AR IR R B PRl < RIE < mie /) & 5= 5t 5 (6)
Transport Department ==
(2022/3263) Handled applications for postponement of driving test, due to

having to comply with isolation and quarantine orders, in the

same way
BipE FARERDAE ERERBLRBEAREREENRFARE (6)
Transport Department A BREMIENER - LB R IERIERMMEE
(2023/0696) Adopted a new criterion for deciding the eligibility of the

applicants who are current holders of quotas of Hong Kong
private cars to Macao to avoid mistakenly rejecting their
applications for new quotas

ey o RAMILIEIESIFFAEBEARRBERRIET - WERHAI (1) & (8)
Vocational Training Council BN EER B A NG BEBR
(2022/2932) Spelled out the refund policy and procedures in the

internal guideline and workshops would be conducted to
familiarise staff with the relevant policy

o FEMMERMEEAFMXHNAT  WRESEEENRRE (7)
73
Updated the website and the relevant register documents
to remind students of the refund policy

el IR B ¥z BN (RARERSTR]) B - U REMm TR (8)
Vocational Training Council (‘VTC") ZREVAH EREETEE1E
(2023/2455(R)) Enhanced staff's understanding of VTC's Code on Access to

Information and their cautiousness in handling requests for

information

R IRE S 2023/24 1R
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Independent auditor’s report to The Ombudsman

(IR1E (FHFZEEIFH) REEHK L) (Established in Hong Kong pursuant to The Ombudsman Ordinance)
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Ombudsman
set out on pages 126 to 151, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2024, the statement of income
and expenditure, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended and note, comprising material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of The Ombudsman as at 31 March
2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
Sstatements section of our report. We are independent of The
Ombudsman in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial
statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The Ombudsman is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditor’s report to The Ombudsman (continued)
E&M) REFRL ) (Established in Hong Kong pursuant to The Ombudsman Ordinance)

Information other than the financial
statements and auditor’s report
thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of The Ombudsman
for the financial statements

The Ombudsman is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control
as The Ombudsman determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, The Ombudsman is
responsible for assessing The Ombudsman’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless The Ombudsman either intend to liquidate
The Ombudsman or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The
Ombudsman’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements
(continued)

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by The Ombudsman.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of The Ombudsman’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on The Ombudsman’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
The Ombudsman to cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with The Ombudsman regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

20 May 2024
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Statement of income and expenditure e yes engea st warch 2004

(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

g 2023
Note
LON Income
W& Government subventions 3 $ 134,307,000 $ 129,838,628
RIETT & By & 2 B85 Amortisation of deferred
Government subventions 3 1,814,220 1,814,220
RITIF R BUWA Interest income on bank deposits 18,782,441 11,190,787
E A A Other income 99,514 3,735
$ 155,003,175 $ 142,847,370
F Expenditure
2ERX Operating expenses 4 (144,690,794) (137,515,036)
FERE surplus for the year $ 10,312,381 $ 5,332,334

THWER Statement of comprehensive income
BE2024%3831BILFE for the year ended 31 March 2024

BRFEEBAMVBRNREEESRAN B [£ER The Ombudsman had no components of comprehensive income
g NP EEMEEWSIEE - AR EREE N other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented.
[amEzesE | cMESEEHRRNEE [E4] A Accordingly, no separate statement of comprehensive income is

T

B Bt A HREEE BITEESEm kX - presented as The Ombudsman'’s “total comprehensive income”
was the same as the “surplus” in both years.

FIRNE1TB M AT HEHREOEETLS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial
statements.
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The Ombudsman
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

/E\Zri%;ljijﬂv% E’\\‘2024.¢3H31E| - o
Statement of financial POSITION e a5t warch 2024

( BT B &35 BT BE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B3t 2023
Note
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current asset
M - A R Property, plant and equipment 7 $ 65,278,468 $ 68,151,261
RBEE Current assets
e RIBAFOE Deposits and prepayments $ 4,881,355 $ 4,234,119
JE U ) B, Interest receivable 3,826,254 2,251,320
JRE={E A A ERHA 2 E B3k Time deposits with original
maturity over three months 181,742,000 213,080,000
ReERBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8 222,293,794 179,946,924
$ 412,743,403 $ 399,512,363
EEHAE Total assets $ 478,021,871 $ 467,663,624
afE LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current liabilities
FESAmMNE - FERBNEL Contract gratuity payable —
non-current 9 $ 6,953,923 $ 8,045,013
BELEBNERE - 3EmE D Deferred Government
subventions — non-current 3 49,829,338 51,643,558
$ 56,783,261 $ 59,688,571
REEE Current liabilities
EMEMSRERETEA Other payables and accruals $ 4,782,715 $ 6,141,710
ERAmMNE - mBE 5 Contract gratuity payable —
current 9 10,213,127 5,902,956

BB EBE - RBhEs Deferred Government

subventions — current 3 1,814,220 1,814,220

P

$ 16,810,062 $ 13,858,886
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Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024 (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B3t 2023
Note
=y FUNDS
RitE® Accumulated funds $ 404,428,548 $ 394,116,167
BEEHE Total funds $ 404,428,548 $ 394,116,167
EehEBEEHE Total funds and liabilities $ 478,021,871 $ 467,663,624
FREF 5 8 B 14202445 5 20 B L R e 3% - Approved and authorised for issue by The Ombudsman on 20
May 2024.
REZLEE Mr Jack Chan
RIFEE The Ombudsman
FIRNE11B M AT HREROEETLS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial

Statements.
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The Ombudsman

N Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
&SRR BB
=057 JUAZ BE2024F3A31A L EE

Statemeﬂt Of Cha ngeS Iﬂ fUﬂdS for the year ended 31 March 2024

( BB &35 BT BE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2itES®
Accumulated
funds
A2022F3A31H %2022F4 818 24tk Balance at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 § 388,783,833
2022/2023FEE RN EH : Change in funds for 2022/2023:
FEASKREZEREETE Surplus and total comprehensive income for
the year 5,332,334
7R2023F3A31HK2023F4A18 248k Balance at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 $ 394,116,167
2023/2024FEESMREH ! Change in funds for 2023/2024:
FEASLREEREERE Surplus and total comprehensive income for
the year 10,312,381
R202453A31H 248k Balance at 31 March 2024 $ 404,428,548
FIRNEITEZMT AAHBEREVEREIS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial

Statements.
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CaSh ﬂOW Statemeﬂt for the year ended 31 March 2024

(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B3t 2023
Note
EETH Operating activities
FERH Surplus for the year $ 10,312,381 $ 5,332,334
HEE Adjustments for:
FEWA Interest income (18,782,441) (11,190,787)
e Depreciation 4 4,796,836 3,881,837
EE AT & Bh & 2 85 Amortisation of deferred
Government subventions (1,814,220) (1,814,220)
BEEME - #aE BB EX Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4 8,600 651,015
EEESRHICEEFE Operating deficit before
changes in working capital $ (5,478,844) $§  (3,139,821)
e MIENFE () H  (ncrease)/decrease in deposits
and prepayments (647,236) 5,032,812
Hab e RIE N ERE A (Decrease)/increase in other
CRA) /38 payables and accruals (1,358,995) 213,383
FER#mBN &80, Crld) Increase/(decrease) in contract
gratuity payable 3,219,081 (753,095)
EEES (EA) EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated
REFE from operating activities $ (4,265,994) $ 1,353,279
RETE Investing activities
I B FI 8, Interest received $ 17,207,507 $ 9,390,369

BEWE  #EMREBANEREA

Payments for purchase of

property, plant and equipment (1,932,643) (12,199,424)
FEE=ALEIEZ FHEFEF  Net changes of time deposits
DE)FE with original maturity over
three months 31,338,000 159,232,000
RETHELECRSFE Net cash generated from
investing activities $ 46,612,864 $ 156,422,945

MRS E 2023/24 F 3R
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Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

RERER (E)

BE2024F3A31HLFE

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(FrE &5 L8 T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B3t 2023
Note
ReRBESZEYFEM Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents $ 42,346,870 $ 157,776,224
FUzReREESEZEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 8 179,946,924 22,170,700
FRZESRESEZEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 8 $ 222,293,794 $ 179,946,924

FI1RNE11B M AT HREROEELS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial

Statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 BHFREENHR

R E B 2001F12 8198 RIBADIK S &
B—AE - EBe CBRFEEEH) PaT
Bg o

B ERABNEMHEEMI ATETH
e 168-2008% 5 70 DR B A B30HE -

2 EREFTHEE
(a) WHIBBREHHERE

AR BEHRRIIRBE BSOS RM
EAR (EEMBREEL) (LRE
BIREROER (BFEFBRE L)
- (BB ERTER) k) mkEH -
HFEERMNERNG T BRI 2
T e

FEGHEAGERME T (EBMH

EEA) ZEFT - UERFKEEER
R FE B REMKAIIRFRN - H
HEBREEREMEENEAFE
HARERWIERRZE (HRE15) -

2023F 7R  BEAGFEAERTH (F
BEUEBE S BRERS S EPHE S0
S E)Y - A2025%5 A1 B REUY ¥
SRR ET IR S| o BUB X il ¥
RFEENEENMTBR AT EEKRF
2 o

" éh;y FREE 2023/24 3§
\\‘Q‘

1 Status of The Ombudsman

The Ombudsman was established as a corporation by statute
on 19 December 2001. The functions of The Ombudsman are
prescribed by The Ombudsman Ordinance.

The address of its registered office is 30/F, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

2 Material accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance and changes
in accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Material accounting policies adopted by
The Ombudsman are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSS
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of The Ombudsman.
The Ombudsman has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 15).

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong"” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the abolition of offsetting
mechanism effective from 1 May 2025. The abolition of
the offsetting mechanism did not have a material impact
on The Ombudsman’s results and financial position.
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
MR (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &85 L8 T B E7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material

accounting policies

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24




B ERRMEE (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B 25815 L8 T B 87) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EXREFHE (&) 2

(c) ¥z - HBERRE (F)

PEIEINRYE - #R L REWTES
FIrEE (MBEMGE) & KREAE
RERABSEPHERAN - 5T EIDE
mr

-BEEERAMNEEI ES
Interest in leasehold land held for own use
- BEY
Building
- HEWEEE
Leasehold improvements
- WREREA
Office furniture
- MREHRE
Office equipment
- BHRE
Computer equipment

- EHif
Motor vehicles

AENTERTHRANBEE (05
1iE) BETRE o

@ HEFEE 2023/24 £

Material accounting policies
(continued)

(c) Property,
(continued)

plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

RS 8 FIERTE ER
Over unexpired term of lease

40%F
40 years

104F
10 years

54
5 years

54
5 years

45
4 years

54
5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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(C)

M - MRk ()
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Brig R &M (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(BB 3E5 L8 T B () (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material accounting policies
(continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for indications of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment l0ss is recognised
in the statement of income and expenditure if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in the statement of income and expenditure on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised when The Ombudsman
has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If income has been recognised
before The Ombudsman has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EXEFTEHE (&) 2 Material accounting policies

(continued)

d) BWFIR (&)

FEMGRIA R IR SRR BRI R AR5 5
RAYBEA TR AEENEEEE
BEYIR -

EREGRSRNBEEMANERE
EEENESEGE  REFEEBREY
FEFEMGRIR M BB A M 3R - BT
BERTAMS (BREFRIERF
B) AR EEHRAEFINI2EAE
HEEBENEE  RIFSRIARFE
R B ¥ HER IR AMRIE 0 - FEULIFR
T BRBRETRESNEEAR M
BEMEEERNSEIE -

%EH;WZTJEE?‘EEA%A%&—“CEIHA@LTTE%E#
R E IR BERPERAREK
EJZEEH?E ° HAFR —r/\LiBEEﬂEﬁéﬁfFEEP
JRE Wi R T W T < R AT 1 ) AR B R B RE R
BE W s R 18

i 5 EBR X U B RO AT E - FEUEIR

MIRESEE THE (B2 -
EENBRHRERREEEEBBA
BRAERERRAKRAIEERHEER
BIAMEEPHNEE -

FREE 2023/24 3§

(d) Receivables (continued)

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method and including
allowance for credit losses as determined below:

The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLS”), which are those
losses that are expected to occur over the expected life
of the receivables. For all financial instruments (including
deposits and interest receivable), The Ombudsman
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLS
unless these has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLS.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any
changes recognised as an impairment gain or l0ss in
profit or loss. The Ombudsman recognises an impairment
gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of receivables through a loss allowance
account.

The gross carrying amount of receivable is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when The Ombudsman determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.
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(e)
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MR (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &85 L8 T B E7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material

accounting policies

(continued)

(e)

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, payables are stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with policy as set out in note 2(d).

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to The Ombudsman of non-monetary
employee benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of The
Ombudsman. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 ERGFHEK (&) 2 Material accounting policies

(continued)

(h) #EEKXEEE (h) Provisions and contingent liabilities

HFEERNAREBENFERAEE
FENETER - METEZEBTER G
BHEAELEIZNERING - WA
ERI eV e - B EIREREE - RUE
ERREBEEXN  AEBSSKRETE
TEEMEERNRETIK -

RIS A LER N ERINEB AT g1
BIE - SR A B ABEEL RN
et ZEBESRRAIEFAR B
AR E RN H) AT g1 AR BIBR SN o 78
REPRREREELBLFELEIBES 4
MEFEEODHNERE  TEEERNE
BfE - BRERINTE AT B2 1R A
BRAN o

RAVESEBE TN D HE AL
?ﬁﬁﬂ%HEElj: FERM - RlgmEm T

T TEHIME M RR R — Iﬁé’ﬁié{
;'* AEMFAEZNEETESRE
BEHIRE S

FREE 2023/24 3§

Provisions are recognised when The Ombudsman has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.



2 EXg

TR (%)

(i) WAFERR

(i)

(ii)

BT BB E

—EEBEMRBINBAEERA
WO & ST E RN ER A1
A o B RBT & B & 10 A 12 i
EREWE - MEFER TSN
BRIAME IR - EEV6ER
BRRRERANR - HEHFEE
AXMWEDS  SEMXELNS
BA R RR AR AR R AR
BRI - BERFEEEERAN
MEPE  INFECBNENE
ARAMBAR K - AR EE2(C)
FPIMITE BRI EE - IRIAEE
EREEF Bk Al 8 A R M ST
REERANERAIR -

FE WA

MEBMARELRIZ
FERAIR

BERNEIE

FFRELR
Bl FE2024F3H31H IFFZZ R TR *F

The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

BRI EE (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(BB 3E5 L8 T B () (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material

accounting policies

(continued)

(i) Income recognition

(i)

(i)

Government subventions

An unconditional Government subvention is
recognised as income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the grant becomes
receivable. Other Government subventions are
recognised in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that The Ombudsman
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Subventions that compensate The Ombudsman
for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in the statement of income and expenditure on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Subventions that
compensate The Ombudsman for the cost of an
asset are included in the statement of financial
position as deferred Government subventions
and recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure over the period of the lease term or
useful live of the related asset on a basis consistent
with the depreciation policy as set out in note 2(c).

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Material accounting policies
(continued)

() Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to The Ombudsman if that person:

() has control or joint control over The
Ombudsman;

(i) hassignificant influence over The Ombudsman;
or

(iii) isamember of the key management personnel
of The Ombudsman.

An entity is related to The Ombudsman if any of
the following conditions applies:

() The entity and The Ombudsman are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.



2 EXREFHE (&)

(j) FEAE

(b)

LN

T (&)

BT EERER - AIXER
AT B AR - (&)

(iv)

(viii)

ZEERSHABENHARE
ERMERNEEMRNIER
HIME IR R &
ZERXME2()(a) Aty A
ARG AR %lJ

W?Z(')( J)PT ey A 82 E
EEK?/E./ IEElgxngﬂ (EX
_a) E’]IE I@)ﬂZE\ ©

ZERENEFBSEBEREMA
TRHFEEREEISEEE
BB AR o

—MALTHEREE  MEEZA LR

XA ‘ﬂﬂfh}

HE
%

ERXRZHBIETR - AIRERFERA LT
AL

TENREKE -

AFES

BL22024F3H31HIFFR.Z BH#RE

The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Brig R &M (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(BB 3E5 L8 T B () (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material accounting policies
(continued)

(j) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to The Ombudsman if any of
the following conditions applies: (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
The Ombudsman or an entity related to The
Ombudsman.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(j)(a).

(vii) A person identified in note 2(j)(@)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to The Ombudsman.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 BREMEREZBFER 3 Government subventions and

&

BNESERHAFRBEERN AT EERS
H BT K -

BELEBRREDRIEABNEEERLEE
BENMZBOBERR - BEBRFENE 2
i ERANEEERFEFEEANIHE
T EEEOS (54%F) MEEYWAE
PR (40%F) - #IRBTRE2(C) R 20) ()& 71 /Y
ST BRNBERETERERAR -

R20244E3A31 A E - At BREBFENE
ZHEHINT

deferred Government subventions

Government subventions represent the funds granted by the
Government for daily operations of The Ombudsman.

Deferred Government subventions represent the funds
granted by the Government for prepaid lease payments
and the purchase of building. Amortisation of deferred
Government subventions is recognised on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease term of 54 years of interest
in leasehold land held for own use for prepaid lease payments
and the useful life of 40 years of building in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in notes 2(c) and 2(i)(i).

At 31 March 2024, the deferred Government subventions are
expected to be amortised as follows:

—FRABRERBRBEZA

Within one year and included in

current liabilities $ 1,814,220 $ 1,814,220

—FRUBBEFRBDEE LA

After one year and included in
non-current liabilities

49,829,338 51,643,558

$ 51,643,558 §$ 53,457,778

SREE 2023/24 £
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(BB 3E5 L8 T B () (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 Operating expenses

EBERMFAZ (MES)
WE - MERLRETE (HE7)

Employee benefit expenses (note 5)

$ 124,833,311 $ 123,116,728

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (note 7) 4,796,836 3,881,837
EMNERE Rates and management fee 3,021,479 3,614,051
EEHERBERY Expense relating to short-term leases 100,800 100,800
Z RN & Auditor’s remuneration 110,000 105,000
EEWE  HWREREZEKX Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 8,600 651,015
H B 52 Other expenses 11,819,768 6,045,605

$ 144,690,794 $ 137,515,036

5 EEEFEX

5 Employee benefit expenses

e KOERh Salaries and allowances $ 108,398,798 $ 105,615,719
LI N & Contract gratuity 11,138,935 10,976,503
RIMRIEER - BrlE AESTE Pension costs — Mandatory Provident
( T&¥E&ET8l) ) (GP) Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”)
(Note) 2,995,124 3,005,428
AIELZ 1 Unutilised annual leave (1,005,059) (311,575)
HEi BEHMFAZ Other employee benefit expenses 3,305,513 3,830,653

$ 124,833,311 $§ 123,116,728

i RREEREEE CREIMAEDFEIGD)
gmpiEest - AEEE (EBRED) R
ETERAmARE RE NS RAGBIRESE
BMiK - @ESFERRBLSTEAEED
FERPORKEE - RIFBTESE - BE
KiEB % BAZEERBASMNS%MAE
K B RBRALLA30,0007T /R LR o mE
SHELMERNBRBES - RFZETE
R AT AR IR 1T K F ROGHR

Note: The Ombudsman operates the MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by the
defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees' relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited contributions
that may be used by The Ombudsman to reduce the existing
level of contribution.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 TEEEEE M

6 Key management compensation

EHESRA Short-term employee benefits $ 15,861,917 $ 15,872,221
HE AR R R A Post-employment benefits 2,013,580 1,922,529
$ 17,875,497 $ 17,794,750

7 W% - HBERRE

7 Property, plant and equipment

KEfFER
MEETH
k& BEN HENERE

Interest in

leasehold

land held for Leasehold Office Office  Computer Motor

0wWn use Building improvements  furniture  equipment equipment  vehicles
HA Cost;
R202354A18 At 1 April 2023 $74,900,000 $16,800,000  $26,765,614  $901,907 $1,677,719 $10,854,279  $994,880 § 132,894,399
=5 Additions - - 1,172,800 28,853 566,660 164,330 - 1,932,643
RE Disposals - - - (27,022)  (329,109)  (484,589) - (840,720)
R2024E3A318 At 31 March 2024 $74,900,000 $16,800,000 $27,938.414  $903738 $1915270 $10,534,020  §994,880 $ 133,986,322
ZiE: Accumulated

depreciation:

R202354A18 At 1 April 2023 $29,399,784 $8,842,438  $16,037,752  $790,768 $1,445328 $7,361,670  $865398 § 64,743,138
ERi Charge for the year 1,394,220 420,000 1,224,945 47293 115206 1,535,196 59,976 4,796,836
RERED Written back on disposals - - - (27,022)  (320,687)  (484,411) - (832,120)
RUFIA3NA At 31 March 2024 $30,794,004 $9,262,438 $17,262,697  $811,039 $1,239,847 $8,412,455  $925374 68,707,854
REFE Net hook value;
R224EIA3NA At 31 March 2024 $44,105,996 $7,537,562 $10,675,717 $92,699  §675423 $2,121,565 $69,506 § 65,278,468
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B R SRERMIEE (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(BB 3E5 L8 T B () (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 Y% HBRRE (B) 7 Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

fatFaR
i nw

B

Interest in
leasehold
land held for Leasehold Office Office Computer Motor
OWn use Building ~ improvements fumiture  equipment  equipment vehicles

B Cost;

B02%4A18 At 1 April 2022 §74900000 $16800000  $17,1190%  $88853%  $1974997  $9740533  S994880  §122,417,982

25 Additions - - 10,480,684 31,586 61345 1625809 - 1219942

EE Disposals - - 634006 (18215 (358623 (512,063) - 723000

N3E3A31A At 31 March 2023 §74900000 $16800000  $26765614  $901907  S1677719 $10854279  $994880 132,894,399

ZitE: Accumulated

depreciation:

10254818 At 1 April 2022 §28005564  $842438  $15665010 76017  $1672508  $660633  $805422 61933293

ERx Charge for the year 1,394,220 420,000 567,801 52,966 120564 1266330 59,976 3,881,837

RERAE Written back on disposals - - (195,059) (18215 (347720 (510,994) - (1071992

3E3A31A At 31 March 2023 §29399784  $882438  $160377%2 790768  $1445328  §7361670  $865398 64743138

REFE Net book value:

AN3E3ANA At 31 March 2023 §45500216  $7957562  $10727862  SM139 $230391  $3492609  $129482  §68,151,261
HFEENRAAEFAFERE L% The Ombudsman’s interest in leasehold land is held under
o long lease.

8 BEREBEELEZEY 8 Cash and cash equivalents
RITHRS Cash at bank $ 222,288,794 $ 179,941,924
EFHe Cash in hand 5,000 5,000

$ 222,293,794 $ 179,946,924
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B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 BN RME 9 Contract gratuity payable
FHASEEEERENEMRAZINGES The amount represents the gratuity payable to staff on expiry
BAmE - *EREEEATFSHI0%E of their employment contracts. The amount of gratuity ranges
25% (20234 : 10%%E25%) T2 - BI%E from 10% to 25% (2023: 10% to 25%) of the basic salary less
FHBIBESHN - employer’s contributions to MPF.

10 Bi1E 10 Taxation
BiE CRFHEED) WRIAES(MNE - B The Ombudsman is exempt from taxation in respect of the
FESEREHNBRE (RBEGD) B Inland Revenue Ordinance in accordance with Schedule 1A
g - Section 5(1) of The Ombudsman Ordinance.

11 &1 11 Commitments
20243 A31 85T E - RBEBEA A At 31 March 2024, the total future aggregate minimum lease
Hr Z2EREAVEANNSERERNHRE payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
REAT - of parking spaces are payable as follows:

R—F RS Within 1 year $ 8,400 $ 8,400
BRIEEHZRD—EEARMUNEERAER - & The leases remain in force unless terminated by giving notice
BIFB AR B R in writing of not less than one calendar month.

12 RFTESERE 12 Management of accumulated funds
RFEEREBREZRFESR  EXENRE The Ombudsman’s primary objective when managing its
WRAFEENTBFERRE - AFEER accumulated funds is to safeguard The Ombudsman's
EEEINE EMNAE RETE S ESK o ability to continue as a going concern. The Ombudsman is

not subject to externally imposed requirements relating to
its accumulated funds.

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R
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MR (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &85 L8 T B E7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments

Risk management is carried out by the General and Finance
Section under policies approved by The Ombudsman.
The General and Finance Section identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the operating units.
The Ombudsman’s exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate
and currency risks are described below:

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to The Ombudsman. The Ombudsman’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The Ombudsman has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to this credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound
credit ratings to minimise credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position. The Ombudsman does
not provide any guarantees which would expose The
Ombudsman to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Ombudsman’s policy is to regularly monitor its
current and expected liquidity requirements and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24




B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13LEKBREEREMIARN 13Financial risk management and

NEEHE (8) fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

(b) E£FAERK (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRIHPFEENNBABERSEF The following table shows the remaining contractual
BEHRNZFBRAEOTE - TIIRERE maturities at the end of the reporting period of The
REXYBRERLBAFHEE A GEWH B K Ombudsman'’s financial liabilities, which are based on
R E=FHEGRE contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest

date The Ombudsman can be required to pay:

2024
AERENRAEINR

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—F T —FEBE MERE KEREH

B B 2 A8 BRELT BRFUT RER#st

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

JET 470 B &
Contract gratuity payable $ 10,213,127 $ 4,547,993 $ 2,405,930 $ 17,167,050 $ 17,167,050

H R RIE R ERTE A
Other payables and accruals 4,782,715 - - 4,782,715 4,782,715

$ 14,995,842 $ 4,547,993 $ 2,405,930 $21,949,765 $ 21,949,765

2023
AREHBOREING

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—FUT —FAE LA E AREEREH

a5 B A 2 1 BRELT BREFUT BEmist

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

FE S 200w B 2
Contract gratuity payable $ 590295 $ 5158266 $ 2,886,747 $ 13,947,969 $ 13,947,969

o fth B 5B K fEEHE
Other payables and accruals 6,141,710 - - 6,141,710 6,141,710

$ 12,044,666 $ 5158266 $ 2,886,747 $ 20,089,679 $ 20,089,679
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT &85 L8 T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

(C)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Ombudsman’s only exposure to
interest rate risk is via its bank balances which bear
interest at market rates.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2024, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 (2023: 100) basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would have
increased The Ombudsman’s surplus and accumulated
funds by approximately $197,000 (2023: $183,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the financial instruments which expose
The Ombudsman to interest rate risk at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents The
Ombudsman’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2023.

Currency risk
The Ombudsman has no exposure to currency risk as

all of The Ombudsman’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.
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B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&5EH L8 T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13cEmEKREERESMIARN 13Financial risk management and

NEEHE (8) fair values of financial instruments
(continued)
(e) A EEEZ (e) Fair value measurement
R E B A& pt T B LARK A sk 8 85 5k A The carrying amounts of The Ombudsman'’s financial
AIRFIRE©58 - EHEP20244F 22023 instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were not
FIANEMATFEELEERAER - materially different from their fair values at 31 March

2024 and 2023.

MVERBBALRS 14 Material related party transactions

TREBEEBAEBNRS Transactions with key management
personnel

FTEEBREMENENMNE D EMTTORER - Remuneration of all members of key management personnel

is disclosed in note 6.

158 £2024F3831HILEE 15Possible impact of amendments,

2 M EERERNISE - new standards and interpretations
EARZREAURESTRNE issued but not yet effective for the
= year ended 31 March 2024

HERPBHRETIZEABL - BESHMA Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
SEBEMEIEEE] - EEHZE2024F3A31 HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, which are not
BIEFE®ARED NS BEATBEHREF yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2024 and which
B 2R BENATAERAFES AR have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
1857 - developments include the following which may be relevant

to The Ombudsman.
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B R SRERMIEE (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(AT &85 L8 T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

158 £2024F3A31H1LEE 15Possible impact of amendments,

EEmEERERNIEE new standards and interpretations
ENRZEARET RN issued but not yet effective for
2 (&) the year ended 31 March 2024
(continued)
NN R
o Z BRI
SETHBLEXR
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
CEBETER) B1RB5]  MBEHREXNZS - BESEATELIFTE 2024F1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2024
current or non-current
CEBERTER) B1R2IE5]  HBEHRRNZS  WERFENE B EE 2024F1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current liabilities with 1 January 2024
covenants
(BBPBREER) 165 2185] : HE : ERMLMHER & 2024F1H18
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
(CEBEFER) B7R2E5]  HensXkk (EBVBKMERER) B7% 21835] ¢ 2024F1H18
DETA  HHERFELHNFE
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments. 1 January 2024
Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements
CEBGFHER) B2 21B5] - EXEHLZE RS A LA 2025 1H18
Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates. Lack of 1 January 2025
exchangeability
RREEREFHZEEFTRYIRERBME The Ombudsman is in the process of making an assessment
sl s - 2B ATALL - BREERE of what the impact of these developments is expected to be
FENZE BT TR e g AR MR in the period of initial application. So far The Ombudsman
BERTE has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have

a significant impact on the financial statements.
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REFANE
Complainants Charter

RE\HATRIEHEL RS - BEDETR
REEBFARZATHE -

We endeavour to provide a high standard of service to the public.
In fully discharging our duties, this Office has drawn up the

following Charter:

NEWETE our Commitment

o EHX  RIERAMERMEIEHF c
o HERAMEHFALHAERERER &
o BEMEBAFHRTE .
o REHFANLE .
s HMRAEBKEE .

RFAETNRBEEANER  AIRKAE R IEE
ERBEWER - *“ﬂI%'JHAi%,E\jZHEWﬁEﬁ%E
ARAAZEERTRIFARE - AZERFEER
ENRHREREZR -

Handle complaints in a professional,
efficient manner

Keep complainants informed of the progress and outcome
of our inquiries

Explain our decisions clearly

Protect complainants’ privacy

Treat the public with courtesy and respect

impartial and

Complainants not satisfied with our findings may write to this
Office and state the grounds for a review of their cases. Any views
on individual staff or our services may be directed to our dedicated
Chief Manager. We will take follow-up action with professionalism

and fairness.

HEFARNEE

complainants’ Responsibilities

o ERHAHKFEEAE .
o HEKRRHAEMNES (RIESHLEA .
ﬁ&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁm%%ﬁim%ﬁﬁﬂ
)
o MABIMIIE o
o LAEBIEMREEIRE AR .
s HBEBRKBEE .
HEHFARERS - EJLF&/& e
REE  ERABSETERE ﬁm%mm
B BIEREMESHE Fﬁﬁﬂ% CIS
IEBEMRE -

FREE 2023/24 3§

State clearly the issues of complaint

Provide true and accurate information (including an
account of events, the required information for verification
of their identity and determination of their traceability,
etc.) in a timely manner

Cooperate in our inquiries

Lodge complaints in a reasonable manner

Treat the staff with courtesy and respect

If complainants are not cooperative, the progress and/or outcome
of our inquiries may be affected. In such circumstances, we will
take proper actions as appropriate, such as making our decision
on the basis of available evidence or terminating the inquiry.
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Hong Kong
BAg BB BB 3300 9%
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Enquiry and Complaint Hotline
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